
 

 

November 9, 2021 

 

5:00 P.M. 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING AGENDA 

 
                                  

 

       











 

 

 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 

WHEREAS, books and reading are basic to nourishing the growing minds of our children 

and serve as building blocks toward our children's well being in the future; and 

WHEREAS, HARKER HEIGHTS CHILDREN'S BOOK WEEK will be observed and 

celebrated by Librarians and families from November 15th through the 20th, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Friends of the Harker Heights Public Library has chosen Harker Heights 

Children's Book Week as the perfect time to administer its "Have Book, Will Read" 

initiative by giving books to area children; and 

WHEREAS, Harker Heights Children’s Book Week encourages families to read, listen, and 

spend time together. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Spencer H. Smith, Mayor of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 

DO HEREBY PROCLAIM the week of November 15th through the 20th, 2021, as  

“HARKER HEIGHTS CHILDREN'S BOOK WEEK” 

 

in Harker Heights and encourage young people and their caregivers to discover the world 

through books, not only this week but throughout the year. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 

Harker Heights, Texas, to be affixed this 9th day of November 2021. 

 

 

 

 

          __  

      Spencer H. Smith, Mayor         



 
Minutes of the City of Harker Heights Council Meeting held at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 26, 2021, in 
the Kitty Young Council Chamber at the Harker Heights City Hall at 305 Miller’s Crossing, Harker 
Heights, Texas 76548:  
 
Roll Call: Spencer H. Smith  Mayor 

Jennifer McCann  Mayor Pro-tem 
Michael Blomquist  Councilmember Place 2 
Jackeline Soriano Fountain Councilmember Place 3 
Lynda Nash   Councilmember Place 4 
Sam Halabi   Councilmember Place 5  
   
David Mitchell  City Manager 
Julie Helsham   City Secretary 

 
Consent Items: 
 
1. Council discussed and considered approving the minutes of the meetings held on October 12, 

2021.    
 
Fountain made the motion to approve the minutes of the meetings held on October 12, 2021. Seconded 
by Halabi. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 
 
Public Hearing: 

 
1. Council conducted a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance amending 

Chapter 11 of the City’s Code of Ordinances, establishing Section 11.1 Comprehensive Plan, and 
Adopting the 2007 Comprehensive Plan and the 2021 Land Use Plan for the City of Harker 
Heights, Texas, Pursuant to Chapter 213 of the Texas Local Government Code; establishing the 
relationship of the Land Use Plan and the Development Regulations; Providing for the 
Amendment of any existing Comprehensive Plan; and providing for the Amendment of any 
existing Land Use Plan. Kristina Ramirez, Planning and Development Director, made the 
presentation. 

 
The following citizens spoke on this item: 

• Raymond Hamden, P. O. Box 2008, Harker Heights, Texas 
• Ayesha Lealiiee, 2504 Limestone Trail, Harker Heights, Texas 

 
McCann made the motion to approve an Ordinance amending Chapter 11 of the City’s Code of 
Ordinances, establishing Section 11.1 Comprehensive Plan, and adopting the 2007 Comprehensive Plan 
and the 2021 Land Use Plan for the City of Harker Heights, Texas, pursuant to Chapter 213 of the Texas 
Local Government Code; establishing the relationship of the Land Use Plan and the development 
regulations; providing for the amendment of any existing Comprehensive Plan; and providing for the 
amendment of any existing Land Use Plan, based on staff’s recommendation and findings; And to direct 
City Staff to hold an additional Public Hearing in the future to discuss the potential amendment of the 
parcel of land located off of F.M. 2410 between Limestone Trail and Granite Trail for the Future Land 
Use Map.  Seconded by Fountain. 
McCann, Fountain, Nash and Halabi, in favor. Blomquist against. Motion approved 4-1. 
 
 



 
2. Council conducted a Public Hearing to discuss and consider adoption of Land Use Assumptions 

and a Capital Improvements Plan relating to possible adoption of Impact Fees for the 2022 
Impact Fee Area. Kristina Ramirez, Planning and Development Director, made the presentation. 

 
Nash made the motion to take no action and to hold a second Public Hearing on this item on November 
9, 2021. Seconded by Blomquist. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
            
Recess into Executive Session: 

 
1. At 5:53 p.m. the Mayor announced a closed meeting for the following purposes: 

 
A) Pursuant to §551.074 of the Texas Government Code to deliberate the appointment of public 

officers to the Planning and Zoning Commission and Building Standards Commission. 
 

B) Pursuant to §551.074 of the Texas Government Code to deliberate the appointment of public 
officers to the Board of Adjustment. 

 
Reconvene into Open Session: 
 
Mayor Smith reconvened the Regular Meeting at 6:28 p.m. 
      
1. Council took the following action, on matters discussed in Executive Session. 
 

A. PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION (P&Z)/BUILDING STANDARDS COMMISSION 
 

Current Member Position Eligible for 
Reappointment? 

Name of Reappointed Member or 
New Member 

Naula K. Taylor Member No (Did not reapply) Natalie Austin 
Noel Webster Member No (Term Limit) Barry Heidtbrink 
Lana “Kay” Carey Member No (Did not reapply) Ladonna Barbee 
Adam Parker Member No (Did not reapply) Michael Stegmeyer 
Christopher Albus Alternate #1 No (Resigned) Elizabeth McDaniel (#3 Exp. 2023) 
Michael Stegmeyer Alternate #2  Monica Washington (#4 Exp. 2023) 
Barry Heidtbrink Alternate#3  Jerry Bess (#1 Exp. 2024) 
Natalie R. Austin Alternate#4  Allen Strickland (#2 Exp. 2024) 
 
Fountain made the motion to appoint the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) / 
Building Standards Commission as listed to take effect on January 1, 2022. Seconded by Nash. All in 
favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 
B. ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT (ZBA):  
 

Current Member Position Eligible for 
Reappointment? 

Name of Reappointed Member 
or New Member 

Jeffrey Harris Member Yes Jeffrey Harris 
Thomas “Tom” G. Wilson Member Yes Thomas “Tom” G. Wilson 
David Hermosillo Member Yes David Hermosillo 
Thomas F. Lorensen Alternate #2 No Courtney Peres 
Vacant Alternate #3 - Dr. Desi Roberts 
Vacant Alternate #4 - Philemon Brown 
 
Blomquist made the motion to appoint the members of the Zoning Board of Adjustment as listed to take 
effect on January 1, 2022. Seconded by Halabi. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 



 
Regular Business: 

 
1. Council discussed and considered appointing members to the Parks & Recreation/Tree Advisory 

Board; Library Board; Public Safety Commission; Animal Advisory Committee; Economic 
Development Corporation; Harker Heights Arts Commission. Julie Helsham, City Secretary, 
made the presentation. 

 
A. PARKS & RECREATION/TREE ADVISORY BOARD: 
 

Current Member Position Eligible for 
Reappointment? 

Name of Reappointed Member or  
New Member 

Eva Keagle Member No (Term limited) Angie Wilson 
Angie Wilson Member Yes Yomi Hardison 
Alonzo Williams Alternate #1 Yes Lawrence McCullar 
Yomi Hardison Alternate #2 Yes Vitalis  Dubininkas 
 
McCann made the motion to appoint the members of the Parks & Recreation / Tree Advisory Board as 
listed to take effect on January 1, 2022. Seconded by Fountain. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 
 
B. LIBRARY BOARD:  
 

Current Member Position Eligible for 
Reappointment? 

Name of Reappointed Member 
or New Member 

Barbara Kelly Member Yes Barbara Kelly 
Julianna Greene Member No (Did not reapply) Susan Robertson 
Ramona Rubedor Member No (Did not reapply) Heather Chandler 
Vacant Alternate #1 - Debra Brock 
Vacant Alternate #2 - Simisola Aromolaran 
 
Halabi made the motion to appoint the members of the Library Board as listed to take effect on January 
1, 2022. Seconded by Nash. McCann, Blomquist, Nash and Halabi, in favor. Fountain against. Motion 
approved 4-1. 
 
 
 
C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION:  
 

Current Member Position Eligible for 
Reappointment? 

Name of Reappointed Member 
or New Member 

Dick Dwinell Member Yes Dick Dwinell 
Jeremy Hoffman Alternate #1 Yes Jeremy Hoffman 
Yomi Hardison Alternate #2 Yes John Footman 
 
Blomquist made the motion to appoint the members of the Public Safety Commission as listed to take 
effect January 1, 2022. Seconded by Fountain. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
D. ANIMAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE:  
 

Current Member Position Eligible for 
Reappointment? 

Name of Reappointed Member 
or New Member 

Finni Dirr Alternate #1 Yes Finni Dirr 
George Grammas Alternate #2 Yes George Grammas 
Karry Woods  Alternate #3 No (Did not reapply) Barbara Kane 
Vacant Alternate #4 - Steve Moody 
 
Blomquist made the motion to appoint the members of the Animal Advisory Committee as listed to take 
effect on January 1, 2022. Seconded by McCann. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 
 
E. HARKER HEIGHTS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION:  
 

Current Member Position Eligible for 
Reappointment? 

Name of Reappointed Member 
or New Member 

Hal Schiffman Place 1 Yes Hal Schiffman 
Spencer H. Smith Place 3 Yes Spencer H. Smith 
Mike Aycock Place 5 Yes Mike Aycock 
David Mitchell Place 7/Secretary Yes David Mitchell 
 
Halabi made the motion to appoint the members of the Economic Development Corporation as listed. 
Seconded by Nash. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 
 
F. ARTS COMMISSION:  
 

Current Member Position Name of Reappointed Member 
or New Member 

New – 3 year term Council Member Lynda Nash 
New – 3 year term Chamber Member Roshanda Prior 
New – 2 year term Member Barbara Fontaine-White 
New – 2 year term Member Kerry Ann Zamore 
New – 1 year term Member Roxanne Flores-Achmad 
 
McCann made the motion to appoint the members of the Arts Commission as listed to take effect 
immediately. Seconded by Blomquist. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 
2. Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution reappointing Jared Bryan as the City 

of Harker Heights Representative on the Board of Directors of the Tax Appraisal Board of Bell 
County, Texas. David Mitchell, City Manager, made the presentation. 

 
McCann made the motion to approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, 
Texas, to reappoint Jared Bryan as the City of Harker Heights representative on the Board of Directors 
of the Tax Appraisal Board of Bell County, Texas. Seconded by Fountain. All in favor. Motion 
approved 5-0. 
 
3. Council discussed and considered approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Harker Heights, Texas, to participate in the Global Opioids Settlement. David Mitchell, City 
Manager, made the presentation. 

 
Fountain made the motion to approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker Heights, 
Texas, to participate in the Opioids Settlement. Seconded by Nash. All in favor. Motion approved 5-0. 
 



 
 
 
 
4. Council received and discussed the City Manager’s Report.  David Mitchell, City Manager, 

made the presentation. No action taken. 
 

 
Items from Council and Announcements: 
                           
1. Council member closing statements.  
 
Mayor Pro-tem asked Jeff Achee, Parks and Recreation Director, if the Zombie Hunt is new this year. 
Mr. Achee stated that it is new this year. 
 
Councilmember Nash stated that she attended the following events: 

• October 15 – Central Texas Homeowners Building Association Fundraiser. 
• October 16th – Temple and Killeen Breast Cancer Walk. 
• October 16th – Harker Heights Community Resource Center Food Distribution Event at the 

Methodist Church. 
• October 16th – Culture on the Square Event in Killeen, Texas, and delivered flowers to the Indian 

Oaks Rest Home. 
• October 20th – Harker Heights Police Department Healthy Homes Teen Café event as the guest 

speaker. 
• October 21st – Ladies Night Out 
• October 21st - Harker Heights Chamber of Commerce Military Affairs Luncheon. 
• October 22nd – Harker Heights Police Department Promotion Ceremony. 
• October 23rd - Killeen, Texas, Operation Stand Down Central Texas 8th annual Fall Stand down 

event. 
• October 25th - Harker Heights Citizen Police Academy. 

 
Councilmember Fountain stated that she attended the following events: 

• October 21st – Harker Heights Chamber of Commerce Military Affairs Luncheon. 
• October 22nd – Harker Heights Police Department Promotion Ceremony. 
• October 23rd – AUSA Annual Fort Hood Clean Up. 
• October 23rd – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market. 
• October 26th – 48th Chemical Brigade Change of Responsibility Ceremony. 
• October 26th – Fort Hood Ball Hockey Ribbon Cutting Ceremony. 

 
Councilmember Blomquist stated that he attended the following events: 

• October 15th – Harker Heights Police Department Retirement Ceremony for Lieutenant Owen 
Bullard. 

• October 16th – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market. 
• October 21st – Harker Heights Chamber of Commerce Military Affairs Luncheon. 
• October 22nd – Harker Heights Police Department Promotion Ceremony. 
• October 23rd – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market. 
• October 25th – Harker Heights Citizen Police Academy. 
• Bell County Health District Selection Board Interviews for the new Bell County Health District 

Director at Harker Heights City Hall. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

2. Updates and comments from the Mayor. 
 
Mayor Smith stated that he attended the following events: 

• October 15th - Harker Heights Police Department Retirement Ceremony for Lieutenant Owen 
Bullard. 

• October 16th – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market. 
• October 18th – Harker Heights City Hall Meeting with City Staff. 
• October 19th – Harker Heights City Council and City Staff tour of the Stillhouse Hollow Water 

Plant. 
• October 20th – Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization Transportation Policy 

Planning Board Meeting Chairman. 
• October 21st – Harker Heights Chamber of Commerce Military Affairs Luncheon. Colonel Kevin 

Bradley, Commander 3rd Cavalry Regiment speaker. 
• October 22nd – Harker Heights Police Department Promotion Ceremony. 
• October 23rd – Harker Heights Farmer’s Market. 

 
Adjournment: 
 
There being no further business the City of Harker Heights City Council Meeting was adjourned at     
7:13 p.m. 
 
  

              CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 
 

 
 

 ___________________________________ 
                                                Spencer H. Smith, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

      
Julie Helsham, City Secretary 



REQUEST TO ADDRESS AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA 
AT THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS 

MEETING DATE: _______________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM: __________________________________________________________ 

Print Name: _____________________ 

Address: ___________________ 

___________________ 

Phone number: ____________________ 

Cell Phone Number: ____________________ 

E-Mail Address ____________________ 

Comments:  ____________________ 

___________________ 

___________________ 

__________________ 

__________________ 

 I do not wish to speak or make a presentation. 

 I would like to speak and make my presentation at the meeting. 

Please give this completed form to the City Secretary. Responses will be limited to three (3) minutes. No 
action can be taken.  

I understand that I must limit my comments to three (3) minutes.  I will also refrain from the use of any 
obscene, vulgar, or profane language.  I understand that if I do not follow this procedure, my speaking time 
may be terminated.   

______________________________________________     _____________________________ 
Signature  Date 

Office Use Only
Received by:_________________________
Date: _______________
Time: _______________   



REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL

For Items Not Previously Posted on the City Council Agenda

Submit to: City Secretary

Email: jhelsham@harkerheights.gov

Fax: 254-953-5614

Location: City Hall, 305 Miller's Crossing, Harker Heights, TX 76548

Phone: 254-953-5600

NAME: Brenda Hauser

ADDRESS: 2315 Tye Valley Rd.

PHONE: 706-260-0418

E-MAIL: bgkhauser@gmail.com

SUBJECTTO ADDRESS:

**Property (2229 Moon Valley) that has not been within code for grass height for at

least six months. I've spoken with staff within the code enforcement office to no

avail. My neighbor has also contacted the code enforcement office and received similar

results. **The grass along Fuller Ln between Oakridge and Tye Valley is generally

unmowed. When I'm walking, it's dangerous to step off the road because I can't see

what's in the grass. Help us keep our neighborhood presentable and safe. Thank you.

MEETING DATEYOU WISH TO SPEAK: 11/9/2021---------------------------------
This request is due to the City Secretary's Office by noon on the Wednesday prior to the Council

Meeting. You will be given three minutes to address the City Council Members. No action can be taken.

I understand that I must limit my comments to the subject listed. I will also refrain from the use of any

obscene, vulgar, or profane language. I understand that if I do not follow this procedure, my speaking

time may be terminated.

SIGNATURE:~~

DATE: 11/3/202

(TO BECOMPLETEDBYTHECITYSECRETARY)

Date Received: _

Time Received: _



Page 1 of 3 

 

         CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-25                     AGENDA ITEM# VII-1 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                                DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY DWELLING 

UNIT ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LAKESIDE HILLS SECTION TWO, LOT 

TRACT PT 63, (N PT OF 63), ACRES 0.608, PROPERTY ID #489292, GENERALLY 

LOCATED AT 11511 HIGHVIEW DRIVE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, 

TEXAS, AND LOCALLY KNOWN AS 11511 HIGHVIEW DRIVE, BELTON, TEXAS, 

AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of  R-1 (One Family Dwelling 

District) to R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for 

an accessory dwelling unit on property described as Lakeside Hills Section Two, Lot Tract PT 63, 

(N PT of 63), Acres 0.608, Property ID #489292, generally located at 11511 Highview Drive, 

Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and locally known as 11511 Highview Drive, Belton, Texas. 

According to the building permit application, the main living structure will consist of 5,182 square 

feet and the proposed accessory dwelling unit will consist of 1,383 square feet, with an area of 846 

square feet being dedicated to living space. 

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North Single-Family Residence Residential Estate  R-1 One-Family Dwelling District 

South 
Vacant 

Single-Family Residence 
Residential Estate R-1 One-Family Dwelling District 

East Single Family Residence Residential Estate R-1 One-Family Dwelling District 

West 
Vacant 

Single-Family Residence 
 Residential Estate R-1 One-Family Dwelling District 

 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map identifies this area is designated for Residential Estate; staff 

believes the proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impact on 

the neighborhood and would be consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Assumptions. 

 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out twelve (12) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. As 

of October 20, 2021, six (6) responses were received in favor of the request, and zero (0) 

responses were received in opposition of the request. Any additional responses received after 

the above date will be provided during the meeting.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 

the zoning designation from R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (One-Family Dwelling 

District) with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) on property described as Lakeside Hills Section 

Two, Lot Tract PT 63, (N PT of 63), Acres 0.608, Property ID #489292, generally located at 11511 

Highview Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and locally known as 11511 Highview 

Drive, Belton, Texas, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The accessory dwelling unit shall be used as a living space for a relative (not for rent). 

2. The accessory dwelling unit will be located behind the front façade of the primary 

structure. 

3.  The accessory dwelling unit will gain access from the existing private driveway.  

4. The accessory dwelling unit will have maximum gross foundation footprint of 1,500 

square feet.  

5. Approval of location of the accessory dwelling unit on the parcel must be received from 

Bell County Public Health prior to release of construction plans by the City. 

The above recommendation is based on the following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan and 

FLUM. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

3. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

4. The proposed use and rezoning does not pose an adverse impact to the public health, safety, 

or general welfare.  

 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to change the zoning 

designation from R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) with 

a Conditional use Permit (CUP) on property described as Lakeside Hills Section Two, Lot Tract 

PT 63, (N PT of 63), Acres 0.608, Property ID #489292, generally located at 11511 Highview 

Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and locally known as 11511 Highview Drive, Belton, 

Texas, based on staff’s recommendations and findings. 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to change the zoning designation from R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) to 

R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) with a Conditional use Permit (CUP) on property 

described as Lakeside Hills Section Two, Lot Tract PT 63, (N PT of 63), Acres 0.608, 

Property ID #489292, generally located at 11511 Highview Drive, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas, and locally known as 11511 Highview Drive, Belton, Texas, based on 

staff’s recommendations and findings. 

2.         Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. Letter of Intent 

4. Survey 

5. Site Plan & Building Plans 

6. Ordinance 

7. Location Map 

8. Zoning Map 

9. Existing Land Use Map 

10. Future Land Use Map 

11. Notification Area Map 

12. Public Responses 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY 

DWELLING UNIT ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LAKESIDE HILLS 

SECTION TWO, LOT TRACT PT 63, (N PT OF 63), ACRES 0.608, PROPERTY 

ID #489292, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 11511 HIGHVIEW DRIVE, HARKER 

HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND LOCALLY KNOWN AS 11511 

HIGHVIEW DRIVE, BELTON, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One Family 

Dwelling District) to R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) with a Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP) on property described as Lakeside Hills Section Two, Lot Tract PT 63, (N PT of 

63), Acres 0.608, Property ID #489292, generally located at 11511 Highview Drive, 

Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and locally known as 11511 Highview Drive, 

Belton, Texas with the following conditions: 

1. The accessory dwelling unit shall be used as a living space for a relative (not 

for rent). 

2. The accessory dwelling unit will be located behind the front façade of the 

primary structure. 

3. The accessory dwelling unit will gain access from the existing private 

driveway.  

4. The accessory dwelling unit will have maximum gross foundation footprint of 

1,500 square feet.  

5. Approval of location of the accessory dwelling unit on the parcel must be 

received from Bell County Public Health prior to release of construction plans 

by the City.  

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

2021-   11/09/21 Granting a Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP) on property described as 

Lakeside Hills Section Two, Lot Tract 

PT 63, (N PT of 63), Acres 0.608, 

Property ID #489292, generally 

located at 11511 Highview Drive, 

Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, 

and locally known as 11511 Highview 

Drive, Belton, Texas. 

 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on 

November 9, 2021. 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 

















§ 155.020  R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted by right:

      (1)   Site-built, single-family dwellings and industrialized housing.

      (2)   Church or other place of worship.

      (3)   Municipal buildings, non-profit libraries or museums, police and fire stations, public utilities (without outside storage
yards or electric substations), public parks, playgrounds, municipal golf courses, public recreation facilities, and community
buildings.

      (4)   Customary home occupations as defined in § 155.003.

      (5)   Accessory structure.

         (a)   One small accessory building (not exceeding 144 square feet) per residence customarily incident to the above
uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject to the following requirements:

            1.   Structure must be built upon a moveable foundation;

            2.   Structure cannot exceed 12 feet in height;

            3.   Structure must set behind the rear facade of the main residence building and must be setback five feet from the
rear property line and six feet from the side property line; and

            4.   Materials, building design, and construction must comply with the requirements of Ch. 150.

         (b)   Large accessory buildings customarily incident to the above uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject
to the following requirements:

            1.   Building materials and facade must be consistent with the main residence building materials and facade;

            2.   Large accessory building must be behind the front facade of the main residence;

            3.   The height of the large accessory building cannot exceed that of the main residence building;

            4.   Number, size, setbacks and height requirements based on the size of the lot as follows:

 

Lot Size

Number of
Large

Accessory
Structures

Allowed

Maximum
Aggregate Size

of All Accessory
Structures

Setbacks Maximum
Height

< 10,000 square feet 1 250 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> 10,000 square feet
< .5 acre 1 500 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> .5 acre
< 1 acre 2 1,000 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

> 1 acre 4 1,500 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

 

      (6)   Private garage.

      (7)   Home based child care.

      (8)   Real estate sales office, or temporary living quarters to provide security during the development of residential
subdivisions, but not to exceed two years.

      (9)   Low impact telecommunication towers.

      (10)   Public schools.

   (B)   Conditional uses.  The following require conditional use permits:

      (1)   Private schools having a curriculum equal to a public elementary, high school, or institution of higher learning
(except home schooling).



      (2)   Neighborhood association facilities.

      (3)   Farms, nurseries, truck gardens and greenhouses, provided no sales offices are maintained and no livestock are
kept within 250 feet of a residence of any person other than the farm owner.

      (4)   Accessory dwelling for a relative or servant (not for rent).

      (5)   Accessory structure as provided by § 155.040.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed two and one-half stories or 35 feet in height.

   (D)   Front yard, side yard, and rear yard.  As per Table 21-A.

   (E)   Intensity of use.  Every lot or tract of land shall have an area of not less than 8,400 square feet and an average
overall width of not less than 70 feet and a minimum lot frontage of not less than 45 feet.  Except that if a lot or tract should
have less area or width than is herein required and its boundary lines along their entire length should touch lands under
other ownership on the effective date of this chapter and shall not have changed since the date, such parcel of land may be
used for a single family dwelling.

   (F)   Additional use, height, and area regulation.  Additional use, height, and area regulations and exceptions are found in §
155.040.

   (G)   R-1(M) zoning designation.  R-1(M) is a one family residential lot that also allows manufactured homes. All
manufactured housing structures installed after December 31, 1999, must be installed on a permanent foundation, as that
term is defined in § 152.01.

      (1)   In order to be approved, the manufactured home must be found to have design compatibility with other dwellings in
the neighborhood.

      (2)   The following standards apply to any placement of a manufactured home on a lot after December 31, 1999:

         (a)   Roofing shall be similar in color, material and appearance to the roofing material commonly used on residential
dwellings within the community or comparable to the predominant materials used on dwellings within the neighborhood.

Materials shall include asphalt composition, shingle, tile, crushed rock, standing seam metal or similar materials (except all
other metal). Roof pitch shall be a minimum of 3/12.

         (b)   Exterior siding shall be similar in color, material, and appearance to the exterior siding material commonly used on
residential dwellings within the community or comparable to predominant materials used on dwellings within the
neighborhood. Exterior siding shall be of brick, wood, stucco, plaster, concrete or other material which is finished in a non-
glossy and non-reflective manner.

         (c)   If a garage/carport is constructed, it must be similar in appearance to others in the neighborhood and constructed
of like materials as that of the primary home.

         (d)   Two all-weather surface off street parking spaces meeting the requirements of § 155.061 shall be provided.

      (3)   Every manufactured home shall be placed so that the entrance or front of the home faces or parallels the principal
street frontage, except:

         (a)   In cases where the lot is one acre or greater and the home is located more than 50 feet from the street; or

         (b)   Where the lot width is 60 feet or less.

      (4)   All entrances to a manufactured home shall be provided with permanent steps, porch or similar suitable entry.

      (5)   The lot must meet all applicable requirements of Chapter 154, and shall comply with the area regulations in (D) of
this section. Variance in setbacks may be given in inches not to exceed one foot at the Building Official’s discretion.

   (H)   Signs   As per Chapter 151.

   (I)   Parking.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (J)   Storage.  Open storage is prohibited except for materials for the residents’ use, such as firewood, gardening
materials, and similar materials.

   (K)   Landscaping.  All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees,
measuring two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-
gallon shrubs, are required in the front yard.

   (L)   Industrialized housing.

      (1)   Industrialized housing shall be considered real property and must:

         (a)   Have a value equal to or greater than the median taxable value for each single-family dwelling located within 500
feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located, as determined by the most recent certified tax
appraisal roll for the county;



         (b)   Have exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration compatible with the single-family
dwellings located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located;

         (c)   Comply with city aesthetic standards, building setbacks, side and rear yard offsets, subdivision control,
architectural landscaping, square footage, and other site requirements applicable to single-family dwellings;

         (d)   Be securely fixed to a permanent foundation; and

         (e)   Have all local permits and licenses that are applicable to site-built housing.

      For purposes of this division, VALUE means the taxable VALUE of the industrialized housing and lot after installation of
the housing.

      (2)   Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, erect, install or move any industrialized housing into the
city shall first make application to the Building Official and obtain the required permits. In addition to any other information
otherwise required for such permits, the application shall:

         (a)   Identify each single-family dwelling located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be
located, and show the taxable value for each such dwelling, as determined by the most recent certified tax appraisal roll for
the county;

         (b)   Describe the exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration for each single-family dwelling
located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be located;

         (c)   Describe the permanent foundation and method of attachment proposed for the industrialized housing; and

         (d)   State the anticipated taxable value of the industrialized housing and the lot after installation of the industrialized
housing.

      (3)   A person commits an offense if the person:

         (a)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing in the city without first obtaining a permit as
required by this section; or

         (b)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing into the city unless such industrialized housing
complies with this section.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2002-28, passed 11-12-02; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2010-
32, passed 10-12-10; Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 4-19-11)



§ 155.201 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS.

   (A)   Purpose. The purpose of the conditional use permit process is to identify those land uses which may be appropriate
within a zoning district but, due to either their location, function or operation could have a harmful impact on adjacent
properties or the surrounding area, and to provide a procedure whereby such uses may be permitted by further restricting or
conditioning them so as to mitigate or eliminate such potential adverse impacts. The conditional use permit remains with
land, regardless of ownership, until termination thereof.

   (B)   Planning and Zoning Commission consideration.

      (1)   Application. Only the property owner may apply for conditional use permits. The application for a conditional use
permit shall be submitted on a form approved by the Planning and Development Director and shall be accompanied by a site
plan in a form acceptable to the Planning and Development Director. The application shall be filed with the Planning and
Zoning Commission, together with the application fee and all required attachments, not less than 30 days prior to the
meeting at which the applicant wishes to have his or her request considered.

      (2)   Notice and hearing.  For purposes of giving notice and conducting a public hearing, the Planning and Zoning
Commission shall treat the application as a rezoning request.

      (3)   Report by Planning and Zoning Commission.  Following proper application, notice to affected landowners and public
hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall make a report to the City Council which shall recommend approval or
denial of the application for a conditional use permit, and which shall further specify such restrictions or conditions of
approval as the Planning and Zoning Commission may deem appropriate.

      (4)   Criteria for approval.  The Planning and Zoning Commission may recommend approval of a conditional use permit
by majority vote, but should recommend disapproval of application if it finds one or more of the following to be true:

         (a)   The proposed use does not conform with applicable regulations and standards established by this chapter;

         (b)   The proposed use will be inconsistent with the objectives and purposes of the zoning district in which the
development is located, or the goals, objectives and policies set forth in the city's current Comprehensive Zoning Plan;

         (c)   The proposed use will be incompatible with existing or permitted uses on abutting sites because of use, building
height, bulk and scale, setbacks and open spaces, coverage, landscaping and screening, drainage, or access and
circulation features;

         (d)   The proposed use is not suitable to the premises or structure(s) in which it will be conducted;

         (e)   The proposed use potentially creates greater unfavorable effects or impacts on existing or permitted uses on
abutting sites than those which might reasonably result from the use of the site for a use permitted by right;

         (f)   The proposed use will be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or will materially injure property or
improvements in the vicinity in a manner specified by the Commission;

         (g)   The proposed use fails to reasonably protect persons and property from erosion, flood or water damage, fire,
noise, glare, odors, or similar hazards or impacts;

         (h)   The proposed use will materially and adversely affect the safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian
circulation in the vicinity, including traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the proposed use and other uses
reasonably anticipated in the area under existing zoning regulations;

         (i)   The proposed use will materially and adversely affect traffic control or adjacent properties by inappropriate
location, lighting or types of signs; or

         (j)   The proposed use fails to provide adequate and convenient off-street parking and loading facilities.

   (C)   City Council consideration.

      (1)   Generally. The City Council shall consider the application at the first regular meeting scheduled after it has received
the final report of the Planning and Zoning Commission. The Council may vote to approve the application, vote to deny the
application, table matter for future consideration, or refer the application back to the Planning and Zoning Commission for
further study and a new recommendation. In the event that an application for a conditional use permit is not approved by the
City Council within 180 days after the date it was first considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission, such application
shall be deemed to have been denied on the 180th day after such first day of consideration.

      (2)   Vote required. The application may be approved by a majority vote of the Council, provided that the Council may
not approve an application for a conditional use permit except by three-fourths approval vote if a written protest against such
permit has been filed with the Building Official and such protest has been duly signed and acknowledged by the owners of at
least 20% of the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the requested permit and extending 200
feet from that area.

      (3)   Conditions of approval.  Regardless of whether such conditions have been recommended by the Planning and
Zoning Commission, the City Council may establish such conditions of approval as are reasonably necessary to insure
compatibility with surrounding uses and to preserve the public health, safety and welfare. Such conditions may ;include,
without limitation, a limited term or duration of the permit; requirements for special yards, lot sizes, open spaces, buffers,



fences, walls or screening; requirements for the installation and maintenance of landscaping or erosion control measures;
requirements for street improvements, regulation of vehicular ingress or egress and traffic circulation regulation of signs;
regulation of hours or other characteristics of operation; establishment of development schedules for performance or
completion; and such other reasonable conditions as the City Council may deem necessary to preserve the health, safety,
and welfare of the applicant and the public. In any event, no conditional use permit shall be granted unless and until the
recipient thereof shall agree in writing to comply with such conditions of approval as may be imposed by the City Council.

      (4)   Ordinance required. If the application is duly approved by the City Council, an ordinance authorizing its issuance
shall be promptly thereafter executed by the Mayor. The ordinance shall set forth the conditions of approval, and may
provide that any person or legal entity found guilty of violating such ordinance may be feed an amount not exceeding $2,000
for each day during which a violation is committed.

      (5)   Submission of application following disapproval.  If an application for a conditional use permit has been disapproved
by the City Council, whether such disapproval results from formal Council action or the failure to approve the application
within the specified time, the same or substantially identical application shall not be filed with the Planning and Zoning
Commission for a period of at least 180 days after the date of such disapproval. Upon disapproval of any subsequent
identical or substantially identical application, the same or substantially identical application shall not be filed for a period of
12 months from the date of the last disapproval. However, the provisions of this division shall not operate to prohibit the
filing of an application after legal title of record has been transferred to a new owner.

   (D)   Record of permits. The Planning and Development Director shall maintain a record of all conditional use permits
granted by the city.

   (E)   Term.

      (1)   A conditional use permit shall continue in full force and effect until the earliest occurrence of any of the following
events of termination, at which time it shall immediately become void and shall have no further effect:

         (a)   The building or premises is not put to the permitted use for a period of one year or more from the effective date of
the ordinance authorizing issuance of the permit;

         (b)   The permit expires by its own terms;

         (c)   The property is rezoned;

         (d)   Another conditional use permit is approved for the site;

         (e)   The building or premises is substantially enlarged, extended, reconstructed or altered;

         (f)   The use of the building or premises is materially expanded, increased or otherwise altered; or

         (g)   The violation of any one or more of the conditions of approval.

      (2)   For purposes of this section the City Manager shall have the authority, subject to review by the Zoning Board of
Adjustment, to determine whether an event of termination has occurred. Whenever the City Manager shall make a formal
determination as to whether an event of termination has occurred, he shall promptly make and forward to the Planning and
Zoning Commission and Zoning Board of Adjustment a written report describing the facts surrounding such determination
and the reasons for such determination.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01)



29

0

12013

5140

4972

11224

11221

0

4400

0

11555

11336

11596

11047

286

0

4936

11592

4570

0

4388

514

0

11305

11421

11392

0

11181

11511

99999

0

11105

0

4360

0

4401

11599

4402

0

0

LAKESID EDR
HIGHVIEW DR FL

IN
T O

AK
 DR

BIG
VA

LL
EY

LN

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-25

11511 Highview Dr.

Location

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



29

0

12013

5140

4972

11224

11221

0

4400

0

11555

11336

11596

11047

286

0

4936

11592

4570

0

4388

514

0

11305

11421

11392

0

11181

11511

99999

0

11105

0

4360

0

4401

11599

4402

0

0

LAKESID EDR
HIGHVIEW DR FL

IN
T O

AK
 DR

BIG
VA

LL
EY

LN

Z21-25

11511 Highview Dr.

Zoning Districts
R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-1 (R) Rural One-Family Dwelling District

Zoning

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



29

0

12013

5140

4972

11224

11221

0

4400

0

11555

11336

11596

11047

286

0

4936

11592

4570

0

4388

514

0

11305

11421

11392

0

11181

11511

99999

0

11105

0

4360

0

4401

11599

4402

0

0

LAKESIDEDR
HIGHVIEW DR FL

IN
T O

AK
 DR

BIG
VA

LL
EY

LN

Z21-25

11511 Highview Dr.

Existing Land Use
Single-Family Residence

Multi-Family Residence

USACOE/Drainage

Vacant

Existing Land Use

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



29

0

12013

5140

4972

11224

11221

0

4400

0

11555

11336

11596

11047

286

0

4936

11592

4570

0

4388

514

0

11305

11421

11392

0

11181

11511

99999

0

11105

0

4360

0

4401

11599

4402

0

0

LAKESID EDR
HIGHVIEW DR FL

IN
T O

AK
 DR

BIG
VA

LL
EY

LN

Z21-25

11511 Highview Dr.

Low Density Residential

Residential Estate

Ú Ú Ú
Ú Ú Ú Overlook Utilization Area

Parks & Open Space

Proposed Future Land Use

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



0

0

4570

4936

0

286

11596

11047

11592

11336

99999

0

4388

0

0

0

4401

514
0

29

0

12013

5140

4972

11224

4400

99
99

9

0

11555

0

11221

4255
4360

0

0

4300

0

11305

11421

11392

0

0

11181

11511

10921

10
80

1

4354

11599

4402

11320

0

0

11105

FL
IN

T O
AK

 DR

HIGHVIEW DR

LA
KE

SI
DE

DR

BI
G

VA
LL

EY
LN

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-25

11511 Highview Dr.

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

Recommend Approval (6)

200 Foot Notified Properties (6)

400 Foot Notified Properties (12)

Notification

0 240 480 720 960120
Feet















 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-26                     AGENDA ITEM #VII-2 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                               DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO CHANGE ZONING 

DESIGNATION FROM R-1 (ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) TO R1-R (RURAL 

ONE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LAKESIDE 

HILLS SECTION THREE, LOT TRACT 0066, ACRES 7.72, PROPERTY ID #52206, 

GENERALLY LOCATED AT 5140 LAKESIDE DRIVE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL 

COUNTY, TEXAS AND LOCALLY KNOWN AS 5140 LAKESIDE DRIVE, BELTON, 

TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of  R-1 (One Family Dwelling 

District) to R1-R (Rural One-Family Dwelling District) on property described as Lakeside Hills 

Section Three, Lot Tract 0066, Acres 7.72, Property ID #52206, generally located at 5140 Lakeside 

Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and locally known as 5140 Lakeside Drive, Belton, 

Texas. According to the Bell County Tax Records, the property consists of approximately 7.72 

acres and has an existing residential structure consisting of 3,754 square feet. The request will 

enable the applicant to construct the following: 

Garage (33’ X 42’ 1,386 square feet) 

Wood shop (18’ X 33’, 594 square feet) 

Carport (20’ X 33’, 660 square feet)  

Total combined square feet: 2,640  

 

As outlined within the R1-R zoning district, the following requirements must be met: 

§155.021 (3) (a) (1-3) 

1. The number of accessory buildings shall not exceed one per acre; 

2. Accessory buildings shall be no greater than 5,000 square feet in size; 

3. The maximum aggregate square footage of all accessory buildings shall not exceed 1,000 

square feet per acre and not to exceed a total of 10,000 square feet on any one tract 

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North 
Vacant 

 Single-Family Residence 
Residential Estate 

R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 

South 
Vacant  

Single-Family Residence 
Residential Estate 

R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 

East Single-Family Residence Residential Estate 
R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 

West Single-Family Residence Residential Estate 
R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 



 

 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map identifies this area is designated for Residential Estate; staff 

believes the proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impact on 

the neighborhood and would be consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan. 

 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out fifteen (15) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. As 

of October 27, 2021, four (4) responses were received in favor of the request, and one (1) 

response was received in opposition of the request. Any additional responses received after the 

above date will be provided during the meeting.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 

the zoning designation from R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) to R1-R (Rural One-Family 

Dwelling District) on property described as Lakeside Hills Section Three, Lot Tract 0066, Acres 

7.72, Property ID #52206, generally located at 5140 Lakeside Drive, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas, and locally known as 5140 Lakeside Drive, Belton, Texas, based on the 

following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan and 

FLUM. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

3. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

4. The proposed use and rezoning does not pose an adverse impact to the public health, safety, 

or general welfare.  

 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to change the zoning 

designation from R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) to R1-R (Rural One-Family Dwelling 

District) on property described as Lakeside Hills Section Three, Lot Tract 0066, Acres 7.72, 

Property ID #52206, generally located at 5140 Lakeside Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, 

Texas, and locally known as 5140 Lakeside Drive, Belton, Texas based on staff’s 

recommendations and findings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

ACTION BY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to change the zoning designation from R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) to 

R1-R (Rural One-Family Dwelling District) on property described as Lakeside Hills 

Section Three, Lot Tract 0066, Acres 7.72, Property ID #52206, generally located at 5140 

Lakeside Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, and locally known as 5140 Lakeside 

Drive, Belton, Texas, based on staff’s recommendation and findings. 

2.         Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. Site Plans  

4. Building location 

5. Ordinance 

6. Location Map 

7. Zoning Map 

8. Existing Land Use Map 

9. Future Land Use Map 

10. Notification Area Map 

11. Public Responses 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

R1-R (RURAL ONE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) ON PROPERTY 

DESCRIBED AS LAKESIDE HILLS SECTION THREE, LOT TRACT 0066, 

ACRES 7.72, PROPERTY ID #52206, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 5140 

LAKESIDE DRIVE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND 

LOCALLY KNOWN AS 5140 LAKESIDE DRIVE, BELTON, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One Family 

Dwelling District) to R1-R (Rural One-Family Dwelling District) on property described 

as Lakeside Hills Section Three, Lot Tract 0066, Acres 7.72, Property Id #52206, 

generally located at 5140 Lakeside Drive, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas and locally 

known as 5140 Lakeside Drive, Belton, Texas. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

2021-   11/09/21 Granting R1-R (Rural One-Family 

Dwelling District) zoning on property 

described as Lakeside Hills Section 

Three, Lot Tract 0066, Acres 7.72, 

Property Id #52206, generally located 

at 5140 Lakeside Drive, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas and 

locally known as 5140 Lakeside Drive, 

Belton, Texas. 

 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on 

November 9, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 







81’

30’

42’
18’20’

Wood 
Shop

BreezewayAuto 
Shop

RD RD RD

RD

WD

WD

WD WD WD

WD

WD

WD

No wall

No Wall

DD

Cover
Floor plan

Front view



10’ easement

2
5

’

36’



§ 155.020  R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted by right:

      (1)   Site-built, single-family dwellings and industrialized housing.

      (2)   Church or other place of worship.

      (3)   Municipal buildings, non-profit libraries or museums, police and fire stations, public utilities (without outside storage
yards or electric substations), public parks, playgrounds, municipal golf courses, public recreation facilities, and community
buildings.

      (4)   Customary home occupations as defined in § 155.003.

      (5)   Accessory structure.

         (a)   One small accessory building (not exceeding 144 square feet) per residence customarily incident to the above
uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject to the following requirements:

            1.   Structure must be built upon a moveable foundation;

            2.   Structure cannot exceed 12 feet in height;

            3.   Structure must set behind the rear facade of the main residence building and must be setback five feet from the
rear property line and six feet from the side property line; and

            4.   Materials, building design, and construction must comply with the requirements of Ch. 150.

         (b)   Large accessory buildings customarily incident to the above uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject
to the following requirements:

            1.   Building materials and facade must be consistent with the main residence building materials and facade;

            2.   Large accessory building must be behind the front facade of the main residence;

            3.   The height of the large accessory building cannot exceed that of the main residence building;

            4.   Number, size, setbacks and height requirements based on the size of the lot as follows:

 

Lot Size

Number of
Large

Accessory
Structures

Allowed

Maximum
Aggregate Size

of All Accessory
Structures

Setbacks Maximum
Height

< 10,000 square feet 1 250 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> 10,000 square feet
< .5 acre 1 500 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> .5 acre
< 1 acre 2 1,000 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

> 1 acre 4 1,500 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

 

      (6)   Private garage.

      (7)   Home based child care.

      (8)   Real estate sales office, or temporary living quarters to provide security during the development of residential
subdivisions, but not to exceed two years.

      (9)   Low impact telecommunication towers.

      (10)   Public schools.

   (B)   Conditional uses.  The following require conditional use permits:

      (1)   Private schools having a curriculum equal to a public elementary, high school, or institution of higher learning
(except home schooling).



      (2)   Neighborhood association facilities.

      (3)   Farms, nurseries, truck gardens and greenhouses, provided no sales offices are maintained and no livestock are
kept within 250 feet of a residence of any person other than the farm owner.

      (4)   Accessory dwelling for a relative or servant (not for rent).

      (5)   Accessory structure as provided by § 155.040.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed two and one-half stories or 35 feet in height.

   (D)   Front yard, side yard, and rear yard.  As per Table 21-A.

   (E)   Intensity of use.  Every lot or tract of land shall have an area of not less than 8,400 square feet and an average
overall width of not less than 70 feet and a minimum lot frontage of not less than 45 feet.  Except that if a lot or tract should
have less area or width than is herein required and its boundary lines along their entire length should touch lands under
other ownership on the effective date of this chapter and shall not have changed since the date, such parcel of land may be
used for a single family dwelling.

   (F)   Additional use, height, and area regulation.  Additional use, height, and area regulations and exceptions are found in §
155.040.

   (G)   R-1(M) zoning designation.  R-1(M) is a one family residential lot that also allows manufactured homes. All
manufactured housing structures installed after December 31, 1999, must be installed on a permanent foundation, as that
term is defined in § 152.01.

      (1)   In order to be approved, the manufactured home must be found to have design compatibility with other dwellings in
the neighborhood.

      (2)   The following standards apply to any placement of a manufactured home on a lot after December 31, 1999:

         (a)   Roofing shall be similar in color, material and appearance to the roofing material commonly used on residential
dwellings within the community or comparable to the predominant materials used on dwellings within the neighborhood.

Materials shall include asphalt composition, shingle, tile, crushed rock, standing seam metal or similar materials (except all
other metal). Roof pitch shall be a minimum of 3/12.

         (b)   Exterior siding shall be similar in color, material, and appearance to the exterior siding material commonly used on
residential dwellings within the community or comparable to predominant materials used on dwellings within the
neighborhood. Exterior siding shall be of brick, wood, stucco, plaster, concrete or other material which is finished in a non-
glossy and non-reflective manner.

         (c)   If a garage/carport is constructed, it must be similar in appearance to others in the neighborhood and constructed
of like materials as that of the primary home.

         (d)   Two all-weather surface off street parking spaces meeting the requirements of § 155.061 shall be provided.

      (3)   Every manufactured home shall be placed so that the entrance or front of the home faces or parallels the principal
street frontage, except:

         (a)   In cases where the lot is one acre or greater and the home is located more than 50 feet from the street; or

         (b)   Where the lot width is 60 feet or less.

      (4)   All entrances to a manufactured home shall be provided with permanent steps, porch or similar suitable entry.

      (5)   The lot must meet all applicable requirements of Chapter 154, and shall comply with the area regulations in (D) of
this section. Variance in setbacks may be given in inches not to exceed one foot at the Building Official’s discretion.

   (H)   Signs   As per Chapter 151.

   (I)   Parking.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (J)   Storage.  Open storage is prohibited except for materials for the residents’ use, such as firewood, gardening
materials, and similar materials.

   (K)   Landscaping.  All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees,
measuring two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-
gallon shrubs, are required in the front yard.

   (L)   Industrialized housing.

      (1)   Industrialized housing shall be considered real property and must:

         (a)   Have a value equal to or greater than the median taxable value for each single-family dwelling located within 500
feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located, as determined by the most recent certified tax
appraisal roll for the county;



         (b)   Have exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration compatible with the single-family
dwellings located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located;

         (c)   Comply with city aesthetic standards, building setbacks, side and rear yard offsets, subdivision control,
architectural landscaping, square footage, and other site requirements applicable to single-family dwellings;

         (d)   Be securely fixed to a permanent foundation; and

         (e)   Have all local permits and licenses that are applicable to site-built housing.

      For purposes of this division, VALUE means the taxable VALUE of the industrialized housing and lot after installation of
the housing.

      (2)   Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, erect, install or move any industrialized housing into the
city shall first make application to the Building Official and obtain the required permits. In addition to any other information
otherwise required for such permits, the application shall:

         (a)   Identify each single-family dwelling located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be
located, and show the taxable value for each such dwelling, as determined by the most recent certified tax appraisal roll for
the county;

         (b)   Describe the exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration for each single-family dwelling
located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be located;

         (c)   Describe the permanent foundation and method of attachment proposed for the industrialized housing; and

         (d)   State the anticipated taxable value of the industrialized housing and the lot after installation of the industrialized
housing.

      (3)   A person commits an offense if the person:

         (a)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing in the city without first obtaining a permit as
required by this section; or

         (b)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing into the city unless such industrialized housing
complies with this section.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2002-28, passed 11-12-02; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2010-
32, passed 10-12-10; Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 4-19-11)



§ 155.021  R1-R RURAL ONE-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses. 

      (1)   Any use permitted by right in the R-1 District.

      (2)   Non-commercial/small scale agricultural related uses to include:

         (a)   1.   Farm animals kept and/or maintained for family food production, education, or recreation but excluding retail
sales or commercial production.

            2.   All farm animals kept and/or maintained for family food production, education or recreation shall be subject to all
regulations stated in Chapter 90 of this code.

         (b)   The raising of and harvesting of tree crops, row crops, or field crops for family food production but excluding retail
sales or commercial production.

         (c)   The growing of horticultural and floricultural specialties such as flowers, shrubs, or trees intended for ornamental
or landscaping purposes but excluding retail sales or commercial production.

      (3)   Accessory buildings.

         (a)   Accessory building or buildings whose use is incidental to the above uses (not involving the conduct of a business
or to be used as a dwelling unit), when located on the same lot, other than private garage for one or more cars.  Accessory
buildings that fall under this category shall include such buildings as private stables, barns, farm equipment storage buildings
and other buildings incidental to small agricultural production and storage are permitted provided they meet the following
standards:

            1.   The maximum number of accessory buildings shall not exceed one per acre;

            2.   Accessory buildings shall be no greater than 5,000 square feet in size;

            3.   The maximum aggregate square footage of all accessory buildings shall not exceed 1,000 square feet per acre
and not to exceed a total of 10,000 square feet on any one tract;

            4.   Materials, building design and construction must comply with the requirements of Chapter 150 of this code.

         (b)   Accessory buildings with metal exteriors shall be allowed in an R1-R District provided they meet the following
standards:

            1.   The accessory building shall meet all the requirements of division (A)(3)(a) above;

            2.   Metal exteriors must be constructed using permanently painted 26 gauge or higher steel.

   (B)   Conditional uses. 

      (1)   Any conditional use permitted in the R-1 District.

      (2)   Commercial or large scale agriculture provided that the density of the lot or tract of land is ten acres or greater and
that all farm animals kept and/or maintained shall be subject to all regulations stated in Chapter 90 of this code.

   (C)   Height regulations.  Same as in R-1 District.

   (D)   Area regulations.  As per Table 21-A.

      (1)   Front yard.  There shall be a front yard along the front property line of the lot. The minimum depth of such front yard
shall be 40 feet.

      (2)   Side yard.  There shall be a side yard on each side of a building of not less than ten feet. A side yard adjacent to a
street shall not be less than 25 feet.

      (3)   Rear yard.  The depth of a rear yard shall be a minimum of 25 feet.

   (E)   Intensity of use. 

      (1)   Every lot or tract of land shall have an area of not less than two acres. The lot width shall be a minimum of 100 feet.

      (2)   If a long narrow strip of land is utilized for lot access to a public right-of-way it shall have a minimum width of 60 feet
and shall not be included when calculating the overall density of the lot.

   (F)   Signs.  As per Chapter 151.

   (G)   Landscaping. All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees,
measuring two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-
gallon shrubs, are required in the front yard.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2010-26, passed 9-14-10)



5938

47
06

5315
0

5926

11711

5575

0

29

5550

11336

0

0

5559

11596

11047

4570
11592

4936

5315

0

11532

0

0

0

11362

5932

0

0

12411

514

0

10
77

3

0

11105

0

5928

0

11181

11511

10921

11421

0

11392
0

11305

0

11539

4972

11224

0

0

0

11320
0

11221

99999

0

11555

5140

10801

11599

4402

12013

0

0

11526

HIGHVIEW DR

FL
IN

T O
AK

 DR

ORLAN DR

LAKESIDE DR

W ELCH CV

BI
G

VA
LL

EY
LN

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-26

5140 Lakeside Dr

Location

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet



5938

47
06

5315
0

5926

11711

5575

0

29

5550

11336

0

0

5559

11596

11047

4570
11592

4936

5315

0

11532

0

0

0

11362

5932

0

0

12411

514

0

10
77

3

0

11105

0

5928

0

11181

11511

10921

11421

0

11392
0

11305

0

11539

4972

11224

0

0

0

11320
0

11221

99999

0

11555

5140

10801

11599

4402

12013

0

0

11526

HIGHVIEW DR

FL
IN

T O
AK

 DR

ORLAN DR

LAKESIDE DR

W ELCH CV

BI
G

VA
LL

EY
LN

Z21-26

5140 Lakeside Dr

Zoning Districts
R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-1 (R) Rural One-Family Dwelling District

Zoning

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet



5938

47
06

5315
0

5926

11711

5575

0

29

5550

11336

0

0

5559

11596

11047

4570
11592

4936

5315

0

11532

0

0

0

11362

5932

0

0

12411

514

0

10
77

3

0

11105

0

5928

0

11181

11511

10921

11421

0

11392
0

11305

0

11539

4972

11224

0

0

0

11320
0

11221

99999

0

11555

5140

10801

11599

4402

12013

0

0

11526

HIGHVIEW DR

FL
IN

T O
AK

 DR

ORLAN DR

LAKESIDE DR

W ELCH CV

BI
G

VA
LL

EY
LN

Z21-26

5140 Lakeside Dr

Single-Family Residence

Multi-Family Residence

Commercial

USACOE/Drainage

Vacant

Existing Land Use

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet



5938

47
06

5315
0

5926

11711

5575

0

29

5550

11336

0

0

5559

11596

11047

4570
11592

4936

5315

0

11532

0

0

0

11362

5932

0

0

12411

514

0

10
77

3

0

11105

0

5928

0

11181

11511

10921

11421

0

11392
0

11305

0

11539

4972

11224

0

0

0

11320
0

11221

99999

0

11555

5140

10801

11599

4402

12013

0

0

11526

HIGHVIEW DR

FL
IN

T O
AK

 DR

ORLAN DR

LAKESIDE DR

W ELCH CV

BI
G

VA
LL

EY
LN

Z21-26

5140 Lakeside Dr

Low Density Residential

Residential Estate

Ú Ú Ú
Ú Ú Ú Overlook Utilization Area

Parks & Open Space

Proposed Future Land Use

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet



5938

47
06

5315
0

5926

11711

5575

0

29

5550

11336

0

0

5559

11596

11047

4570
11592

4936

5315

0

11532

0

0

0

11362

5932

0

0

12411

514

0

10
77

3

0

11105

0

5928

0

11181

11511

10921

11421

0

11392
0

11305

0

11539

4972

11224

0

0

0

11320
0

11221

99999

0

11555

5140

10801

11599

4402

12013

0

0

11526

HIGHVIEW DR

FL
IN

T O
AK

 DR

ORLAN DR

LAKESIDE DR

W ELCH CV

BI
G

VA
LL

EY
LN

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-26

5140 Lakeside Dr

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

Recommend Approval (3)

Recommend Denial (1)

200 Foot Notified Properties (12)

400 Foot Notified Properties (15)

Notification

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet













Page 1 of 3 

 

          CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-27                    AGENDA ITEM# VII-3  
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                               DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY DWELLING 

UNIT ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS ARROWHEAD ESTATES PHASE 3, BLOCK 

001, LOT 006A, ACRES .5, PROPERTY ID #396612, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1411 

GOMER LANE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE 

APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of  R-1 (One-Family Dwelling 

District) to R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for 

an accessory dwelling unit on property described Arrowhead Estates Phase 3, Block 001, Lot 

006A, Acres .5, Property ID #396612, generally located at 1411 Gomer Lane, Harker Heights, 

Bell County, Texas. According to the Bell County Tax Records, the property consists of a single-

family residence with approximately 2,286 square feet of living space, on .5 acres of land. 

According to the building plans submitted for the accessory dwelling unit, the structure will be 25’ 

X 30’, with a total size of 750 square feet. 

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North 
Vacant 

 Single-Family Residence 
Residential Estate 

R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 

South 
Vacant 

Single-Family Residence 
Residential Estate 

R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 

East Vacant Residential Estate 
R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 

West Single-Family Residence Residential Estate 
R-1  

(One-Family Dwelling District) 

 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map identifies this area is designated for Residential Estate; staff 

believes the proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impact on 

the neighborhood and would be consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan. 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out twenty-eight (28) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. 

As of October 27, 2021, five (5) responses were received in favor of the request, and zero (0) 

responses were received in opposition of the request. Any additional responses received after the 

above date will be provided during the meeting.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 

the zoning designation R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) 

with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) on property described as Arrowhead Estates Phase 3, Block 

001, Lot 006A, Acres .5, Property ID #396612, generally located at 1411 Gomer Lane, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas subject to the following conditions: 

1. The accessory dwelling unit shall be used as a living space for a relative (not for rent). 

2. The accessory dwelling unit will be located behind the front façade of the primary 

structure. 

3.  The accessory dwelling unit will gain access from the existing private driveway.  

4. The accessory dwelling unit will have maximum gross foundation footprint of 850 

square feet.  

5. Approval of location of the accessory dwelling unit on the parcel must be received from 

Bell County Public Health prior to release of construction plans by the City. 

The above recommendation is based on the following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan and 

FLUM. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

3. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

4. The proposed use and rezoning does not pose an adverse impact to the public health, safety, 

or general welfare.  

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to change the zoning 

designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) with 

a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) on property described Arrowhead Estates Phase 3, Block 001, 

Lot 006A, Acres .5, Property ID #396612, generally located at 1411 Gomer Lane, Harker Heights, 

Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s recommendation and findings. 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

ACTION BY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to change the zoning designation from R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) to 

R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) on property 

described Arrowhead Estates Phase 3, Block 001, Lot 006A, Acres .5, Property ID 

#396612, generally located at 1411 Gomer Lane, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, 

based on staff’s recommendation and findings. 

2.         Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. Letter of Intent 

4. Site Plans  

5. Ordinance 

6. Location Map 

7. Zoning Map 

8. Existing Land Use Map 

9. Future Land Use Map 

10. Notification Area Map 

11. Public Responses 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY 

DWELLING UNIT ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS ARROWHEAD ESTATES 

PHASE 3, BLOCK 001, LOT 006A, ACRES .5, PROPERTY ID #396612, 

GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1411 GOMER LANE, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL 

COUNTY, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-1 (One Family 

Dwelling District) to R-1 (One Family Dwelling District) with a Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP) on property described as Arrowhead Estates Phase 3, Block 001, Lot 006A, Acres 

.5, Property ID #396612, generally located at 1411 Gomer Lane, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas subject to the following conditions: 

1. The accessory dwelling unit shall be used as a living space for a relative (not for 

rent). 

2. The accessory dwelling unit will be located behind the front façade of the 

primary structure. 

3. The accessory dwelling unit will gain access from the existing private driveway.  

4. The accessory dwelling unit will have maximum gross foundation footprint of 850 

square feet.  

5. Approval of location of the accessory dwelling unit on the parcel must be 

received from Bell County Public Health prior to release of construction plans 

by the City.  

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby supplemented 

by adding the following entry: 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

2021-   11/09/21 Granting a Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP) on property described as 

Arrowhead Estates Phase 3, Block 001, 

Lot 006A, Acres .5, Property ID 

#396612, generally located at 1411 

Gomer Lane, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas. 

 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on 

November 9, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 



















§ 155.020  R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted by right:

      (1)   Site-built, single-family dwellings and industrialized housing.

      (2)   Church or other place of worship.

      (3)   Municipal buildings, non-profit libraries or museums, police and fire stations, public utilities (without outside storage
yards or electric substations), public parks, playgrounds, municipal golf courses, public recreation facilities, and community
buildings.

      (4)   Customary home occupations as defined in § 155.003.

      (5)   Accessory structure.

         (a)   One small accessory building (not exceeding 144 square feet) per residence customarily incident to the above
uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject to the following requirements:

            1.   Structure must be built upon a moveable foundation;

            2.   Structure cannot exceed 12 feet in height;

            3.   Structure must set behind the rear facade of the main residence building and must be setback five feet from the
rear property line and six feet from the side property line; and

            4.   Materials, building design, and construction must comply with the requirements of Ch. 150.

         (b)   Large accessory buildings customarily incident to the above uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject
to the following requirements:

            1.   Building materials and facade must be consistent with the main residence building materials and facade;

            2.   Large accessory building must be behind the front facade of the main residence;

            3.   The height of the large accessory building cannot exceed that of the main residence building;

            4.   Number, size, setbacks and height requirements based on the size of the lot as follows:

 

Lot Size

Number of
Large

Accessory
Structures

Allowed

Maximum
Aggregate Size

of All Accessory
Structures

Setbacks Maximum
Height

< 10,000 square feet 1 250 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> 10,000 square feet
< .5 acre 1 500 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> .5 acre
< 1 acre 2 1,000 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

> 1 acre 4 1,500 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

 

      (6)   Private garage.

      (7)   Home based child care.

      (8)   Real estate sales office, or temporary living quarters to provide security during the development of residential
subdivisions, but not to exceed two years.

      (9)   Low impact telecommunication towers.

      (10)   Public schools.

   (B)   Conditional uses.  The following require conditional use permits:

      (1)   Private schools having a curriculum equal to a public elementary, high school, or institution of higher learning
(except home schooling).



      (2)   Neighborhood association facilities.

      (3)   Farms, nurseries, truck gardens and greenhouses, provided no sales offices are maintained and no livestock are
kept within 250 feet of a residence of any person other than the farm owner.

      (4)   Accessory dwelling for a relative or servant (not for rent).

      (5)   Accessory structure as provided by § 155.040.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed two and one-half stories or 35 feet in height.

   (D)   Front yard, side yard, and rear yard.  As per Table 21-A.

   (E)   Intensity of use.  Every lot or tract of land shall have an area of not less than 8,400 square feet and an average
overall width of not less than 70 feet and a minimum lot frontage of not less than 45 feet.  Except that if a lot or tract should
have less area or width than is herein required and its boundary lines along their entire length should touch lands under
other ownership on the effective date of this chapter and shall not have changed since the date, such parcel of land may be
used for a single family dwelling.

   (F)   Additional use, height, and area regulation.  Additional use, height, and area regulations and exceptions are found in §
155.040.

   (G)   R-1(M) zoning designation.  R-1(M) is a one family residential lot that also allows manufactured homes. All
manufactured housing structures installed after December 31, 1999, must be installed on a permanent foundation, as that
term is defined in § 152.01.

      (1)   In order to be approved, the manufactured home must be found to have design compatibility with other dwellings in
the neighborhood.

      (2)   The following standards apply to any placement of a manufactured home on a lot after December 31, 1999:

         (a)   Roofing shall be similar in color, material and appearance to the roofing material commonly used on residential
dwellings within the community or comparable to the predominant materials used on dwellings within the neighborhood.

Materials shall include asphalt composition, shingle, tile, crushed rock, standing seam metal or similar materials (except all
other metal). Roof pitch shall be a minimum of 3/12.

         (b)   Exterior siding shall be similar in color, material, and appearance to the exterior siding material commonly used on
residential dwellings within the community or comparable to predominant materials used on dwellings within the
neighborhood. Exterior siding shall be of brick, wood, stucco, plaster, concrete or other material which is finished in a non-
glossy and non-reflective manner.

         (c)   If a garage/carport is constructed, it must be similar in appearance to others in the neighborhood and constructed
of like materials as that of the primary home.

         (d)   Two all-weather surface off street parking spaces meeting the requirements of § 155.061 shall be provided.

      (3)   Every manufactured home shall be placed so that the entrance or front of the home faces or parallels the principal
street frontage, except:

         (a)   In cases where the lot is one acre or greater and the home is located more than 50 feet from the street; or

         (b)   Where the lot width is 60 feet or less.

      (4)   All entrances to a manufactured home shall be provided with permanent steps, porch or similar suitable entry.

      (5)   The lot must meet all applicable requirements of Chapter 154, and shall comply with the area regulations in (D) of
this section. Variance in setbacks may be given in inches not to exceed one foot at the Building Official’s discretion.

   (H)   Signs   As per Chapter 151.

   (I)   Parking.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (J)   Storage.  Open storage is prohibited except for materials for the residents’ use, such as firewood, gardening
materials, and similar materials.

   (K)   Landscaping.  All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees,
measuring two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-
gallon shrubs, are required in the front yard.

   (L)   Industrialized housing.

      (1)   Industrialized housing shall be considered real property and must:

         (a)   Have a value equal to or greater than the median taxable value for each single-family dwelling located within 500
feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located, as determined by the most recent certified tax
appraisal roll for the county;



         (b)   Have exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration compatible with the single-family
dwellings located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located;

         (c)   Comply with city aesthetic standards, building setbacks, side and rear yard offsets, subdivision control,
architectural landscaping, square footage, and other site requirements applicable to single-family dwellings;

         (d)   Be securely fixed to a permanent foundation; and

         (e)   Have all local permits and licenses that are applicable to site-built housing.

      For purposes of this division, VALUE means the taxable VALUE of the industrialized housing and lot after installation of
the housing.

      (2)   Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, erect, install or move any industrialized housing into the
city shall first make application to the Building Official and obtain the required permits. In addition to any other information
otherwise required for such permits, the application shall:

         (a)   Identify each single-family dwelling located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be
located, and show the taxable value for each such dwelling, as determined by the most recent certified tax appraisal roll for
the county;

         (b)   Describe the exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration for each single-family dwelling
located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be located;

         (c)   Describe the permanent foundation and method of attachment proposed for the industrialized housing; and

         (d)   State the anticipated taxable value of the industrialized housing and the lot after installation of the industrialized
housing.

      (3)   A person commits an offense if the person:

         (a)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing in the city without first obtaining a permit as
required by this section; or

         (b)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing into the city unless such industrialized housing
complies with this section.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2002-28, passed 11-12-02; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2010-
32, passed 10-12-10; Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 4-19-11)



§ 155.201 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS.

   (A)   Purpose. The purpose of the conditional use permit process is to identify those land uses which may be appropriate
within a zoning district but, due to either their location, function or operation could have a harmful impact on adjacent
properties or the surrounding area, and to provide a procedure whereby such uses may be permitted by further restricting or
conditioning them so as to mitigate or eliminate such potential adverse impacts. The conditional use permit remains with
land, regardless of ownership, until termination thereof.

   (B)   Planning and Zoning Commission consideration.

      (1)   Application. Only the property owner may apply for conditional use permits. The application for a conditional use
permit shall be submitted on a form approved by the Planning and Development Director and shall be accompanied by a site
plan in a form acceptable to the Planning and Development Director. The application shall be filed with the Planning and
Zoning Commission, together with the application fee and all required attachments, not less than 30 days prior to the
meeting at which the applicant wishes to have his or her request considered.

      (2)   Notice and hearing.  For purposes of giving notice and conducting a public hearing, the Planning and Zoning
Commission shall treat the application as a rezoning request.

      (3)   Report by Planning and Zoning Commission.  Following proper application, notice to affected landowners and public
hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall make a report to the City Council which shall recommend approval or
denial of the application for a conditional use permit, and which shall further specify such restrictions or conditions of
approval as the Planning and Zoning Commission may deem appropriate.

      (4)   Criteria for approval.  The Planning and Zoning Commission may recommend approval of a conditional use permit
by majority vote, but should recommend disapproval of application if it finds one or more of the following to be true:

         (a)   The proposed use does not conform with applicable regulations and standards established by this chapter;

         (b)   The proposed use will be inconsistent with the objectives and purposes of the zoning district in which the
development is located, or the goals, objectives and policies set forth in the city's current Comprehensive Zoning Plan;

         (c)   The proposed use will be incompatible with existing or permitted uses on abutting sites because of use, building
height, bulk and scale, setbacks and open spaces, coverage, landscaping and screening, drainage, or access and
circulation features;

         (d)   The proposed use is not suitable to the premises or structure(s) in which it will be conducted;

         (e)   The proposed use potentially creates greater unfavorable effects or impacts on existing or permitted uses on
abutting sites than those which might reasonably result from the use of the site for a use permitted by right;

         (f)   The proposed use will be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or will materially injure property or
improvements in the vicinity in a manner specified by the Commission;

         (g)   The proposed use fails to reasonably protect persons and property from erosion, flood or water damage, fire,
noise, glare, odors, or similar hazards or impacts;

         (h)   The proposed use will materially and adversely affect the safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian
circulation in the vicinity, including traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the proposed use and other uses
reasonably anticipated in the area under existing zoning regulations;

         (i)   The proposed use will materially and adversely affect traffic control or adjacent properties by inappropriate
location, lighting or types of signs; or

         (j)   The proposed use fails to provide adequate and convenient off-street parking and loading facilities.

   (C)   City Council consideration.

      (1)   Generally. The City Council shall consider the application at the first regular meeting scheduled after it has received
the final report of the Planning and Zoning Commission. The Council may vote to approve the application, vote to deny the
application, table matter for future consideration, or refer the application back to the Planning and Zoning Commission for
further study and a new recommendation. In the event that an application for a conditional use permit is not approved by the
City Council within 180 days after the date it was first considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission, such application
shall be deemed to have been denied on the 180th day after such first day of consideration.

      (2)   Vote required. The application may be approved by a majority vote of the Council, provided that the Council may
not approve an application for a conditional use permit except by three-fourths approval vote if a written protest against such
permit has been filed with the Building Official and such protest has been duly signed and acknowledged by the owners of at
least 20% of the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the requested permit and extending 200
feet from that area.

      (3)   Conditions of approval.  Regardless of whether such conditions have been recommended by the Planning and
Zoning Commission, the City Council may establish such conditions of approval as are reasonably necessary to insure
compatibility with surrounding uses and to preserve the public health, safety and welfare. Such conditions may ;include,
without limitation, a limited term or duration of the permit; requirements for special yards, lot sizes, open spaces, buffers,



fences, walls or screening; requirements for the installation and maintenance of landscaping or erosion control measures;
requirements for street improvements, regulation of vehicular ingress or egress and traffic circulation regulation of signs;
regulation of hours or other characteristics of operation; establishment of development schedules for performance or
completion; and such other reasonable conditions as the City Council may deem necessary to preserve the health, safety,
and welfare of the applicant and the public. In any event, no conditional use permit shall be granted unless and until the
recipient thereof shall agree in writing to comply with such conditions of approval as may be imposed by the City Council.

      (4)   Ordinance required. If the application is duly approved by the City Council, an ordinance authorizing its issuance
shall be promptly thereafter executed by the Mayor. The ordinance shall set forth the conditions of approval, and may
provide that any person or legal entity found guilty of violating such ordinance may be feed an amount not exceeding $2,000
for each day during which a violation is committed.

      (5)   Submission of application following disapproval.  If an application for a conditional use permit has been disapproved
by the City Council, whether such disapproval results from formal Council action or the failure to approve the application
within the specified time, the same or substantially identical application shall not be filed with the Planning and Zoning
Commission for a period of at least 180 days after the date of such disapproval. Upon disapproval of any subsequent
identical or substantially identical application, the same or substantially identical application shall not be filed for a period of
12 months from the date of the last disapproval. However, the provisions of this division shall not operate to prohibit the
filing of an application after legal title of record has been transferred to a new owner.

   (D)   Record of permits. The Planning and Development Director shall maintain a record of all conditional use permits
granted by the city.

   (E)   Term.

      (1)   A conditional use permit shall continue in full force and effect until the earliest occurrence of any of the following
events of termination, at which time it shall immediately become void and shall have no further effect:

         (a)   The building or premises is not put to the permitted use for a period of one year or more from the effective date of
the ordinance authorizing issuance of the permit;

         (b)   The permit expires by its own terms;

         (c)   The property is rezoned;

         (d)   Another conditional use permit is approved for the site;

         (e)   The building or premises is substantially enlarged, extended, reconstructed or altered;

         (f)   The use of the building or premises is materially expanded, increased or otherwise altered; or

         (g)   The violation of any one or more of the conditions of approval.

      (2)   For purposes of this section the City Manager shall have the authority, subject to review by the Zoning Board of
Adjustment, to determine whether an event of termination has occurred. Whenever the City Manager shall make a formal
determination as to whether an event of termination has occurred, he shall promptly make and forward to the Planning and
Zoning Commission and Zoning Board of Adjustment a written report describing the facts surrounding such determination
and the reasons for such determination.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01)



1421

3707

1418 1429
1403

1410

3701

3915

1425

1416

1417

3819

1415
3800

1412

1417

3905

0

0

1420

3901

1402

1405

3730

1427

3711

1403

3904

3903
1404

1422

1406 1410

1414

0

1407
1426

1621

3715

3814

1412

1408

1413

3909

0

1406
1425

1400

1431

1424

0

0

3705

3623

1419

1401

3904

3801

1420

1423

1418

1413

0

1424

39
08

3711

1422

0

3909

1419

8523

3812

1404

1405

3816

1415

1411

3905

0

1411

3710

3622

1401

1409
1623

1428

3902

3811

1402

3720

3900

1400

3717

3614

1430

1431

1709

3827

3810

3620

1426

1416

1408

3700

1421

1407
1409

3901
1407

1414

STILLHOUSE LAKE RD

FULLER LN

QUAIL HOLLOW RD

QUAIL RUN

GISELA LN

WEDGEWOOD DR

SUMMER GLEN DR

LAKECLIFFE DR

ROCKY HILL DR

GOMER LN

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-27

1411 Gomer Ln.

Location

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



1421

3707

1418 1429
1403

1410

3701

3915

1425

1416

1417

3819

1415
3800

1412

1417

3905

0

0

1420

3901

1402

1405

3730

1427

3711

1403

3904

3903
1404

1422

1406 1410

1414

0

1407
1426

1621

3715

3814

1412

1408

1413

3909

0

1406
1425

1400

1431

1424

0

0

3705

3623

1419

1401

3904

3801

1420

1423

1418

1413

0

1424

39
08

3711

1422

0

3909

1419

8523

3812

1404

1405

3816

1415

1411

3905

0

1411

3710

3622

1401

1409
1623

1428

3902

3811

1402

3720

3900

1400

3717

3614

1430

1431

1709

3827

3810

3620

1426

1416

1408

3700

1421

1407
1409

3901
1407

1414

STILLHOUSE LAKE RD

FULLER LN

QUAIL HOLLOW RD

QUAIL RUN

GISELA LN

WEDGEWOOD DR

SUMMER GLEN DR

LAKECLIFFE DR

ROCKY HILL DR

GOMER LN

Z21-27

1411 Gomer Ln.

Zoning Districts
B-3 Local Business District

B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District

R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-1 (M) One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District

R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District

Zoning

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



1421

3707

1418 1429
1403

1410

3701

3915

1425

1416

1417

3819

1415
3800

1412

1417

3905

0

0

1420

3901

1402

1405

3730

1427

3711

1403

3904

3903
1404

1422

1406 1410

1414

0

1407
1426

1621

3715

3814

1412

1408

1413

3909

0

1406
1425

1400

1431

1424

0

0

3705

3623

1419

1401

3904

3801

1420

1423

1418

1413

0

1424

39
08

3711

1422

0

3909

1419

8523

3812

1404

1405

3816

1415

1411

3905

0

1411

3710

3622

1401

1409
1623

1428

3902

3811

1402

3720

3900

1400

3717

3614

1430

1431

1709

3827

3810

3620

1426

1416

1408

3700

1421

1407
1409

3901
1407

1414

STILLHOUSE LAKE RD

FULLER LN

QUAIL HOLLOW RD

QUAIL RUN

GISELA LN

WEDGEWOOD DR

SUMMER GLEN DR

LAKECLIFFE DR

ROCKY HILL DR

GOMER LN

Z21-27

1411 Gomer Ln.

Existing Land Use
Single-Family Residence

Duplex

Manufactured Home

Commercial

USACOE/Drainage

Vacant

Existing Land Use

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



1421

3707

1418 1429
1403

1410

3701

3915

1425

1416

1417

3819

1415
3800

1412

1417

3905

0

0

1420

3901

1402

1405

3730

1427

3711

1403

3904

3903
1404

1422

1406 1410

1414

0

1407
1426

1621

3715

3814

1412

1408

1413

3909

0

1406
1425

1400

1431

1424

0

0

3705

3623

1419

1401

3904

3801

1420

1423

1418

1413

0

1424

39
08

3711

1422

0

3909

1419

8523

3812

1404

1405

3816

1415

1411

3905

0

1411

3710

3622

1401

1409
1623

1428

3902

3811

1402

3720

3900

1400

3717

3614

1430

1431

1709

3827

3810

3620

1426

1416

1408

3700

1421

1407
1409

3901
1407

1414

STILLHOUSE LAKE RD

FULLER LN

QUAIL HOLLOW RD

QUAIL RUN

GISELA LN

WEDGEWOOD DR

SUMMER GLEN DR

LAKECLIFFE DR

ROCKY HILL DR

GOMER LN

Z21-27

1411 Gomer Ln.

Low Density Residential

Residential Estate

Ú Ú Ú
Ú Ú ÚOverlook Utilization Area

Proposed Future Land Use

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet



1421

3707

1418 1429
1403

1410

3701

3915

1425

1416

1417

3819

1415
3800

1412

1417

3905

0

0

1420

3901

1402

1405

3730

1427

3711

1403

3904

3903
1404

1422

1406 1410

1414

0

1407
1426

1621

3715

3814

1412

1408

1413

3909

0

1406
1425

1400

1431

1424

0

0

3705

3623

1419

1401

3904

3801

1420

1423

1418

1413

0

1424

39
08

3711

1422

0

3909

1419

8523

3812

1404

1405

3816

1415

1411

3905

0

1411

3710

3622

1401

1409
1623

1428

3902

3811

1402

3720

3900

1400

3717

3614

1430

1431

1709

3827

3810

3620

1426

1416

1408

3700

1421

1407
1409

3901
1407

1414

STILLHOUSE LAKE RD

FULLER LN

QUAIL HOLLOW RD

QUAIL RUN

GISELA LN

WEDGEWOOD DR

SUMMER GLEN DR

LAKECLIFFE DR

ROCKY HILL DR

GOMER LN

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-27

1411 Gomer Ln.

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

200 Foot Notified Properties (12)

400 Foot Notified Properties (28)

Recommend Approval (5)

Notification

0 200 400 600 800100
Feet















Page 1 of 3 

 

          CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-28                     AGENDA ITEM# VII-4 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                               DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO CHANGE ZONING 

DESIGNATION FROM R-3 (MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) TO R-1 (M) 

(ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT WITH MANUFACTURED HOUSING) ON 

PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS VALLEY VIEW THIRD EXT, BLOCK 010, LOT 0015, 

PROPERTY ID #127376, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 228 E. VALLEY ROAD, 

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE 

ACTION. 

 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of  R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling 

District) to R-1 (M) (One Family Dwelling District with manufactured housing) on property 

described as Valley View Third Ext, Block 010, Lot 0015, Property ID #127376, generally located 

at 228 E. Valley Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. According to the Bell County Tax 

Records, the property consists of approximately 9,375 square feet of vacant land.  

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North Single-Family Residence Medium Density Residential 
R-2  

(Two-Family Dwelling District) 

South Commercial 
Regional Commercial 

Centers 

B-4 

(Secondary and Highway Business 

District) 

East Manufactured Home Medium Density Residential 
R-3  

(Multi-Family Dwelling District) 

West Single-Family Residence Medium Density Residential 
R-2  

(Two-Family Dwelling District) 

 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map identifies this area is designated for Medium Density Residential; 

staff believes the proposed rezoning with its intended use will not likely have any adverse impact 

on the neighborhood and would be consistent with the 2021 updates to the City of Harker Heights 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Assumptions. 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

A majority of this property lies within the 100-year floodway, but none is within the 500-year 

flood hazard area. If a structure is built or placed upon this property, the Finished Floor Elevation 

(FFE) would have to be a minimum of 2’ (2-feet) above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), and the 

applicant would be required to provide an Elevation Certificate from a Texas Design Professional. 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out forty-two (42) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. As 

of October 20, 2021, one (1) response was received in favor of the request, and three (3) responses 

were received in opposition of the request. Any additional responses received after the above date 

will be provided during the meeting.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 

the zoning designation from R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (M) (One Family 

Dwelling District with manufactured housing) on property described as Valley View Third Ext, 

Block 010, Lot 0015, Property ID #127376, generally located at 228 E. Valley Road, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on the following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan and 

FLUM. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

3. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

4. The proposed use and rezoning does not pose an adverse impact to the public health, safety, 

or general welfare.  

 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (2-4) on a motion to recommend approval of an ordinance to change 

the zoning designation from R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District) to R-1 (M) (One Family 

Dwelling District with manufactured housing) on property described as Valley View Third Ext, 

Block 010, Lot 0015, Property ID #127376, generally located at 228 E. Valley Road, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas. The motion failed due to a lack of a majority vote. The four Planning 

and Zoning Commissioners who voted against approval cited adverse impact on adjoining uses 

and zoning districts and incompatibility with existing uses in the neighborhood as the justification 

for denial. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

ACTION BY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to change the zoning designation from R-3 (Multi-Family Dwelling District) to 

R-1 (M) (One Family Dwelling District with manufactured housing) on property described 

as Valley View Third Ext, Block 010, Lot 0015, Property ID #127376, generally located 

at 228 E. Valley Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s 

recommendation and findings. 

2.         Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. Ordinance 

4. Location Map 

5. Zoning Map 

6. Existing Land Use Map 

7. Future Land Use Map 

8. Flood Map 

9. Notification Area Map 

10. Public Responses 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

R-1 (M) (ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT WITH MANUFACTURED 

HOUSING) ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS VALLEY VIEW THIRD EXT, 

BLOCK 010, LOT 0015, PROPERTY ID #127376, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 

228 E. VALLEY ROAD, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned R-3 (Multi-Family 

Dwelling District) to R-1 (M) (One Family Dwelling District With Manufactured 

Housing) on property described as Valley View Third Ext, Block 010, Lot 0015, Property 

Id #127376, generally located at 228 E. Valley Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, 

Texas. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

2021-   11/09/21 Granting R-1 (M) (One Family 

Dwelling District With Manufactured 

Housing) on property described as 

Valley View Third Ext, Block 010, Lot 

0015, Property Id #127376, generally 

located at 228 E. Valley Road, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on 

November 9, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 









§ 155.020  R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted by right:

      (1)   Site-built, single-family dwellings and industrialized housing.

      (2)   Church or other place of worship.

      (3)   Municipal buildings, non-profit libraries or museums, police and fire stations, public utilities (without outside storage
yards or electric substations), public parks, playgrounds, municipal golf courses, public recreation facilities, and community
buildings.

      (4)   Customary home occupations as defined in § 155.003.

      (5)   Accessory structure.

         (a)   One small accessory building (not exceeding 144 square feet) per residence customarily incident to the above
uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject to the following requirements:

            1.   Structure must be built upon a moveable foundation;

            2.   Structure cannot exceed 12 feet in height;

            3.   Structure must set behind the rear facade of the main residence building and must be setback five feet from the
rear property line and six feet from the side property line; and

            4.   Materials, building design, and construction must comply with the requirements of Ch. 150.

         (b)   Large accessory buildings customarily incident to the above uses (not involving the conduct of a business) subject
to the following requirements:

            1.   Building materials and facade must be consistent with the main residence building materials and facade;

            2.   Large accessory building must be behind the front facade of the main residence;

            3.   The height of the large accessory building cannot exceed that of the main residence building;

            4.   Number, size, setbacks and height requirements based on the size of the lot as follows:

 

Lot Size

Number of
Large

Accessory
Structures

Allowed

Maximum
Aggregate Size

of All Accessory
Structures

Setbacks Maximum
Height

< 10,000 square feet 1 250 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> 10,000 square feet
< .5 acre 1 500 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 10 feet

15 feet

> .5 acre
< 1 acre 2 1,000 square feet

Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

> 1 acre 4 1,500 square feet
Front: 25 feet
Side: 6 feet
Rear: 20 feet

24 feet

 

      (6)   Private garage.

      (7)   Home based child care.

      (8)   Real estate sales office, or temporary living quarters to provide security during the development of residential
subdivisions, but not to exceed two years.

      (9)   Low impact telecommunication towers.

      (10)   Public schools.

   (B)   Conditional uses.  The following require conditional use permits:

      (1)   Private schools having a curriculum equal to a public elementary, high school, or institution of higher learning
(except home schooling).



(2) Neighborhood association facilities.

(3) Farms, nurseries, truck gardens and greenhouses, provided no sales offices are maintained and no livestock are
kept within 250 feet of a residence of any person other than the farm owner.

(4) Accessory dwelling for a relative or servant (not for rent).

(5) Accessory structure as provided by § 155.040.

(C) Height regulations.  No building shall exceed two and one-half stories or 35 feet in height.

(D) Front yard, side yard, and rear yard.  As per Table 21-A.

(E) Intensity of use.  Every lot or tract of land shall have an area of not less than 8,400 square feet and an average
overall width of not less than 70 feet and a minimum lot frontage of not less than 45 feet.  Except that if a lot or tract should
have less area or width than is herein required and its boundary lines along their entire length should touch lands under
other ownership on the effective date of this chapter and shall not have changed since the date, such parcel of land may be
used for a single family dwelling.

(F) Additional use, height, and area regulation.  Additional use, height, and area regulations and exceptions are found in §
155.040.

(G) R-1(M) zoning designation.  R-1(M) is a one family residential lot that also allows manufactured homes. All
manufactured housing structures installed after December 31, 1999, must be installed on a permanent foundation, as that
term is defined in § 152.01.

(1) In order to be approved, the manufactured home must be found to have design compatibility with other dwellings in
the neighborhood.

(2) The following standards apply to any placement of a manufactured home on a lot after December 31, 1999:

(a) Roofing shall be similar in color, material and appearance to the roofing material commonly used on residential
dwellings within the community or comparable to the predominant materials used on dwellings within the neighborhood.

Materials shall include asphalt composition, shingle, tile, crushed rock, standing seam metal or similar materials (except all
other metal). Roof pitch shall be a minimum of 3/12.

(b) Exterior siding shall be similar in color, material, and appearance to the exterior siding material commonly used on
residential dwellings within the community or comparable to predominant materials used on dwellings within the
neighborhood. Exterior siding shall be of brick, wood, stucco, plaster, concrete or other material which is finished in a non-
glossy and non-reflective manner.

(c) If a garage/carport is constructed, it must be similar in appearance to others in the neighborhood and constructed
of like materials as that of the primary home.

(d) Two all-weather surface off street parking spaces meeting the requirements of § 155.061 shall be provided.

(3) Every manufactured home shall be placed so that the entrance or front of the home faces or parallels the principal
street frontage, except:

(a) In cases where the lot is one acre or greater and the home is located more than 50 feet from the street; or

(b) Where the lot width is 60 feet or less.

(4) All entrances to a manufactured home shall be provided with permanent steps, porch or similar suitable entry.

(5) The lot must meet all applicable requirements of Chapter 154, and shall comply with the area regulations in (D) of
this section. Variance in setbacks may be given in inches not to exceed one foot at the Building Official’s discretion.

(H) Signs   As per Chapter 151.

(I) Parking.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

(J) Storage.  Open storage is prohibited except for materials for the residents’ use, such as firewood, gardening
materials, and similar materials.

(K) Landscaping.  All yards shall have vegetative groundcover of sufficient quality and quantity, or other city-approved
groundcover, to control dust, erosion and sediment upon final inspections. In addition, a minimum of two six-foot-tall trees,
measuring two inches or more in caliper (diameter) when measured 12 inches from the base of the trunk, and eight three-
gallon shrubs, are required in the front yard.

(L) Industrialized housing.

(1) Industrialized housing shall be considered real property and must:

(a) Have a value equal to or greater than the median taxable value for each single-family dwelling located within 500
feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located, as determined by the most recent certified tax
appraisal roll for the county;

kramirez
Highlight



         (b)   Have exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration compatible with the single-family
dwellings located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is proposed to be located;

         (c)   Comply with city aesthetic standards, building setbacks, side and rear yard offsets, subdivision control,
architectural landscaping, square footage, and other site requirements applicable to single-family dwellings;

         (d)   Be securely fixed to a permanent foundation; and

         (e)   Have all local permits and licenses that are applicable to site-built housing.

      For purposes of this division, VALUE means the taxable VALUE of the industrialized housing and lot after installation of
the housing.

      (2)   Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, erect, install or move any industrialized housing into the
city shall first make application to the Building Official and obtain the required permits. In addition to any other information
otherwise required for such permits, the application shall:

         (a)   Identify each single-family dwelling located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be
located, and show the taxable value for each such dwelling, as determined by the most recent certified tax appraisal roll for
the county;

         (b)   Describe the exterior siding, roofing, roof pitch, foundation fascia, and fenestration for each single-family dwelling
located within 500 feet of the lot on which the industrialized housing is to be located;

         (c)   Describe the permanent foundation and method of attachment proposed for the industrialized housing; and

         (d)   State the anticipated taxable value of the industrialized housing and the lot after installation of the industrialized
housing.

      (3)   A person commits an offense if the person:

         (a)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing in the city without first obtaining a permit as
required by this section; or

         (b)   Constructs, erects, installs or moves any industrialized housing into the city unless such industrialized housing
complies with this section.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2002-28, passed 11-12-02; Am. Ord. 2006-40, passed 10-24-06; Am. Ord. 2010-
32, passed 10-12-10; Am. Ord. 2011-08, passed 4-19-11)



217

227

213

200

214

216

101

0

231

200

218

514

0

519

224

230

205

232

0

0

521

518

215

214

517

204

204

223
206

206

210

128

220

205

224

516

515

221
236

208

203

202
204

0

232

228

233

225

20
0

207

0

22
3

213

206

0

225
229

235

212

202

237

228

211

210

470

480

227

216

230

212

203

219

220

209

524

237

236

226

206

229

512

210

218

217

234

201

215

208

0

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VALLEY RD

N A
MY

 LN

E KATHEY RD

PE
CA

N 
DR

COX DR

TURNBO RD

BIG OAKS H

BIG
OA

KS
A

CO
X A

CC
ES

S B

BIG
 OA

KS
 A

BI
G

OA
KS

E

PL
EA

SA
NT

 VI
EW

 E

LA
ND

MA
RK

 O
AK

 B

BIG OAKS F

BIG OAKS G
LA

ND
MA

RK
 O

AK
 A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-28

228 E. Valley Rd.

Location

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet



217

227

213

200

214

216

101

0

231

200

218

514

0

519

224

230

205

232

0

0

521

518

215

214

517

204

204

223
206

206

210

128

220

205

224

516

515

221
236

208

203

202
204

0

232

228

233

225

20
0

207

0

22
3

213

206

0

225
229

235

212

202

237

228

211

210

470

480

227

216

230

212

203

219

220

209

524

237

236

226

206

229

512

210

218

217

234

201

215

208

0

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VALLEY RD

N A
MY

 LN

E KATHEY RD

PE
CA

N 
DR

COX DR

TURNBO RD

BIG OAKS H

BIG
OA

KS
A

CO
X A

CC
ES

S B

BIG
 OA

KS
 A

BI
G

OA
KS

E

PL
EA

SA
NT

 VI
EW

 E

LA
ND

MA
RK

 O
AK

 B

BIG OAKS F

BIG OAKS G
LA

ND
MA

RK
 O

AK
 A

Z21-28

228 E. Valley Rd.

Zoning Districts
B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District

B-5 General Business District

R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-1 (M) One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District

R1-I One-Family Infill Dwelling District

R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District

R-3 Multi-Family Dwelling District

R-MH Manufactured Home Park District

Zoning

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet



217

227

213

200

214

216

101

0

231

200

218

514

0

519

224

230

205

232

0

0

521

518

215

214

517

204

204

223
206

206

210

128

220

205

224

516

515

221
236

208

203

202
204

0

232

228

233

225

20
0

207

0

22
3

213

206

0

225
229

235

212

202

237

228

211

210

470

480

227

216

230

212

203

219

220

209

524

237

236

226

206

229

512

210

218

217

234

201

215

208

0

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VALLEY RD

N A
MY

 LN

E KATHEY RD

PE
CA

N 
DR

COX DR

TURNBO RD

BIG OAKS H

BIG
OA

KS
A

CO
X A

CC
ES

S B

BIG
 OA

KS
 A

BI
G

OA
KS

E

PL
EA

SA
NT

 VI
EW

 E

LA
ND

MA
RK

 O
AK

 B

BIG OAKS F

BIG OAKS G
LA

ND
MA

RK
 O

AK
 A

Z21-28

228 E. Valley Rd.

Existing Land Use
Single-Family Residence

Duplex

Multi-Family Residence

Manufactured Home

Single-Wide Trailer

Double-Wide Trailer

Mobile Home Park

Retail

Commercial

Public/Semi-Public

Park/Open Space

USACOE/Drainage

Vacant/Agriculture

Existing Land Use

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet



217

227

213

200

214

216

101

0

231

200

218

514

0

519

224

230

205

232

0

0

521

518

215

214

517

204

204

223
206

206

210

128

220

205

224

516

515

221
236

208

203

202
204

0

232

228

233

225

20
0

207

0

22
3

213

206

0

225
229

235

212

202

237

228

211

210

470

480

227

216

230

212

203

219

220

209

524

237

236

226

206

229

512

210

218

217

234

201

215

208

0

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VALLEY RD

N A
MY

 LN

E KATHEY RD

PE
CA

N 
DR

COX DR

TURNBO RD

BIG OAKS H

BIG
OA

KS
A

CO
X A

CC
ES

S B

BIG
 OA

KS
 A

BI
G

OA
KS

E

PL
EA

SA
NT

 VI
EW

 E

LA
ND

MA
RK

 O
AK

 B

BIG OAKS F

BIG OAKS G
LA

ND
MA

RK
 O

AK
 A

Z21-28

228 E. Valley Rd.

Medium Density Residential

High Density Residential

Regional Commercial Centers

Community Center

Government/Public Space

Parks & Open Space

Proposed Future Land Use

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet



National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or DepthZone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR

Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mileZone X

Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood HazardZone X

Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes.Zone X

Area with Flood Risk due to LeveeZone D

NO SCREENArea of Minimal Flood HazardZone X

Area of Undetermined Flood HazardZone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer

Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available

No Digital Data Available

Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below.
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap
accuracy standards

The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 10/18/2021 at 11:40 AM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.

This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes.

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

B
20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate
point selected by the user and does not represent
an authoritative property location.

1:6,000

97°39'45"W 31°5'35"N

97°39'8"W 31°5'4"N

Basemap: USGS National Map: Orthoimagery: Data refreshed October, 2020



217

227

213

200

214

216

101

0

231

200

218

514

0

519

224

230

205

232

0

0

521

518

215

214

517

204

204

223
206

206

210

128

220

205

224

516

515

221
236

208

203

202
204

0

232

228

233

225

20
0

207

0

22
3

213

206

0

225
229

235

212

202

237

228

211

210

470

480

227

216

230

212

203

219

220

209

524

237

236

226

206

229

512

210

218

217

234

201

215

208

0

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VALLEY RD

N A
MY

 LN

E KATHEY RD

PE
CA

N 
DR

COX DR

TURNBO RD

BIG OAKS H

BIG
OA

KS
A

CO
X A

CC
ES

S B

BIG
 OA

KS
 A

BI
G

OA
KS

E

PL
EA

SA
NT

 VI
EW

 E

LA
ND

MA
RK

 O
AK

 B

BIG OAKS F

BIG OAKS G
LA

ND
MA

RK
 O

AK
 A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-28

228 E. Valley Rd.

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

Recommend Denial (3)

Recommend Approval (1)

200 Foot Notified Properties (24)

400 Foot Notified Properties (42)

Notification

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet















Page 1 of 3 

 

          CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-29                    AGENDA ITEM# VII-5 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                               DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO CHANGE ZONING 

DESIGNATION FROM B-4 (SECONDARY AND HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO 

B-4 (SECONDARY AND HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT) WITH T DISTRICT 

OVERLAY ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS KERN ACRES 2ND EXTENSION & 

REVISION, BLOCK 001, LOTS 5-6, 15-16, PROPERTY ID #63808, GENERALLY 

LOCATED AT 110 W. VETERANS MEMORIAL BOULEVARD, HARKER HEIGHTS, 

BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of  B-4 (Secondary and Highway 

Business District) to B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) with T District overlay on 

property described as Kern Acres 2nd Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property 

ID #63808, generally located at 110 W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas. According to the Bell County Tax Records, the property consists of approximately 

.6492 acres, with an existing 3,540 square foot building, and 840 square foot enclosed porch.   

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Adjacent land uses include: 

 

 Existing Land Use Future Land Use Zoning 

North 
Vacant 

Commercial 

Community Center 

Regional Commercial Centers 

B-4 

(Secondary and Highway Business 

District) 

South 
Duplex 

Vacant 

Single-Family Residence 

Community Center 
R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) 

R-2 (Two-Family Dwelling District) 

East Commercial Community Center 

B-4 

(Secondary and Highway Business 

District) 

West Vacant 
Community Center 

Regional Commercial Centers 

B-4 

(Secondary and Highway Business 

District) 

 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map identifies this area is designated for both Community Center and 

Regional Commercial Centers; staff believes the proposed rezoning with its intended use will not 

likely have any adverse impact on the neighborhood and would be consistent with the 2021 updates 

to the City of Harker Heights Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out forty-one (41) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. 

As of October 20, 2021, two (2) responses were received in favor of the request, and two (2) 

responses were received in opposition of the request. Any additional responses received after 

the above date will be provided during the meeting.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of an ordinance to change 

the zoning designation from B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) to B-4 (Secondary 

and Highway Business District) with T District overlay on property described as Kern Acres 

2nd Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property ID #63808, generally located 

at 110 W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on the 

following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan and 

FLUM. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

3. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

4. The proposed use and rezoning does not pose an adverse impact to the public health, safety, 

or general welfare.  

 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (5-1) to recommend approval of an ordinance to change the zoning 

designation from B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) to B-4 (Secondary and Highway 

Business District) with T District overlay on property described as Kern Acres 2nd Extension & 

Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property ID #63808, generally located at 110 W. Veterans 

Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s recommendation and 

findings. 

 

The one dissenting Planning and Zoning Commissioner stated that this request would serve no 

substantial public purpose. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

ACTION BY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

 

Since the recommendation of the property was not approved by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission, per §155.212(D) (2) of the City of Harker Heights Code of Ordinances, a zoning 

district change will require a three-fourths (super-majority) approval vote from the City 

Council. 

 

(D) Vote Required 

“If such proposed amendment, supplement, or change has not been approved by the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the amendment, supplement or change shall not 

become effective except by a three-fourths approval vote by the City Council.” 

 

 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to change the zoning designation from B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business 

District) to B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) with T District overlay on 

property described as Kern Acres 2nd Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, 

Property ID #63808, generally located at 110 W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s recommendation and findings. 

2.         Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Pharr vs Tippitt Guidelines 

3. Application 

4. Ordinance 

5. Location Map 

6. Zoning Map 

7. Existing Land Use Map 

8. Future Land Use Map 

9. Notification Area Map 

10. Public Responses 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, GRANTING 

B-4 (SECONDARY AND HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT) WITH T DISTRICT 

OVERLAY ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS KERN ACRES 2ND EXTENSION 

& REVISION, BLOCK 001, LOTS 5-6, 15-16, PROPERTY ID #63808, 

GENERALLY LOCATED AT 110 W. VETERANS MEMORIAL BOULEVARD, 

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously zoned B-4 (Secondary 

And Highway Business District) to B-4 (Secondary And Highway Business District) With 

T District Overlay on property described as Kern Acres 2nd Extension & Revision, Block 

001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property Id #63808, generally located at 110 W. Veterans Memorial 

Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

2021-   11/09/21 Granting B-4 (Secondary And 

Highway Business District) With T 

District Overlay on property described 

as Kern Acres 2nd Extension & 

Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, 

Property Id #63808, generally located 

at 110 W. Veterans Memorial 

Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas. 

 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on 

November 9, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 



CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Harker Heights Planning & Development    Rev. 09/01/2021 

Texas  Supreme  Court  in  Pharr  v.  Tippitt  (1981  –  Case  #B‐9657)  established  general  guidelines which  the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council should take the following into consideration when making 
their respective recommendation and decision on a zoning request.  

 

1. Is the request in accordance with the City’s comprehensive plan, FLUM, zoning ordinances, or 
long‐range master plans and maps that have been adopted by ordinance? 

a. Is the request designed to lessen congestion in the streets; secure safety from fire, panic or 
other dangers; promote health and the general welfare; provide adequate light and air; prevent 
the overcrowding of land; avoid undue concentration of population; or facilitate the adequate 
provision of transportation, water, wastewater, drainage (stormwater), schools, parks and other 
public requirements? 

b. Will the request cause substantial detriment to the surrounding lands or serve no substantial 
public purpose?  

c. Is the request arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable? 
 
2. What, if any, is the nature and degree of adverse impact upon surrounding properties? 

a. Is the proposed zoning substantially inconsistent with the zoning of neighboring lands? 
(Whether the proposed zoning is more or less restrictive.) 

 
3. The suitability or unsuitability of the tract for use as presently zoned. 

a. Have there been substantially changed conditions in the neighborhood.  

b. The size of the tract in relation to the affected neighboring lands – is the tract a small tract or 

isolated tract asking for preferential treatment that differs from that accorded similar 

surrounding land without first proving changes in conditions? 

 

4. Whether the proposed zoning bears a substantial relationship to the public health, safety, morals 
or general welfare or protects and preserves historical and cultural places and areas. 

a. Is there a substantial public need or purpose for the proposed zoning? 

 

Effective 9/1/2021 HB 1475 Amended the Texas Local Government Code Section 211.009(b)(1) as follows: 

The board of adjustments may consider the following as grounds to determine whether compliance with the 

ordinance as applied to a structure that is the subject of the appeal would result in unnecessary hardship: 

1. The financial cost of compliance is greater than 50 percent of the appraised value of the structure as 
shown on the most recent appraisal roll certified to the assessor for the municipality under Section 
26.01, Tax Code. 

2. Compliance would result in a loss to the lot on which the structure is located of at least 25 percent of 
the area on which development may physically occur. 

3. Compliance would result in the structure not being in compliance with a requirement of a municipal 
ordinance, building code, or other requirement. 

4. Compliance  would  result  in  the  unreasonable  encroachment  on  an  adjacent  property  or 
easement. 

5. The municipality considers the structure to be a nonconforming structure. 





§ 155.031  B-4 SECONDARY AND HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT.

   (A)   Permitted uses.

      (1)   Any use permitted in the B-3 Local Business District that is permitted by right.

      (2)   Automobile parking lots.

      (3)   Bakery (wholesale).

      (4)   Dance hall and skating rink.

      (5)   Frozen food locker plant.

      (6)   Garage, public.

      (7)   Drive-in theater.

      (8)   Bowling alley.

      (9)   Tourist court or motel.

      (10)     Antique shop.

      (11)     Secondhand goods store: (No outside display, repair or storage.)

      (12)     Automobile and marine sales and re-pair, provided that:

         (a)   All service must take place in the interior (service bays) of the building. No tents may be used for repair or service,
except during times of urgent public necessity as declared by the Mayor or the Planning and Development Director and
posted as such at the main entrance to the City Hall.

         (b)   Oil storage facilities and refuse containers shall be screened from the view of travelers along public streets;

         (c)   There shall be no vehicle storage longer than 30 days, or auto sales including vehicles belonging to the owner
(except for sales lots);

         (d)   There shall be no dismantling or wrecking on premises;

         (e)   The use shall be operated in accordance with all applicable regulations including licensing from all government
agencies that have jurisdiction; and

         (f)   Gasoline storage tanks must be underground.

      (13)     Building material or lumber sales (no outside storage without screening).

      (14)     Cleaning, pressing and dyeing.

         (a)   No direct exterior exhaust from cleaning plant permitted.

         (b)   Dust must be controlled by either bag or filter and separator or precipitator so as to eliminate the exhausting of
dust, odor, fumes or noise outside the plant.

      (15)     Florist, garden shop, greenhouse, or nursery (retail).

      (16)    Ball park, stadium, athletic field (private).

      (17)    Philanthropic institutions (not else-where listed).

      (18)    Cabinet, upholstery, woodworking shop.

      (19)     Plumbing, electrical, air conditioning service shop (no outside storage without screening).

      (20)     Trade or business school.

      (21)     Any retail business not included in the Local Business District, provided that such use is not noxious or offensive
by reason of vibrations, smoke, light, odor, dust, gas or noise.

      (23)     Package liquor store (in wet areas only and subject to TABC regulations). The property, if located outside the
commercial zone of Business Hwy 190, must:

         (a)   Be part of a commercial development containing a minimum of 12,000 square feet of leaseable retail floor space
(for example, a shopping center or mall); and

         (b)    Be located a minimum of 300 feet, measured from the front door to the establishment, from any R zoned property
by the most commonly traveled public roadway.

      (24)   Brewpub or winery (in wet areas only and subject to TABC regulations). The property, if located outside the
commercial zone of Business Hwy 190 or I-14, must be located a minimum of 300 feet from any R zoned property,
measured from the front door of the establishment by the most commonly traveled public roadway. All manufacture,
blending, fermentation, processing, and packaging of alcoholic beverages must take place wholly inside a building.



   (B)   Conditional uses.  Any use permitted in a more restricted district that is permitted by a conditional use permit.

   (C)   Height regulations.  No building shall exceed three and one-half stories or 45 feet in height.

   (D)   Area regulations. The same as provided for B-2 District.

   (E)   Intensity of use.  There are no minimum lot area or lot width requirements.

   (F)   Parking regulations.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

   (G)   Signage.  As per Chapter 151.

   (H)   Screening requirements. As per § 155.050.

   (I)   Building facade. As per § 155.040.

   (J)   Landscaping requirements. As per § 155.051.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01; Am. Ord. 2019-14, passed 5-28-19)



§ 155.035  T DISTRICT.

   (A)   Definition.  The T District shall be for the sale of alcoholic beverages to include beer and wine for on premises
consumption. The following requirement shall apply to the T zoning: T zoning shall be for the sale of alcoholic beverages to
include beer and wine for on-premises consumption or for any use permitted in the B zoning of that property. Any premises
zoned T shall comply with the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Commission, all of which are adopted hereby and made a part hereof as if fully set out herein.

   (B)   Use regulations. A building or premises in this zoning district shall be used for the purpose as in division (A) above
and the following:

      (1)   General regulations.  All areas zoned T shall be described by metes and bounds and shall be restricted to indoor
areas, unless in the application a request is made for outdoor area zoning. Outdoor areas zoned T shall:

         (a)   Be enclosed by a fence or wall six feet in height.

         (b)   Be lighted when in use. Lighting shall be sufficient to illuminate the area in use but shall not be less than 100
watts of light for every 500 square feet.

         (c)   Have all required fire extinguisher equipment in accordance with the city's adopted Fire Code.

      (2)   Location.  No request for T zoning may be submitted under this chapter unless the property is located in a B-4 or B-
5 zoned district.

      (3)   Height regulations.  To any legal height not prohibited by other laws, codes, or ordinances.

      (4)   Yard regulations.

         (a)   Front yard.  There shall be a front yard having a minimum depth of 25 feet. No storage or similar use shall be
allowed in required front yard; automobile parking will be permitted in such yards in accordance with off street parking
requirements.

         (b)   Side yard.  No side yards are required except that on a corner lot, the side yard on a street shall be 25 feet. A lot
abutting an R District shall have a side yard of not less than 25 feet.

         (c)   Rear yard.  A rear yard is not required except when it abuts upon an R District in which case there shall be a rear
yard of not less than 25 feet.

      (5)   Intensity of use.  There are no minimum lot areas or lot width requirements, except that all parking regulations as
prescribed herein shall be followed

      (6)    Parking regulations.  As per §§ 155.061 through 155.068.

      (7)   Signs.  As per Chapter 151.

(Ord. 2001-36, passed 11-13-01)



217

123

407

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

125

120

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

113

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

302

100

507

103

120

125

304

104

117

110

124

111

0

207

103

105

506

102

119

404

208

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122

0

109

112

120

112

105

302

107

124

115

104
101

503

113

403

102

116

502

508

0

206

306

116

210

111

390

114

200

112

106

304

108

116

102

101

115

113

210

0

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

102

122

408

105

111

211

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

109

402

126

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

116

108

0

120

101

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

0

50
5

113

114

111

112

205

114

209

125
117

133

106

404

402

113

115

127

107

115

108

300

111

104

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

0
116

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

109

202

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

405

114

501

115

208

203

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N B
LV

D

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

W STACIE RD

E STACIE RD
W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-29

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

Location

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet



217

123

407

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

125

120

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

113

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

302

100

507

103

120

125

304

104

117

110

124

111

0

207

103

105

506

102

119

404

208

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122

0

109

112

120

112

105

302

107

124

115

104
101

503

113

403

102

116

502

508

0

206

306

116

210

111

390

114

200

112

106

304

108

116

102

101

115

113

210

0

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

102

122

408

105

111

211

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

109

402

126

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

116

108

0

120

101

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

0

50
5

113

114

111

112

205

114

209

125
117

133

106

404

402

113

115

127

107

115

108

300

111

104

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

0
116

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

109

202

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

405

114

501

115

208

203

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N B
LV

D

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

W STACIE RD

E STACIE RD
W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z21-29

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

Zoning Districts
B-4 Secondary and Highway Business District

B-5 General Business District

R-1 One-Family Dwelling District

R-1 (M) One-Family Manufactured Home Dwelling District

R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District

R2-I Two-Family Infill Dwelling District

R-3 Multi-Family Dwelling District

R-MH Manufactured Home Park District

R-MU Mixed Residential

Zoning

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet



217

123

407

125

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

120

113

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

125

302

100

507

103

120

304

104

117

110

124

0

207

103

105

506

102

111

119

208

0

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122
109

112

120

404

112

105

107

124

115

104

302

113

403

101

503

116

502

508

102

390

0

206

306

116

210

111

114

116

102200

112

106

304

108

101

115

0

113

210

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

408

105

111

211

102

122

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

126

109

402

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

120

101

116

108

0

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

50
5

113

0
114

125
117

133

111

112

205

114

209

106

404
115

402

113

115

127

107

300

108

111

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

104
0

116

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

109

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

202

405

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

115

208

203

114

501

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N
BL

VD

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

E STACIE RD

W STACIE RD

W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z21-29

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

Existing Land Use
Single-Family Residence

Duplex

Multi-Family Residence

Manufactured Home

Single-Wide Trailer

Double-Wide Trailer

Mobile Home Park

Office

Retail

Commercial

Public/Semi-Public

Park/Open Space

USACOE/Drainage

Vacant/Agriculture

Existing Land Use

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet



217

123

407

125

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

120

113

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

125

302

100

507

103

120

304

104

117

110

124

0

207

103

105

506

102

111

119

208

0

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122
109

112

120

404

112

105

107

124

115

104

302

113

403

101

503

116

502

508

102

390

0

206

306

116

210

111

114

116

102200

112

106

304

108

101

115

0

113

210

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

408

105

111

211

102

122

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

126

109

402

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

120

101

116

108

0

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

50
5

113

0
114

125
117

133

111

112

205

114

209

106

404
115

402

113

115

127

107

300

108

111

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

104
0

116

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

109

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

202

405

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

115

208

203

114

501

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N
BL

VD

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

E STACIE RD

W STACIE RD

W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z21-29

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

High Density Residential

Regional Center

Community Center

Government/Public Space

Parks & Open Space

Proposed Future Land Use

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet



217

123

407

125

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

120

113

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

125

302

100

507

103

120

304

104

117

110

124

0

207

103

105

506

102

111

119

208

0

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122
109

112

120

404

112

105

107

124

115

104

302

113

403

101

503

116

502

508

102

390

0

206

306

116

210

111

114

116

102200

112

106

304

108

101

115

0

113

210

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

408

105

111

211

102

122

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

126

109

402

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

120

101

116

108

0

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

50
5

113

0
114

125
117

133

111

112

205

114

209

106

404
115

402

113

115

127

107

300

108

111

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

104
0

116

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

109

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

202

405

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

115

208

203

114

501

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N
BL

VD

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

E STACIE RD

W STACIE RD

W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-29

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

Recommend Denial (2)

Recommend Approval (2)

200 Foot Notified Properties (19)

400 Foot Notified Properties (42)

Notification

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet







Page 1 of 3 

 

          CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

Z21-29-F                AGENDA ITEM# VII-6 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                              DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO AMEND THE 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN'S FUTURE LAND USE MAP TO CHANGE THE 

'COMMUNITY CENTER' AND 'REGIONAL CENTER' DESIGNATIONS TO A 

'REGIONAL CENTER' DESIGNATION ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS KERN 

ACRES 2ND EXTENSION & REVISION, BLOCK 001, LOTS 5-6, 15-16, PROPERTY ID 

#63808, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 110 W. VETERANS MEMORIAL BOULEVARD, 

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE 

ACTION. 

 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The applicant is requesting a change from the current zoning of  B-4 (Secondary and Highway 

Business District) to B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) with T District overlay on 

property described as Kern Acres 2nd Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property 

ID #63808, generally located at 110 W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas. According to the Bell County Tax Records, the property consists of approximately 

.6492 acres, with an existing 3,540 square foot building, and 840 square foot enclosed porch.  The 

Land Use Plan shows this parcel to be located within the Community Center and Regional Center 

designations. To keep the requested B-4 zoning compatible with the land use plan, the land use 

designation will need to be amended to Regional Center.  

 

Surrounding Future Land Uses 

Adjacent future land uses include: 

 

 Future Land Plan 

North 
Community Center 

Regional Centers 

South Community Center 

East Community Center 

West 
Community Center 

Regional Centers 

The 2021 Future Land Use Map identifies this area is designated for both Community Center 

and Regional Centers. The zoning designations included in Community Center land use include: 

B-1 (Office District), B-2 (Neighborhood Business District), B-3 (Local Business District), and 

PD-B (Planned Development Business). The zoning designations included in Regional Center 

land use include: B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District), B-5 (General Business 

District), PD-B (Planned Development Business), and PD-M (Planned Development Mixed 

Use). 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Flood Damage Prevention: 

No portion of this property lies within the 100 year or 500-year flood hazard areas. 

 

Notices: 

Staff sent out forty-one (41) notices to property owners within the 400-foot notification area. 

As of October 27, 2021, two (2) responses were received in favor of the request, and two (2) 

responses were received in opposition of the request. Any additional responses received after 

the above date will be provided during the meeting.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission of an ordinance to amend 

the Comprehensive Plan's Future Land Use Map to change the 'Community Center' And 

'Regional Center' designations to a 'Regional Center' designation on property described as Kern 

Acres 2nd Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property ID #63808, generally 

located at 110 W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based 

on the following:   

1. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with the current Comprehensive Plan and 

FLUM. 

2. The proposed use and rezoning would not likely have any adverse impact on adjoining 

uses and zoning districts. 

3. The proposed use and rezoning is compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood. 

4. The proposed use and rezoning does not pose an adverse impact to the public health, safety, 

or general welfare.  

 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance to amend the 

Comprehensive Plan's Future Land Use Map to change the 'Community Center' And 'Regional 

Center' designations to a 'Regional Center' designation on property described as Kern Acres 2nd 

Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property ID #63808, generally located at 110 

W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s 

recommendation and findings. 

 

 

ACTION BY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation an 

ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan's Future Land Use Map to change the 

'Community Center' And 'Regional Center' designations to a 'Regional Center' designation 

on property described as Kern Acres 2nd Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-

16, Property ID #63808, generally located at 110 W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker 

Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on staff’s recommendation and findings. 

2.         Any other action deemed necessary. 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

2. Application 

3. Proposed Land Uses (Community Center, Regional Center) 

4. Location Map 

5. Future Land Use Map 

6. Notification Area Map 

7. Public Responses 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN  ORDINANCE  OF  THE  CITY  OF  HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, 

AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN'S FUTURE LAND USE MAP TO 

CHANGE THE 'COMMUNITY CENTER' AND 'REGIONAL CENTER' 

DESIGNATIONS TO A 'REGIONAL CENTER' DESIGNATION ON PROPERTY 

DESCRIBED AS KERN ACRES 2ND EXTENSION & REVISION, BLOCK 001, 

LOTS 5-6, 15-16, PROPERTY ID #63808, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 110 W. 

VETERANS MEMORIAL BOULEVARD, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, 

TEXAS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is necessary and desirable to 

amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all in 

strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The Council officially finds and declares that the facts and recitations set 

forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are true and correct. 

SECTION 2: The hereinafter-described property, as previously designated  'Community 

Center' And 'Regional Center' to a 'Regional Center' designation on property described as 

Kern Acres 2nd Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 5-6, 15-16, Property ID #63808, 

generally located at 110 W. Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, Bell County, 

Texas. 

SECTION 3: Table VII, Table of Special Ordinances, of the Code is hereby 

supplemented by adding the following entry: 

 
Ord. No.  Date Passed   Description 

    

2021-   11/09/21 Amending the Comprehensive Plan's 

Future Land Use Map to change the 

'Community Center' And 'Regional 

Center' designations to a 'Regional 

Center' designation on property 

described as Kern Acres 2nd 

Extension & Revision, Block 001, Lots 

5-6, 15-16, Property ID #63808, 

generally located at 110 W. Veterans 

Memorial Boulevard, Harker Heights, 

Bell County, Texas. 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City 

Clerk shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on 

November 9, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary 
 

 









217

123

407

125

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

120

113

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

125

302

100

507

103

120

304

104

117

110

124

0

207

103

105

506

102

111

119

208

0

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122
109

112

120

404

112

105

107

124

115

104

302

113

403

101

503

116

502

508

102

390

0

206

306

116

210

111

114

116

102200

112

106

304

108

101

115

0

113

210

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

408

105

111

211

102

122

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

126

109

402

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

120

101

116

108

0

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

50
5

113

0
114

125
117

133

111

112

205

114

209

106

404
115

402

113

115

127

107

300

108

111

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

104
0

116

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

109

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

202

405

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

115

208

203

114

501

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N
BL

VD

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

E STACIE RD

W STACIE RD

W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-29-F

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

Location

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet



217

123

407

125

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

120

113

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

125

302

100

507

103

120

304

104

117

110

124

0

207

103

105

506

102

111

119

208

0

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122
109

112

120

404

112

105

107

124

115

104

302

113

403

101

503

116

502

508

102

390

0

206

306

116

210

111

114

116

102200

112

106

304

108

101

115

0

113

210

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

408

105

111

211

102

122

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

126

109

402

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

120

101

116

108

0

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

50
5

113

0
114

125
117

133

111

112

205

114

209

106

404
115

402

113

115

127

107

300

108

111

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

104
0

116

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

109

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

202

405

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

115

208

203

114

501

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N
BL

VD

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

E STACIE RD

W STACIE RD

W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Z21-29-F

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

High Density Residential

Regional Center

Community Center

Government/Public Space

Parks & Open Space

Proposed Future Land Use

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet



217

123

407

125

102

21
9

117

308

124

118

120

113

110

123

305

215

10
9

12
7

126

128

212

116

121

0

307

306

107

405

121

301

105

107

110

124

126

108

106

401

112

117

408

213

114

100

118

12
0

201

407

105

122

118

119

105

125

202

126

111

125

125

302

100

507

103

120

304

104

117

110

124

0

207

103

105

506

102

111

119

208

0

201

119

302

122

125

506
119

122
109

112

120

404

112

105

107

124

115

104

302

113

403

101

503

116

502

508

102

390

0

206

306

116

210

111

114

116

102200

112

106

304

108

101

115

0

113

210

127

101

0

109

115

118

104

408

105

111

211

102

122

121
108

109

201

0

505

202

406

114

104205

202

129

217

114

0

304

103

0

126

109

402

206

108 106

117

124

107

101

110

123

0

116

218

401

501

102

402

110

124

106

113

121

116304

508

109

103

117119

106

203

504

104

107

108

111

127

213

125

112

112

120

306

114

125

200

117

200
113

120

101

116

108

0

116

121

104
301

120

103

0

122
406

402

108

307

115

110

50
5

113

0
114

125
117

133

111

112

205

114

209

106

404
115

402

113

115

127

107

300

108

111

115

307

305

0

11
5

501

102

118

104
0

116

205

20
2

302

401

104

129

117

109

110

217

106

118

403

100

12
8

209

0

123

202

405

504

0
302

306

118

108

122

114

115

208

203

114

501

119

112

139

128

0

605

306

101

111

113

200

111

112

308

113

103

111

113

W VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

E VETERANS MEMORIAL BLVD

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

N A
NN

 BL
VD

W RUBY RD

S J
UA

NI
TA

 DR

S
AN

N
BL

VD

W ARLO RD

W VALLEY RD

RA
ND

Y B
LV

D

JA
NI

E D
R

S M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

N M
AR

Y J
O 

DR

E STACIE RD

W STACIE RD

W RUBY RD

COX DR

TURNBO RD

W MARK RD

E VALLEY RD

E KATHEY RD

W KATHEY RD

E ARLO RD

E MARK RD

CO
X

AC
CE

SS
 A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

Z21-29-F

110 W. Veterans Memorial Blvd.

200 Foot Buffer

400 Foot Buffer

Recommend Denial (2)

Recommend Approval (2)

200 Foot Notified Properties (19)

400 Foot Notified Properties (42)

Notification

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet











Page 1 of 2 

 

          CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

CIAC-21-01           AGENDA ITEM# VII-7 
FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                               DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021  

 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, 

TEXAS, ADOPTION OF LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND A CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENTS PLAN RELATING TO POSSIBLE ADOPTION OF IMPACT FEES 

FOR THE 2022 IMPACT FEE AREA, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The City adopted the current Future Land Use Map (FLUM) in 2007. Since November 2020, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) has received input and considered changes to the 2007 

FLUM.  On August 24, 2021, the P&Z voted 6-0 to recommend an updated Land Use Map to the 

City Council.  

 

The City previously retained Thonhoff Consulting Engineers to evaluate the current wastewater 

capacity in the service basin along FM 2410 east of Warrior’s Path. Mr. Thonhoff finished his 

report in February 2021 and determined that capital improvements to the City’s wastewater system 

were needed in order to service that basin. The City then entered into an agreement with Freese 

and Nichols to develop a wastewater impact fee for the eastern service area.  

 

The City’s consultant, Ms. Jessica Vassar with Freese and Nichols, has evaluated the Thonhoff 

report, Planning & Zoning Commission’s 2021 land use recommendations, current development 

activity, and the existing Future Land Use Map with respect to their contribution to developing an 

impact fee.  

 

On September 14, 2021, the City Council voted to set two public hearing dates to consider the land 

use assumptions and capital improvements plan relating to possible adoption of impact fees for the 

2022 wastewater impact fee area. The first public hearing was held on October 26, 2021. This is 

the second of the two set public hearing dates for this item.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommended approval to the CIAC of the land use assumptions and a capital improvements 

plan relating to possible adoption of impact fees for the 2022 wastewater impact fee area, as 

presented by Ms. Vassar.  Texas Local Government Code (LGC) Section 395.042 requires 

municipalities to hold a public hearing on a capital improvements plan prior to adoption by the 

City Council. Staff previously recommended that the City Council establish the public hearing 

dates for the October 26, 2021 and November 9, 2021 Council Meetings. These two dates met the 

LGC Sections 395.043 and 395.044 required timelines for public information availability and 

public notices.  



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

ACTION BY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE: 

According to Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code, Capital Improvement Advisory 

Committee (CIAC) serves as the advisory committee for the 2022 Wastewater Impact Fee study.  

 

On August 25, 2021, the CIAC voted 6-0 to recommend approval of both the Land Use 

Assumptions and a Capital Improvements Plan relating to possible adoption of Impact Fees for the 

2022 Wastewater Impact Fee Area, based on staff’s recommendation and findings. 

 

 

ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to approve or disapprove a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker 

Heights, Texas, adoption of Land Use Assumptions and a Capital Improvements Plan 

relating to possible adoption of Impact Fees for the 2022 Wastewater Impact Fee area. 

2. Any other action deemed necessary. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Proposed Resolution 

2. Exhibit A - Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER 

HEIGHTS, TEXAS, ADOPTING LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND A CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENTS PLAN RELATING TO POSSIBLE ADOPTION OF IMPACT 

FEES FOR THE 2022 WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE AREA. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 395, Texas Local Government Code, provides procedures for 

preparing land use assumptions and a capital improvements plan for the consideration of 

imposing wastewater impact fees within the city limits and service area boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, The Capital Improvements Advisory Committee has reviewed 

recommended that the City Council of the City of Harker Heights adopt the land use 

assumptions and capital improvement plan for the service areas designated in both 

documents as shown in attached Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council conducted two public hearings to receive comment from 

citizens and other interested parties concerning the adoption of the land use assumptions 

and capital improvement plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council (“Council”) of the City of Harker Heights (“City”) finds 

that after due notice and public hearings as required by law, and after consideration of the 

recommendation of the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee, it is necessary and 

desirable to amend the Code of Harker Heights (“Code”) as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Resolution was passed was open to the public, 

and notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, 

all in strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The City Council hereby adopts the land use assumptions and capital 

improvement plan as shown in the attached Exhibit “A”. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on 

November 9, 2021. 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS: 

 

 

  

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Helsham, City Secretary  



 

 

DRAFT  
WASTEWATER  

IMPACT FEE STUDY 
 

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN REPORT 

 

Prepared for: 

City of Harker Heights 
 

August 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: 

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC. 
10431 Morado Circle, Suite 300 

Austin, Texas 78759 

512-617-3100 

 



 

 

 

DRAFT  
WASTEWATER  

IMPACT FEE STUDY 
 

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN REPORT 

Prepared for: 

City of Harker Heights 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC. 
10431 Morado Circle, Suite 300 

Austin, Texas 78759 

512-617-3100 
 

FNI Project No.: HAK21373 

 

DRAFT 

THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF INTERIM 

REVIEW UNDER THE AUTHORITY 

OF JESSICA VASSAR, P.E., TEXAS 

NO. 108934 ON 8/18/2021.  IT IS 

NOT TO BE USED FOR 

CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING OR 

PERMIT PURPOSES. 

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC. 

TEXAS REGISTERED ENGINEERING 

FIRM F-2144 



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND AND SCOPE .................................................................................................. 1-1 

1.1 Texas Local Government Code ..................................................................................................... 1-1 

1.2 Methodology ....................................................................................................................................... 1-2 

1.3 List of Abbreviations ........................................................................................................................ 1-3 

2.0 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS ..................................................................................................... 2-1 

2.1 Service Area ......................................................................................................................................... 2-1 

2.2 Historical and Projected Growth ................................................................................................. 2-4 

2.2.1 Historical Population .............................................................................................................. 2-4 

2.2.2 Projected Growth ..................................................................................................................... 2-4 

3.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN ....................................................................................... 3-1 

3.1 Wastewater Load Projections ...................................................................................................... 3-1 

3.2 Wastewater System Improvements ........................................................................................... 3-1 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 2-1:  Impact Fee Service Area ....................................................................................... 2-2 

Figure 2-2:  Future Land Use .................................................................................................... 2-3 

Figure 3-1:  Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan ........................................... 3-3 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1-1:  List of Abbreviations ............................................................................................. 1-3 

Table 2-1:  Historical Population within City Limits ................................................................ 2-4 

Table 2-2:  Wastewater Impact Fee Service Area Growth ..................................................... 2-4 

Table 3-1:  Impact Fee Service Area Wastewater Flow Projections ....................................... 3-1 

Table 3-2:  Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan ........................................... 3-2 

 

  



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

  1-1  

1.0 BACKGROUND AND SCOPE 

In April 2021, the City of Harker Heights, Texas (City) authorized Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) to perform 

an impact fee analysis for the southeast portion of the City’s wastewater system.  The purpose of this 

report is to document the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan which will be used in the 

development and calculation of wastewater impact fees for the City of Harker Heights.  The methodology 

used herein satisfies the requirements of the Texas Local Government Code (TLGC) Section 395 (Section 

1.1) for the establishment of impact fees.  The City does not currently charge wastewater impact fees to 

new developments.  

1.1 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code requires an impact fee analysis before impact fees can 

be created and assessed.  Chapter 395 defines an impact fee as “a charge or assessment imposed by a 

political subdivision against new development in order to generate revenue for funding or recouping the 

costs of capital improvements or facility expansions necessitated by and attributable to the new 

development.”  In September 2001, Chapter 395 was amended creating the current procedure for 

implementing impact fees.  Chapter 395 identifies the following items as impact fee eligible costs: 

• Construction contract price 

• Surveying and engineering fees 

• Land acquisition costs 

• Fees paid to the consultant preparing or updating the capital improvements plan (CIP) 

• Projected interest charges and other finance costs for projects identified in the CIP 

Chapter 395 also identifies items that impact fees cannot be used to pay for, such as: 

• Construction, acquisition, or expansion of public facilities or assets other than those identified on 

the capital improvements plan 

• Repair, operation, or maintenance of existing or new capital improvements  

• Upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital improvements to serve existing 

development in order to meet stricter safety, efficiency, environmental, or regulatory standards 

• Upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital improvements to provide better 

service to existing development 



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

  1-2  

• Administrative and operating costs of the political subdivision 

• Principal payments and interest or other finance charges on bonds or other indebtedness, except 

as allowed above 

As a funding mechanism for capital improvements, impact fees allow cities to recover the costs associated 

with new or facility expansion in order to serve future development.  Statutory requirements mandate 

that impact fees be based on a specific list of improvements identified in a capital improvements program 

and only the cost attributed (and necessitated) by new growth over a 10-year period may be considered.  

As projects in the program are completed, planned costs are updated with actual costs to more accurately 

reflect the capital expenditure of the program.  Additionally, new capital improvement projects may be 

added to the system.   

1.2 METHODOLOGY 

Wastewater impact fee capital improvements plan (CIP) projects were developed for the City based on 

the land use assumptions, input from City staff, and projects from previous studies.  The recommended 

improvements will provide the required capacity to meet projected wastewater flows through year 2032.  

The projects identified are consistent with the Chapter 395 definition of impact fee eligible projects. 

As part of the impact fee development, FNI will conduct workshops with the City’s appointed Capital 

Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC) and City Council. FNI will calculate the maximum allowable 

impact fee utilizing the 50% credit methodology identified in TLGC Chapter 395.  The CIAC’s role includes 

reviewing the land use assumptions and impact fee CIP and recommending an impact fee rate to the City 

Council.  The City Council sets the impact fees to be collected.  



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

  1-3  

1.3 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS 

The list of abbreviations used in this report are presented in Table 1-1. 

 Table 1-1:  List of Abbreviations 

Abbreviation Actual 

CIAC Capital Improvement Advisory Committee 

CIP Capital Improvement Plan 

FNI Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

MGD Million Gallons per Day 

TCE Thonhoff Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

TLGC Texas Local Government Code 

 

 

 



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

2-1 

2.0 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS 

2.1 SERVICE AREA 

Projected land use is an important element in the analysis of wastewater collection and treatment 

systems.  To assist the City in determining the need and timing of capital improvements to serve future 

development, a reasonable estimation of future growth is required.  These assumptions will become the 

basis for the preparation of impact fee capital improvement plans for wastewater facilities. 

FNI worked with City staff to develop growth projections and land use assumptions for the study area 

during the development of this report.  The City is anticipating the majority of future developments to 

occur roughly within the southeast portion of the City, and therefore determined to set the wastewater 

impact fee service area to this boundary, shown on Figure 2-1.  The future land use for the service area is 

presented on Figure 2-2.   

  



TXWWTP

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä
Vä

VäVä
Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä
Vä

Lift Station

VFW
Lift Station

CTE
Lift Station

Osage
Lift Station

Rummel
Lift StationPueblo

Lift Station

Tonight
Lift Station

Wildewood
Lift Station

Fawn Valley
Lift Station

Warriors Path
Lift Station

Trimmier Creek
Lift Station

McGinnis
Lift Station

Evergreen
Lift Station

End-O-Trail
Lift Station

Rocky Ridge
Lift Station

Thoroughbred
Lift Station

Harker Heights
WWTP

Harker Heights
Lift Station

10''
12''

15'' 18''

16''

21'' 27''

20''

15
''

12''

16''

10''
10''

15
''

10''

21
''

16'
'

15
''

15''

10''

10''

12''
15

''

10''
12''

15''

10''

15''

12''

18''

12''

12''

15
''

21'
'

10''

10''

15''

16''

12''

12
''

27''

15''

10''

12''

16''

16''

10''

21''

15''

15
''

12''

10''
10''

16''

12
''

15''

6''

8''

4'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''
6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

8''

8''

6''

8''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

8''

8''

6''

4''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

8''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

4''
6''

6'
'

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

8''

8''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'' 6'
'

6''

6''

6'' 6''

8''

8'
'

6''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''
6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

4''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'' 6''

6''
6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''6''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

8''

6''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

4''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'' 6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

8''

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

Stillhouse Hollow Lake

Nola n Cree
k

Lam

pasas River

Trimmier Creek

Shaw Branch

Little
Nolan Creek

Yowell Creek

Chapparal Creek

Acorn Creek

Onion Creek

HayBr anch

Rock Creek

Caprice Ditch Nolanville Tributary

Embers Creek

Yowell Creek Trib

Tr immier Road Ditch

Little Trimmier Creek

O ld Florence Ditch

Liberty Ditch

Lampasas River

E KNIGHTS WAY

FULLER LN

COMANCHE GAP RD

STILLHOUSE LAKE RD

LAKESIDE DR

HI
GH

 O
AK

 D
R

EAGLE RIDGE

HIGHVIEW
DR

CAYUGA DR

CEDAR KNOB RD

SMITH

RUMMEL RD

QUAIL HOLLOW RD

OAKRIDGE BLVD

W CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY E

SHORELINE DR

BIG
VA

LL
EY

LN

W INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 14 E

PAWNEE DR

LA
KE

FR
ONT DR

GOMER LN

HA
NK

US
 A

ORLAN DR

EDWARDS DR

VALLEY OAKS DR

N R
OY

 RE
YN

OL
DS

 DR

ELBA DR

AP
AC

HE
 DR

LAKEVIEW DR

HILLTOP DR

LAKECLIFFE DR

TAHUAYA DR

SANDY POINT RD

QU
AN

AH
VA

LL
EY

RD

FL
INT

 O
AK

 DR

TONKAWA TRL

BIG OAKS A

SUMMER GLEN DR
OA

KW
OO

D D
R

TYE VALLEY RD

FL
AT

 RO
CK

 CV

MESQUI TE BRANCH DR

MEADOW CIR

D E L REYD
R

BL
UE

HERON LN

SCENIC TRAIL DR

ELMWOOD DR

CEDAR KNOB CIR

CITY ACCESS
A

BROKEN ARROW
DR

HICKORY VIEW

BELLA VISTA LOOP

CLIFFVIEW DR

CO
UN

TR
Y D

R

HAZEL A

JUNIPER DR

STAMPEDE CIR

WELCH CV

ATOKA TRCE

VISTA DR

CEDAR BLUFF CT

LAKECLIFFE CIR

!I

LEGEND
Vä Lift Station

TXWWTP Wastewater Treatment Plant

8" and Smaller
Wastewater Line

10" and Larger
Wastewater Line

Railroad

Road

River

Lake

Parcel

Wastewater Service Area

ETJ Boundary

City Limit

DRAFT FIGURE 2-1
CITY OF

HARKER HEIGHTS
WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE

SERVICE AREA

Created By Freese and Nichols, Inc.
Job No.:  HAK21373
Location: H:\W_WW_PLANNING\01_DELIVERABLES\01_EXISTING_SYSTEM\(Figure_1)-Wastewater_Impact_Fee_Service_Area.mxd
Updated: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 1:43:23 PM
User Name: 02818

0 2,000 4,000

SCALE IN FEET



Vä

Vä

Vä
Vä

Vä

Vä

Osage
Lift Station

Rummel
Lift Station

Pueblo
Lift Station

Fawn Valley
Lift Station

McGinnis
Lift Station

10''

15''

12''

18''

21''

27''

10
''

10''

10''
12''

12''

15
''

15
''

10''

15
''

10''
12

''

10
''

15
''

15''

10''

10''

12'
'

E KNIGHTS WAY

LAKESIDE DR

UTE TRL

COMANCHE GAP RD

INDIAN TRAIL DR

AZTEC TRCE

HI
GH

 O
AK

 D
R

EAGLE RIDGE

HIGHVIEW DR

WA
RR

IO
RS

 PA
TH

 RD

CAYUGA DR

RUMMEL RD

ME
RL

IN 
DR

BIG
 VA

LL
EY

 LN

LA
KE

FR
ON

T DR

OAKRIDGE BLVD

HOPI TRL

HA
NK

US
 A

CADDO LN

ORLAN DR

SHOSHONI TRL

PONTOTOC TRCE

SHORELINE DR

PIMA TRL

DAKOTA TRCE

PU
EB

LO
 TR

CE

AP
AC

HE
 DR

YUMA TRL

MU
GH

O 
DR

SANDY POINT RD

DO
UG

LA
S F

IR 
DR

TEJAS TRL

RIVE
R ROCK TR

L

LOBLOLLY DR

INCA DR

QU
AN

AH
 VA

LL
EY

 RD

JA
CK

SO
N D

R

YURON TRCE

WACO TRCE

FL
INT

 O
AK

 DR

JU
BIL

AT
IO

N D
R

TONKAWA TRL

HAZELNUT DR

VALLEY OAKS DR

SHASTA TRL

TE
CH

NY
 DR

RU
ST

LIN
G 

OA
KS

 DR

QUARRY TRL

JA
Y L

N

OA
KW

OO
D

DR

AL
PIN

E F
IR 

DR

TRU TRL

RUIZ DR

MOHICAN TRL

LE
AT

HE
RW

OO
D D

R

FL
AT

 RO
CK

 CV

MAYA TRL

MEADOW CIR

BLUE HERON LN

BROKEN BOW

NATCHEZ TRL

ELMWOOD
DR

OLD OAK RD

MOUNTAIN VIEW DR

ANCIENT OAKS C

CITY ACCESS A

GR
EE

N G
IAN

T D
R

MCGINNIS CT

PE
CA

N M
EA

DO
W 

LN

ANCIENT OAKS B

QU
AR

TZ
 TR

L

FA
UX

 PI
NE

 DR

SE
MI

NO
LE

 TR
CE

MARBLE TRL

LIM
ES

TO
NE

TR
L

HA
NK

US
 B

CO
UN

TR
Y DR

HE
RA

LD
 DR

ZU
NI 

TR
CE

FRASER FIR DR

APACHE LOOP

JUNIPER DR

BO
NA

NZ
A

DR

STAMPEDE CIR

ROUND CIR

LIBBY LN

CIT
Y A

CC
ES

S C

WILLOWOOD DR

ZINFANDEL DR
BO

XW
OO

D D
R

WELCH CV

COUNTRY SQUIRE C

BLANCO DR

WINDY HILL RD

BRISTLE CONE DR

MONTE CRISTO DR

PO
NC

A T
RC

E

VISTA DR

EMMA NAYLOR CT

CH
IRI

CA
HU

A T
RC

E

PARKER LN

RUSTLER CIR

MESA OAKS CIR

ON
YX

TR
L

EL
MW

OOD CIR

SAXON CIR

RIATA CIR

ANCIENT OAKS E

KING ARTHUR DR

DEE R F IE
LD

WA
Y

MAGNOLIA DR

RO
DE

O CI
R

LAGO VISTA DR

ANCIENT OAKS D

TR
U 

CI
R

PIMA TRL

MAYA TRL
VA

LLEY OAKS DR

PO
NC

A T
RC

E

DA
KO

TA
 TR

CE

YUMA TRL

HOPI TRL

RUMMEL

FM 2410

CA
TH

Y

LAKESIDE

NO
LA

NV
ILL

E

WA
RR

IO
RS

APACHE

YU
RO

N

HOPI

HIGHVIEW

INCA

HI
GH

 O
AK

DRIVEWAY

RUIZ

SHOSHONI

CAYUGA

INDIAN

MOHICAN

UTE

DRIFTWOOD

FL
AT

RO
CK

AZTEC

OAKRIDGE

YUMA

PONTOTOC

SHASTA

RI
AT

A

ORLAN

CO
MA

NC
HE

 G
AP

RIVER ROCK

MEADOW CR

PIMA

LA
GO

 VI
ST

A

FORD

LA KEFRONT

ROUND

JUNIPER

PU
EB

LO

VALLEY OAKS

MESA OAKS

SANDY POINT

RIDGEVIEW

FM 2410

AZTEC

DR
IVE

WAY

HI
GH

 O
AK

FM 2410

OAKRIDGE

FM 2410

INDIAN

YUMA

COMANCHE GAP

UTE

DR
IV

EW

AY

FM 2410

DR
IVE

WA
Y

WA
RR

IO
RS

APACHE

DR
IVE

WA
Y

WA
RR

IO
RS

DR
IVE

WA
Y

FM 2410

FM 2410

INDIAN

FM 2410

COMANCHE GAP

HIGHVIEW

UTE

OA
KR

ID
GE

CAYUGA

IND
IAN

FM 2410

SHASTA

LAKESIDE

RIVER ROCK

SHASTA

FM 2410

INDIAN

NO
LA

NV
ILL

E

4''

8'
'

6'
'

8''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

8'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

4''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'' 6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

8'
'

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6''
6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

8''

6''

6''6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

8''

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'' 6''

6''

6'
'

8''

8'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''
6'

'

6''

6''

8'
'

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

4'
'

6'
'

6''

8'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

8'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

Stillhouse Hollow Lake

Nolan Creek

!I

LEGEND
Vä Lift Station

8" and Smaller
Wastewater Line

10" and Larger
Wastewater Line

Railroad

Road

River

Lake

Parcel

Wastewater Impact 
Fee Service Area

ETJ Boundary

City Limit

DRAFT FIGURE 2-2
CITY OF

HARKER HEIGHTS
IMPACT FEE SERVICE AREA

FUTURE LAND USE

Created By Freese and Nichols, Inc.
Job No.:  HAK21373
Location: H:\W_WW_PLANNING\01_DELIVERABLES\02_Land_Use\(Figure_2-2)-Service_Area_Land_Use.mxd
Updated: Wednesday, August 18, 2021 10:25:23 AM
User Name: JBV

0 600 1,200

SCALE IN FEET

FUTURE LAND USE
Community Center

Government/Public Space

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Overlook Utilization Area

Parks & Open Space

Regional Commercial Centers

Residential Estate



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

2-4 

2.2 HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED GROWTH 

2.2.1 Historical Population 

Historical population data was provided in the February 2021 Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report 

developed by Thonhoff Consulting Engineers, Inc. (TCE). The City had an average 2.2% annual growth rate 

over the past eight years. This historical population information is presented in Table 2-1. 

Table 2-1:  Historical Population within City Limits 

Year Population 

Average Annual 

Growth Rate 

(%) 

2012 27,894  

2013 28,563 2.4% 

2014 29,233 2.3% 

2015 29,903 2.3% 

2016 30,573 2.2% 

2017 31,243 2.2% 

2018 31,913 2.1% 

2019 32,583 2.1% 

2020 33,253 2.1% 

Average 2.2% 

 

2.2.2 Projected Growth 

The magnitude and distribution of the growth in the service area will dictate where future wastewater 

infrastructure is required.  It is important to note that projecting future growth is challenging, especially 

for relatively small geographic areas such as individual cities or sections of cities, because it can be difficult 

to predict how fast or slow development will occur when there are a variety of circumstances that can 

impact it.  Table 2-2 presents the City’s projected growth for the 10-year planning period for the 

wastewater impact fee service area.   

 Table 2-2:  Wastewater Impact Fee Service Area Growth 

Year Connections 

2022 125 

2032 1,500 

  



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

3-1 

3.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 

Wastewater capital improvement plan (CIP) projects were developed for the City of Harker Heights in the 

February 2021 Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report by TCE.  The wastewater CIP projects that are 

required to serve growth within the next 10 years were identified for inclusion in the wastewater impact 

fee analysis. 

3.1 WASTEWATER LOAD PROJECTIONS 

Wastewater flow projections for 2022 and 2032 were developed using criteria from the February 2021 

Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report.  2.97 people per connection and 76 gallons per capita per day 

were assumed for wastewater flow projections  A wet weather peaking factor of 4.0 was applied to 

calculate the peak wet weather flow.  Table 3-1 presents the projected wastewater flows for the 

wastewater impact fee service area in million gallons per day (MGD). 

 Table 3-1:  Impact Fee Service Area Wastewater Flow Projections 

Year 
Average Daily Flow 

(MGD) 

Peak Wet Weather Flow  

(MGD) 

2022 0.03 0.11 

2032 0.34 1.35 

 

3.2 WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

The TCE 2021 Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report included proposed wastewater system 

improvements.  A summary of the proposed projects serving growth in the 10-year period used in the 

impact fee analysis is shown in  Table 3-2.  The proposed impact fee CIP projects are shown on Figure 3-

1. 



Wastewater Impact Fee Study 

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report 

City of Harker Heights 

 

3-2 

 Table 3-2:  Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan  

Project 

Number Project Name 

EXISTING 

A Rummel Lift Station and Force Main 

B 15/18/21/27" Gravity Line 

C Impact Fee Study 

PROPOSED 

1 10-inch Force Main  

2 Rummel Lift Station Expansion 

3 Proposed Lift Station and 18-inch Force Main 

4 24/27" Gravity Line 

5 1.5 MGD Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 

 

  



TXWWTP

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä
Vä

VäVä
Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

Vä

(1 (1

(3(4

(3
(3

(3
(3

(5

(2
(A

(A
(A

(B (B

VFW
Lift Station

CTE
Lift Station

Osage
Lift Station

Rummel
Lift Station

Capacity: 720 GPM
Expand to 1,000 GPM

Pueblo
Lift Station

Tonight
Lift Station

Fawn Valley
Lift Station

Capacity: 720 GPM

Warriors Path
Lift Station

Trimmier Creek
Lift Station

Capacity: 2,700 GPM

McGinnis
Lift Station

Evergreen
Lift Station

End-O-Trail
Lift Station

Rocky Ridge
Lift Station

Thoroughbred
Lift Station

Harker Heights
WWTP

1.5 MGD WWTP Expansion

Harker Heights
Lift Station

10" F.M.

K|

K|

K|

10" F.M.

15"
18"

21" 27"

18" F.M.

10" F.M.
15'' 18''

21
''

27''

12''

10''

20''

15
''
12''

15
''

21
''12''

21''

15
''

21''

15
''

15
''

15''

12''

10''

10''

10''

21''

15''

12''

15''

10'' 12''

12''

15
''

10
''

10''

15
''

15
''

10''

12
''

15
''

15''

15''

12''
10''

10
''

15''

15''

21
''

15''

6''

8''

4''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

8'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''
6'

'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'' 6''

6'
'

8'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

8'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

8''

6''

8''

6'
'6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

8''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'' 6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6''
6'

'

6''

8''

6'
'

6'
'

6''
6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

4'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'' 6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

4''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

8'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

8''

8''

8'
'

6''

6'
'

8'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

8'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

8'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

8''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

8''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

8'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

8'
'

6''

8''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

6''

6'
'

8''

6''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6''
8''

6''

8''

6'
'

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6'
'

6''

6''

6''

6'
'

6''

8" F.M.

6" F.M.

16" F.M.

16" F.M
.

6" F.M.

6" F.M.

16" F.M.

16" F.M.

Stillhouse Hollow Lake

Nolan Cree
k

Lam
pasas River

Trimmier Creek

Shaw Branch

L ittle
Nolan Creek

Yowell Creek

Chapparal Cree
k

Acorn Creek

Onion Creek

Hay Branch

Rock Creek

Caprice Ditch

Nolanville Tributary

Embers Creek

Yowell Creek Trib

Tr immier Road Ditch

Little Trimmier Creek

O ld Florence Ditch

Li bertyDitch

Lampasas River

E TRIMMIER RD

FM 2410

CHAPARRAL RD

QU
AR

RY
 R

D

US HWY 190

FEATHERLINE RD

SOUKUP LN

LITTLE TRL

FM 93

E AVENUE H

RUMMEL

LAKESIDE

GARRIS DR

LOOP RD

FM 439

S IMMONS

TAFT ST

RI
O 

BL
VD

FM
24

10
RD

W HIGHWAY 190

LYNN AVE

SHAW
LN

LISA LN

SLAWSON LN

E STAN SCHLUETER LOOP

FARM-TO-MARKET ROAD 3481

CA
TH

Y L
N

STILLHOUSE LAKE DR

NO
LA

NV
ILL

E R
D

E FM 2410 RD

LAGO VISTA DR

DRIVEWAY

UNION GROVE PARK

CO
ND

ER
 ST

E CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY

S CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY

N CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY

HOLLOW RD

ILE

GRIFFIN RD

VIO
LE

T AVE

CHALK LN

MONEY PIT

S IMMONS RD

S 5
6T

H 
ST

WATER ST

HIGHVIEW
DR

FUCHSIA LN

CEDAR RIDGE CR

DA
NA

 PE
AK

 PA
RK

SP L IT OAK R NC
H

CHEROKEE DR

E ELMS RD

LOWE'S BLVD

FM 439 LOOP

TELLURIDE DR

F UL LER LN

RIFLE DR

GNOME LN

CARRIE AVE

MESS ER
RA

NC
H

RD

COMANCHE GAP RD

HI
GH

 O
AK

 D
R

R EDONDO D R

HILLTOP DR

BEN DING TR L

H-M RAN

JACK R ABBIT F LT

LOST MESA

S 28
TH

ST

QU
AR

RY
 D

R

VICKI DR

US HWY 190 BUS

CREEKSIDE DR

2ND

FRONTAGE RD

LOVE RD

LITTLE NOLAN RD

O AK HILL

DR

FROG DR

SUNRISE ST

ONION RD

PEAKS DR

FAWN DR

VALLEY DR

ROADRUNNER ST

SHAWN DR

DO
BE

R 
ST

N 
1S

T S
T

W AVENUE I

S W
 S 

YO
UN

G 
DR

PAULA RD

PRIMROSE LN

W AVENUE G

W
YA

TT
EA

RP
LN

CAYUGA DR

WALDEN CRK

TURNER AVE

NYA LN

MESA DR

SNAPDRAGON LN

ASPEN DR

OAK VALLEY DR

ROY J SMITH DR

PHOENIX DR

OA
KW

OO
D 

DR

ODELIA DR

SANTA FE AVE

LAKECLIFF DR
QUAIL HOLLOW RD

N 
52

ND
 ST

CEDAR KNOB RD

WHITE ROCK DR

NOLAN LOOP

ST
ET

SO
N

AV

E

MISSOURI AVE

DERIK DR

E STAGECOACH RD

PLAINS DR

GREENLEE DR

MEADOW CR

FL
AT

 RO
CK

 CV

TW
IN

CR
EE

K
DR

BRIAN DR

DRIFTWOOD CIR

BREMSER RD

RY
AN

N 
LN

TERRACE DR

CR
OS

S D
R

N 
10

TH
 S

T

GLENOAK DR

BL
UF

F D
R

AP ACH E DR

N 
6T

H 
ST

IVY RIDGE CIR

GLASS MOUNTAIN DR

SA
DD

LE
 D

R

HAYNES DR

GOW E N D
R

SE
AR

CY
 D

R

BLAKE ST

GLEN HOLLOW LN

MOON VALLEY RD

KILPATRICK DR

TR
AI

LS
 EN

D 
DR

DOVER RD

METROPLEX EMERGENCY CLINIC

AARON ST

RIVER ROCK TRL

TIMBER OAK DR

OA
K 

ST

N
46

TH
ST

CEDAR DR

AIRPORT DR

TOP A Z R
D

SPLIT OAK DR

NATHAN DR

AR
RO

YO
DR

GAIL

DUVALL DR

STILLHO USE PAR K

CINDY LN

OAKRIDGE BLVD

ORLAN RD

LAKEVIEW DR

S TWIN CREEK DR

LONGVIEW DR

PARKING LOT

PR
OG

RE
SS

 DR

GROVE RD

BROOKSIDE DR

PIRTLE RD

APACH E LOOP

O 
W CU

RR
Y D

R

HOMESTEAD

LEVY CROSSING RD

MA
PL

E S
T

SENDERA DR

HIL LSIDE DR

RIATA CIR

ELMORE AVE

N 
5T

H 
ST

ILLINOIS AVE

AM
BE

R 
RD

LAKES HORE DR

JUSTIN LN

N TW
IN CREEK DR

W LONITA AVE

N 
RO

Y R
EY

NO
LD

S D
R

PADDY HAMILTON RD

TROLL H OLLOW RD

1S
T S

T

PA
RK

 TR
L

E FIR ST

CROSS BEND DR

HARVEST DR

TEAL DR

N 
MA

IN
 ST

RAMP

YA
NT

IS 
ST

GR
EE

NF

OREST CIR

LOHSE RD

ZEPHYR RD

JESSE JAMES DR

HE
RN

DO
N 

DR

S 5
8T

H 
ST

STAMPEDE CIR

CHINABERRY CIR

JUNIPER DR

CR
OS

SI
NG

 R
D

E PINE ST

RA
INL

ILY
 ST

MORNING GLEN LN

BACON RANCH RD

WATER OAK DR

STILLWOOD CIR
S 5

0T
H 

ST

ELMW
OOD DR

GLENNWOOD DR

S M
AIN

 ST

ATKINSON AVE

TANGLEWOOD DR

CA
RL

IS
LE

 AV
E

WELCH CV

ATOKA TRCE

5T
H 

ST

GRIFFIN DR

DENVER DR

E BIRCH ST

WIND SONG DR

DORIS DR

DOGWOOD BLVD

ELMS RD

HACKBERRY DR

GO
OD

E D
R

N 
4T

H 
ST

HEZEKIAH DR

DELLWOOD ST

PA
TR

IO
TIC

 ST

DILLON DR

SH
AD

Y D
R

S 5
3R

D S
T

4T
H 

ST

SU
NF

LO
WE

R 
DR

BLACK OAK LN

GRIDER AVE

W DALE AVE

HA
MM

ON
D 

DR

E AVENUE I

MAGNOLIA CIR

NORTHWOOD CT

MISTY CIR

N 
8T

H 
ST

COLBY DR

S 4
2N

D ST

CHANTZ DR

OAK GROVE LN

RIVER OAKS DR

LAKECLIFF CIR

IRIS AVE

FR
EE

DO
M 

ST

D 
N 

WA
TT

S 
LN

SUMMER GLEN DR

PAWNEE DR

STILLHOUSE DR

CRANFORD AVE

GOODE CIR

LOST OAK DR

FM
 34

81

CU
NN

IN
GH

AM
 R

D

FM 439

FM 439

WATER ST

FM
 43

9 L
OO

P

DRIVEWAY

FM 2410

FM 439

SHAW LN

FM 439

DR
IV

EW
AY

W HIGHWAY 190

FRONTAGE RD

DRIV E WAY

S W
 S 

YO
UN

G 
DR

US HWY 190

COMANCHE GAP RD

RAMP

SI
MM

ON
S R

D

FM 439

E ELMS RD

FM
43

9 L
OO

P

ONION
RD

US HWY 190

NO
LA

NV
ILL

E R
D

TEAL DR

FM 439

US HWY 190 BUS

US HWY 190

LEVY CROSSING RD

ONION RD

E STAGECOACH RD

LIT
TL

E N
OL

AN
 R

D

FM 439

FM 439

SE
AR

CY
 D

R

LAKECLIFF DR

DRIVEWAY

DRIVEWAY

FM
 24

10
 R

D

DR
IVE

WAY

E AVENUE H

FM 439

FM 439

LAKESID
E

CHALK LN

FM 439

CHAPARRAL RD

US HWY 190

CHAPARRAL RD

ROY J SMITH DR

E TRIMMIER RD

TAFT ST

TEAL DR

FM 439

GO
OD

E D
R

DRIVEW AY

FM 439

ON
IO

N 
RD

GRIFFIN RD

SLAWSON LN

US HWY 190

E ELMS RD

DRIVEWAY

2ND

US HWY 190

FM 439

JACK RABBIT FLT

US HWY 190

DRIVEWAY

US HWY 190

US HWY 190

CHAPARRA L R D

US HWY 190

FM 2410

US HWY 190

US HWY 190

FM 439

US HWY 190

W HIGHWAY 190

W AVENUE I

FM 439

FM 2410 RD

GLENNWOOD DR

FRONTAGE RD

US HWY 190

HI
GH

 O
AK

 D
R

ZEPHYR RD

CHAPARRAL RD

FM 2410

FM 439

E STAGECOACH RD

E FM 2410 RD

US HWY 190

FULLER LN

US HWY 190

GL
EN

 H
OL

LO
W 

LN

FM 439

ASPEN DR

JACK RABBIT FLT

CHAPARRAL RD

E AVENUE H

E TRIMMIER RD

SHAWN DR

FM 439
FM 439

US HWY 190

N CENTRAL TEXAS EXPY

E ELMS RD

E TRIMMIER RD

DANA P EAK PARK

CH
AL

K L
N

DRIV EWAY

LA
KESHORE DR

COMANCHE GAP RD

HIGHVIEW DR

SANTA FE AVE

ATKINSON AVE

NO
LA

NV
ILL

E R
D

UNION GROVE PARK

CEDAR KNOB RD

APACHE LOOP

UNION GROVE
PARK

FAWN DR

DRIVEWAY

SHAWN DR

FULLER LN

24" 27"

24"

!I

LEGEND
Existing Impact Fee Eligible

Wastewater Line

Force Main

Proposed Impact Fee Eligible
Vä Lift Station

TXWWTP Wastewater Treatment 
Plant

Force Main

Wastewater Line

Existing Wastewater System
Vä Lift Station

8" and Smaller
Wastewater Line

10" and Larger
Wastewater Line

Force Main

Railroad

Road

River

Lake

Parcel

Wastewater Impact Fee
Service Area

ETJ Boundary

City Limit

DRAFT FIGURE 3-1
  CITY OF

HARKER HEIGHTS
WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Created By Freese and Nichols, Inc.
Job No.:  HAK21373
Location: H:\W_WW_PLANNING\01_DELIVERABLES\04_Impact_Fee_CIP\(Figure_1)-Wastewater_IF_CIP.mxd
Updated: Friday, August 13, 2021 3:45:38 PM
User Name: 03812

0 2,000 4,000

SCALE IN FEET



Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

    

CP21-06          AGENDA ITEM# VIII-1 
FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                          DATE:    NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A REQUEST FOR A CONCEPT PLAN 

REFERRED TO AS CEDAR TRAILS ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS URIAH HUNT 

SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 401, PROPERTY ID #75765, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 

13436 E. KNIGHT’S WAY (E. FM 2410), HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY TEXAS, 

AND LOCALLY KNOWN AS 13436 FM 2410, BELTON, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS AND 

TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.   

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

On September 1, 2021, the applicant submitted an application for concept plan approval for Cedar 

Trails, generally located at 13436 E. Knight’s Way (E. FM 2410) and locally known as 13436 FM 

2410, Belton, Bell County, Texas. The property consists of approximately 24.383 acres with a 

proposed total of seventy (70) residential lots and three (3) tracts. Prior to the September 29th 

Planning & Zoning meeting, the applicant requested a one-time 30-day extension as allowed by 

law. The applicant submitted revisions on October 1, 2021 and October 19, 2021.  

 

As of October 20, 2021 staff had reviewed the submitted concept plan and engineering plans and 

made comments to address safety, drainage, water and wastewater utilities and other pertinent 

requirements to ensure that all developmental regulations stipulated in the City of Harker Heights 

Code of Ordinances will be adhered to.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

On October 20, 2021, staff returned the final comments to the applicant. Staff recommended 

approval of the Concept Plan to the Planning and Zoning Commission for the subdivision referred 

to as Cedar Trails. 

 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of a Concept Plan referred to as Cedar 

Trails on property described as Uriah Hunt Survey, Abstract No. 401, Property Id #75765, 

generally located at 13436 E. Knight’s Way (E. FM 2410), Harker Heights, Bell County Texas, 

and locally known as 13436 FM 2410, Belton, Bell County, Texas. 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation a request 

for a Concept Plan referred to as Cedar Trails on property described as Uriah Hunt Survey, 

Abstract No. 401, Property Id #75765, generally located at 13436 E. Knight’s Way (E. FM 

2410), Harker Heights, Bell County Texas, and locally known as 13436 FM 2410, Belton, 

Bell County, Texas. 

2. Any other action desired. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application 

2. Extension request 

3. Concept Plan 

4. Utility Plan 

5. Location Map 

6. Staff Comments with Responses (Comments sent 9/6/21, 10/14/2021, and 10/20/21, 

Responses received 10/01/21 and 10/19/21) 

















12965

13805

0

1897

13010

0

5130

2153

1

0

13436

13470

E KNIGHTS WAY

TONKAWA
TRL

QU
AN

AH
VA

LL
EY

RD

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

CP21-06

Proposed Cedar Trails

Location

0 175 350 525 70087.5
Feet



1 
 

CEDAR TRAILS  

C21‐06 Concept Plan – Cedar Trails  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: September 2, 2021 
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: September 10, 2021 

 

Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell 

1. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 6 such that it reflects that as of the date of 

submission (9/1/21) the area in the concept plan contains only R‐1 zoning. The City Council 

will hear the rezoning request on 09/14/21 to both R1‐A and R‐1 (Tracts B & C) zoned parcels. 

If approved, then the applicant can then amend Note 6 to reflect both zoning designations.  

2. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.37(D)(8), due to the same or similar names in the 911 district 

and/or the City, the applicant shall change the names of the proposed Atlas Drive and Juniper 

Street. 

3. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.01 The Tract A flag lot shall be revised to meet the minimum 

30‐foot wide strip at the public ROW line. As illustrated only a 15‐foot access strip is provided.  

4. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide an additional note to clarify that the illustrated 

setbacks are based on  the  zoning ordinances at  the  time of platting and are provided  for 

concept plan submission compliance purposes only.  

5. Plat  Dedication  Page:  Applicant  shall  provide  a  copy  of  the  called  0.213  AC  easement 

agreement for access Doc. No. 20200063037. 

6. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.20(d)6, applicant shall provide a typical for building placement 

and building envelopes.  

7. For R‐1 Zoning 

a. Per  §155.020(E)  applicant  shall  amend  the  lot  configuration  in  order  to meet  the 

minimum 8,400 square feet per lot with an average overall width of 70’ and minimum 

lot frontage of 45’. 

8. For R1‐A Zoning of all lots except Tracts B&C 

a. Per §155.022(D)(1) applicant shall amend the front yard setback line from 25’ to the 

required 20’.  

b. Per §155.022(D)(2) applicant shall amend the setback lines on the corner lots to all be 

20’ along the ROW (i.e. Lots 1,9 Block 3; Lots 3,17,19,26 Block 2; and Lot 4 Block 1).  

c. Per §155.022(E)(2) applicant shall provide a second line table listing the front building 

line setback dimensions for all Lots with a front property line of less than 46 feet (i.e. 

Lots 6‐10 Block 2 and Lots 7‐11 Block 1).  



2 
 

9. The following items can be addressed during review of the preliminary plat and are provided 

for the Applicant’s advanced reference. 

a. Per  §154.01,  TXDOT  approval  for  the  two  subdivision  entrances,  impacts  to  the 

drainage  on  FM  2410,  and  a  1  foot  non‐access  easement  along  FM  2410  will  be 

required prior to approval of a plat. Additionally, TXDOT may require a Traffic Impact 

Analysis of this development prior to approval of that above‐mentioned items.  

b. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the existing width of FM 2410 in the 

vicinity of this subdivision and provide the required right of way (ROW) to meet the 

120’ required ROW width for the major arterial FM 2410. 

c. A wastewater stubout and manhole will be required at the west end of Deodar Drive. 

d. The location of the proposed eastern wastewater connection shall not go under the 

proposed  detention  area.  Said  wastewater main  will  also  require  a minimum  15’ 

utility easement.  

e. Location  of  proposed  manholes  and  wastewater  lines  will  be  evaluated  at  the 

preliminary plat review and may need to be extended or additional manholes added 

to the proposed layout. (ie. Cyprian Street manhole and line). 

 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. R1‐A Lot width. The width of the lot shall not be less than 46 feet at the front street building line, 

nor  shall  its  average  width  be  less  than  46  feet.  On  corner  lots,  with  two  street  frontages,  the 

minimum width shall be not less than 55 feet.   There are several lots with less than 46 feet of lot 

width at the street.  The lots cannot be less than 4600 ft2. 

2. Provide written TxDOT approval for the two street connections at FM 2410. 

3. Provide 250 watt HPS cobra head street lights at Cyprian Street/FM 2410 and Atlas Avenue/FM 

2410. 

4. The existing 16‐inch water line is located on the south side of FM 2410. 

5. Relocate manholes and sanitary sewer away from the drainage flume and detention facility. 

6. Provide a 15’wide public utility easement for the offsite sanitary sewer. 

7. Provide maintenance equipment access to the detention facility. 

8. Regarding sanitary sewer capacity for this development, the City of Harker Heights has conducted 

an engineering  study on  the  remaining  sanitary  sewer  capacity of  the Evergreen‐Fawn Valley  Lift 

Station, the Trimmier Lift Station and associated lift station force mains and receiving gravity sanitary 



3 
 

sewer mains.  The sanitary sewer system serving this proposed subdivision is currently at capacity.  

Engineering design for the sanitary sewer expansion project is almost completed.   

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments on drainage deferred until preliminary plans are submitted. Major concern will be 

detention design and outlet to exiting natural channel. 

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

1. No Comments.  

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. Build‐lines incorrect for R1‐A (Garden Homes). Remove build‐lines from plat.  

2. Street name Juniper already present in Harker Heights. Change name to avoid confusion for 

fire and rescue.  

3. Consider changing Cyprian to help avoid issues with Fire and Rescue. 

TXDOT 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 

forthcoming.  

 

 

 

 



1 
 

CEDAR TRAILS  

C21-06 Concept Plan – Cedar Trails  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: October 6, 2021 
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 14, 2021 

Resubmission Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 20, 2021 
 

Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell 

1. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 6 such that it reflects that as of the date of 
submission (9/1/21) the area in the concept plan contains only R-1 zoning. The City Council 
will hear the rezoning request on 09/14/21 to both R1-A and R-1 (Tracts B & C) zoned parcels. 
If approved, then the applicant can then amend Note 6 to reflect both zoning designations. 
10/13/21 Met. 

2. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.37(D)(8), due to the same or similar names in the 911 district 
and/or the City, the applicant shall change the names of the proposed Atlas Drive and Juniper 
Street. 10/13/21 Met. 

3. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.01 The Tract A flag lot shall be revised to meet the minimum 
30-foot wide strip at the public ROW line. As illustrated only a 15-foot access strip is provided. 
10/13/21 Met. 

4. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide an additional note to clarify that the illustrated 
setbacks are based on the zoning ordinances at the time of platting and are provided for 
concept plan submission compliance purposes only. 10/13/21 Partially Met. Based on the 
response to item 8.a. the applicant is wanting to designate more restrictive setbacks than 
those required in the current zoning. The note shall be amended accordingly prior to the 
meeting with the P&Z. 10/20/21 Met. 

5. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide a copy of the called 0.213 AC easement 
agreement for access Doc. No. 20200063037. 10/13/21 Met. 

6. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.20(d)6, applicant shall provide a typical for building placement 
and building envelopes. 10/13/21 Met. 

7. For R-1 Zoning 
a. Per §155.020(E) applicant shall amend the lot configuration in order to meet the 

minimum 8,400 square feet per lot with an average overall width of 70’ and minimum 
lot frontage of 45’. 10/13/21 Met. 

8. For R1-A Zoning of all lots except Tracts B&C 



2 
 

a. Per §155.022(D)(1) applicant shall amend the front yard setback line from 25’ to the 
required 20’. 10/13/21 Response Noted.  

b. Per §155.022(D)(2) applicant shall amend the setback lines on the corner lots to all be 
20’ along the ROW (i.e. Lots 1,9 Block 3; Lots 3,17,19,26 Block 2; and Lot 4 Block 1). 
10/13/21 Met. 

c. Per §155.022(E)(2) applicant shall provide a second line table listing the front building 
line setback dimensions for all Lots with a front property line of less than 46 feet (i.e. 
Lots 6-10 Block 2 and Lots 7-11 Block 1). 10/13/21 Met. 

9. The following items can be addressed during review of the preliminary plat and are provided 
for the Applicant’s advanced reference. 

a. Per §154.01, TXDOT approval for the two subdivision entrances, impacts to the 
drainage on FM 2410, and a 1 foot non-access easement along FM 2410 will be 
required prior to approval of a plat. Additionally, TXDOT may require a Traffic Impact 
Analysis of this development prior to approval of that above-mentioned items. 
10/13/21 Response Noted. 

b. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the existing width of FM 2410 in the 
vicinity of this subdivision and provide the required right of way (ROW) to meet the 
120’ required ROW width for the major arterial FM 2410. 

c. A wastewater stubout and manhole will be required at the west end of Deodar Drive. 
10/13/21 Response Noted. 

d. The location of the proposed eastern wastewater connection shall not go under the 
proposed detention area. Said wastewater main will also require a minimum 15’ 
utility easement. 10/13/21 Response Noted. 

e. Location of proposed manholes and wastewater lines will be evaluated at the 
preliminary plat review and may need to be extended or additional manholes added 
to the proposed layout. (ie. Cyprian Street manhole and line). 
 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. The water line layout is not correct.  There is not a 16-inch water line on the north side of FM 
2410.  An 8-inch water line was extended across FM 2410 terminating into the existing fire 
hydrant on the north side of FM 2410, see Bore No. 2 on the attached drawing.  It may be 
more economical to extend the existing 8-inch water line across the property than making 
two road bores across FM 2410. 10/20/21 Met. 

2. Provide written TxDOT approval for the two street connections at FM 2410. 10/20/21 Met. 
3. Regarding sanitary sewer capacity for this development, the City of Harker Heights has 

conducted an engineering study on the remaining sanitary sewer capacity of the Evergreen-



3 
 

Fawn Valley Lift Station, the Trimmier Lift Station and associated lift station force mains and 
receiving gravity sanitary sewer mains.  The sanitary sewer system serving this proposed 
subdivision is currently at capacity.  Engineering design for the sanitary sewer expansion 
project is almost completed.   

See water plans on onedrive link attached to email.  

1. Loop the water line on the Cedrus Drive cul-de-sac to the water line on Cedar Trails.  Provide 
a 15’ wide public utility easement.  10/21/21 

2. Extend the proposed 8-inch water line along FM 2410 to the eastern property line and 
provide a flush assembly. 10/21/21 

 

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments on drainage deferred until preliminary plans are submitted. Major concern will be 
detention design and outlet to exiting natural channel.  

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

1. No further comments. 10/13/2021 

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. No Comments 10/13/21 

ONCOR 

1. Oncor would need a 15ft easement so we can serve the locations. 10/13/21. 10/20/21 Met. 

TXDOT 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  

 

 

 

 



1 
 

CEDAR TRAILS  

C21-06 Concept Plan – Cedar Trails  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: September 2, 2021 
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: September 10, 2021 

 

Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell 

1. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 6 such that it reflects that as of the date of 
submission (9/1/21) the area in the concept plan contains only R-1 zoning. The City Council 
will hear the rezoning request on 09/14/21 to both R1-A and R-1 (Tracts B & C) zoned parcels. 
If approved, then the applicant can then amend Note 6 to reflect both zoning designations. 
Note 6 reflects latest rezoning request from 09/14 meeting.  

2. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.37(D)(8), due to the same or similar names in the 911 district 
and/or the City, the applicant shall change the names of the proposed Atlas Drive and Juniper 
Street. Atlas Drive and Juniper Street changed to Cedar Trails and Cedrus Drive respectively.  

3. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.01 The Tract A flag lot shall be revised to meet the minimum 
30-foot wide strip at the public ROW line. As illustrated only a 15-foot access strip is provided. 
Tract A revised to meet 30’ wide requirement.  

4. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide an additional note to clarify that the illustrated 
setbacks are based on the zoning ordinances at the time of platting and are provided for 
concept plan submission compliance purposes only. See concept plan Note 7.  

5. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide a copy of the called 0.213 AC easement 
agreement for access Doc. No. 20200063037. Attached is a copy of easement recorded in 
Doc. No. 20200063037. 

6. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.20(d)6, applicant shall provide a typical for building placement 
and building envelopes. Three insets provided on concept plan to show typical building 
envelopes and setback lines. 

7. For R-1 Zoning 
a. Per §155.020(E) applicant shall amend the lot configuration in order to meet the 

minimum 8,400 square feet per lot with an average overall width of 70’ and minimum 
lot frontage of 45’. Noted. 

8. For R1-A Zoning of all lots except Tracts B&C 
a. Per §155.022(D)(1) applicant shall amend the front yard setback line from 25’ to the 

required 20’. Front yar setback lines to remain as 25’ per meeting between engineer 
and city staff conducted on 09/23/2021.  



2 
 

b. Per §155.022(D)(2) applicant shall amend the setback lines on the corner lots to all be 
20’ along the ROW (i.e. Lots 1,9 Block 3; Lots 3,17,19,26 Block 2; and Lot 4 Block 1). 
Setback lines on corner lots revised to 20’ along the ROW.  

c. Per §155.022(E)(2) applicant shall provide a second line table listing the front building 
line setback dimensions for all Lots with a front property line of less than 46 feet (i.e. 
Lots 6-10 Block 2 and Lots 7-11 Block 1). Lines for lots in question provided on the Line 
Table (starting at L62).  

9. The following items can be addressed during review of the preliminary plat and are provided 
for the Applicant’s advanced reference. Noted. 

a. Per §154.01, TXDOT approval for the two subdivision entrances, impacts to the 
drainage on FM 2410, and a 1 foot non-access easement along FM 2410 will be 
required prior to approval of a plat. Additionally, TXDOT may require a Traffic Impact 
Analysis of this development prior to approval of that above-mentioned items. TxDOT 
concurrence added to this submission.  

b. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the existing width of FM 2410 in the 
vicinity of this subdivision and provide the required right of way (ROW) to meet the 
120’ required ROW width for the major arterial FM 2410. Noted. 

c. A wastewater stubout and manhole will be required at the west end of Deodar Drive. 
Wastewater cleanout added at the west end of Deodar Drive. 

d. The location of the proposed eastern wastewater connection shall not go under the 
proposed detention area. Said wastewater main will also require a minimum 15’ 
utility easement. Wastewater layout reconfigured.  

e. Location of proposed manholes and wastewater lines will be evaluated at the 
preliminary plat review and may need to be extended or additional manholes added 
to the proposed layout. (ie. Cyprian Street manhole and line). Noted.  
 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. R1-A Lot width. The width of the lot shall not be less than 46 feet at the front street building line, 
nor shall its average width be less than 46 feet. On corner lots, with two street frontages, the 
minimum width shall be not less than 55 feet.  There are several lots with less than 46 feet of lot 
width at the street.  The lots cannot be less than 4600 ft2. Lot area checked and confirmed. All lots 
meet minimum width requirement at front building setback line. 

2. Provide written TxDOT approval for the two street connections at FM 2410. TxDOT concurrence 
added to this submission.  



3 
 

3. Provide 250 watt HPS cobra head street lights at Cyprian Street/FM 2410 and Atlas Avenue/FM 
2410. 250 watt HPS cobra head street light added to intersection of Cedro Avenue/FM 2410 and 
Cedar Trails/FM 2410. 

4. The existing 16-inch water line is located on the south side of FM 2410. Waterline location revised. 

5. Relocate manholes and sanitary sewer away from the drainage flume and detention facility. 
Wastewater main relocated out of the detention area. 

6. Provide a 15’wide public utility easement for the offsite sanitary sewer. 15’ wide public utility 
easement will be provided upon acceptance of alignment.  

7. Provide maintenance equipment access to the detention facility. Tract A access increase to total 
width of 30’. 

8. Regarding sanitary sewer capacity for this development, the City of Harker Heights has conducted 
an engineering study on the remaining sanitary sewer capacity of the Evergreen-Fawn Valley Lift 
Station, the Trimmier Lift Station and associated lift station force mains and receiving gravity sanitary 
sewer mains.  The sanitary sewer system serving this proposed subdivision is currently at capacity.  
Engineering design for the sanitary sewer expansion project is almost completed. Noted.   

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments on drainage deferred until preliminary plans are submitted. Major concern will be 
detention design and outlet to exiting natural channel. Noted. 

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

1. No Comments.  

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. Build-lines incorrect for R1-A (Garden Homes). Remove build-lines from plat. Building lines 
revised per Planning and Engineer meeting.  

2. Street name Juniper already present in Harker Heights. Change name to avoid confusion for 
fire and rescue. Juniper Street changed to Cedrus Drive.  

3. Consider changing Cyprian to help avoid issues with Fire and Rescue. Cyprian changed to 
Cedro Avenue. 

TXDOT 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  



Richard Rogers <rrogers@beltonengineers.com>

Re: Harker Heights - TIA for review 

Lina Chtay <lchtay@beltonengineers.com> Wed, Sep 1, 2021 at 11:34 AM
To: Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov>
Cc: Scott Israelson <scott@traffic-impact.com>, Richard Rangel Jr <Richard.Rangel@txdot.gov>, Richard Rogers
<Rrogers@beltonengineers.com>

Stephen, 

We will place a 1' non access easement on the two tracts at time of platting. 

Thank you 
Lina Chtay, P.E., CFM
Principal Engineer

Belton Engineering Inc. 
106 N. East Street
Belton, Texas, 76513
Office: 254-731-5600
Cell: 254-289-7273
www.beltonengineers.com

On Wed, Sep 1, 2021 at 10:24 AM Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov> wrote: 

Scott,

 

Thanks for the information.  I am requesting that the 1’non-access easement be recorded in the deeds/survey
documents along the state ROW for any future developments that go into those locations.  They will not meet spacing
criteria if a future driveway is requested.  Please let me know if we need to setup a quick teams meeting about this.

 

Thanks.

 

Stephen

 

From: Scott Israelson [mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, September 1, 2021 9:28 AM 
To: Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov> 
Cc: Lina Chtay <lchtay@beltonengineers.com> 
Subject: RE: Harker Heights - TIA for review

 

This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+Belton,+Texas,+76513+Office:+254?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+Belton,+Texas,+76513+Office:+254?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+Belton,+Texas,+76513+Office:+254?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+Belton,+Texas,+76513+Office:+254?entry=gmail&source=g
http://www.beltonengineers.com/
mailto:Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
mailto:Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov
mailto:lchtay@beltonengineers.com


Good morning Stephen, I had a chance to get with the development team and they understand and agree with
your comment.  The future development will have access to/from the two accesses shown and will not have
driveways onto the FM road.

 

Let me know if I can help with anything else.  Thanks and have a good day!

 

Scott P. Israelson, P.E., PTOE

1431 Greenway Drive, Suite 800

Irving  TX 75038

972.358.6383

scott@traffic-impact.com

www.traffic-impact.com

 

From: Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 31, 2021 12:05 
To: Scott Israelson <scott@traffic-impact.com> 
Subject: RE: Harker Heights - TIA for review

 

Scott,

 

My comment is that for the two tracts that have no development shown, where is their access going to come from?  If
we allow two driveways for the housing development, then I will not allow access along the FM road for those. The
access will have to come from the two access point shown, not from state ROW.

 

Stephen

 

From: Scott Israelson [mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 31, 2021 11:01 AM 
To: Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov> 
Subject: RE: Harker Heights - TIA for review

 

This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning Stephen, my apologies for not following up but I did not hear back from Billy.  Let me know if you
all have any questions or comments about the submittal.  I think Billy’s main concern was that the project would

https://www.google.com/maps/search/1431+Greenway+Drive,+Suite+800+%0D%0A+Irving%C2%A0+TX+75038?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/1431+Greenway+Drive,+Suite+800+%0D%0A+Irving%C2%A0+TX+75038?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.traffic-impact.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CStephen.Kasberg%40txdot.gov%7C89a307f9c12b49d987d908d96d54b6b8%7C39dba4765c094c6391dace7a3ab5224d%7C0%7C0%7C637661032876683947%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=CXUYwTVb%2BFmdUivbm2phvVd40bD%2B%2FX2oWhY%2FSwDiW8Y%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
mailto:Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov


need turn lanes, and that would be the case if there were only one access, but the developer proposes two
accesses which split the trips and they fall below the threshold.  Thanks for checking in and have a great day.

 

Scott P. Israelson, P.E., PTOE

 

1431 Greenway Drive, Suite 800

Irving  TX 75038

972.358.6383

scott@traffic-impact.com

www.traffic-impact.com

 

From: Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 31, 2021  
To: Scott Israelson <scott@traffic-impact.com> 
Cc: David Wright <dave@traffic-impact.com>; Lina Chtay <lchtay@beltonengineers.com>; Richard Rangel Jr
<Richard.Rangel@txdot.gov> 
Subject: RE: Harker Heights - TIA for review

 

Scott,

 

Did Billy respond to this email? Billy has retired and I wanted to close the loop on this.  Richard Rangel is the new
permit coordinator for the office.

 

Stephen

 

From: Scott Israelson [mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 10, 2021 12:42 PM 
To: Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov>; Billy Tweedle <Billy.Tweedle@txdot.gov> 
Cc: David Wright <dave@traffic-impact.com>; Lina Chtay <lchtay@beltonengineers.com> 
Subject: Harker Heights - TIA for review

 

This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello Stephen and Billy, my apologies for the tardiness in submitting the study.  It is attached for your review and
approval and please let me know if you all have any comments or questions.  The highlight of the study is that the
development having two connection points to FM 2410 splits the traffic volumes and the accesses fall below DOT
thresholds for turn lanes.  Thank you much and have a great day.

https://www.google.com/maps/search/1431+Greenway+Drive,+Suite+800+%0D%0A+Irving%C2%A0+TX+75038?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/1431+Greenway+Drive,+Suite+800+%0D%0A+Irving%C2%A0+TX+75038?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.traffic-impact.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CStephen.Kasberg%40txdot.gov%7C89a307f9c12b49d987d908d96d54b6b8%7C39dba4765c094c6391dace7a3ab5224d%7C0%7C0%7C637661032876693899%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=1kRN0lTybAZxSkjfVm37zxfZEd2K2lkoN9EcrO4Wz7M%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
mailto:dave@traffic-impact.com
mailto:lchtay@beltonengineers.com
mailto:Richard.Rangel@txdot.gov
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
mailto:Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov
mailto:Billy.Tweedle@txdot.gov
mailto:dave@traffic-impact.com
mailto:lchtay@beltonengineers.com


 

Scott P. Israelson, P.E., PTOE

1431 Greenway Drive, Suite 800

Irving  TX 75038

972.358.6383

scott@traffic-impact.com

www.traffic-impact.com

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/1431+Greenway+Drive,+Suite+800+%0D%0A+Irving%C2%A0+TX+75038?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/1431+Greenway+Drive,+Suite+800+%0D%0A+Irving%C2%A0+TX+75038?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:scott@traffic-impact.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.traffic-impact.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CStephen.Kasberg%40txdot.gov%7C89a307f9c12b49d987d908d96d54b6b8%7C39dba4765c094c6391dace7a3ab5224d%7C0%7C0%7C637661032876703852%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=5SvSny8eg%2BkWNkwD%2BEiZjq2jYZCIdMBB%2FE%2Fl7JgTCkk%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.txdot.gov%2Finside-txdot%2Fmedia-center%2Ffeatured.html&data=04%7C01%7CStephen.Kasberg%40txdot.gov%7C89a307f9c12b49d987d908d96d54b6b8%7C39dba4765c094c6391dace7a3ab5224d%7C0%7C0%7C637661032876703852%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=mE8%2FDu6kQADd3csUtLy2oJyHtOT%2FpFyVw5%2F9T2mZgo4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.txdot.gov%2Finside-txdot%2Fmedia-center%2Ffeatured.html&data=04%7C01%7CStephen.Kasberg%40txdot.gov%7C89a307f9c12b49d987d908d96d54b6b8%7C39dba4765c094c6391dace7a3ab5224d%7C0%7C0%7C637661032876713808%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=j0Dx6T1sMBYCY1wwGsfgS4Te0dUPbGyZJwcvKnPp1So%3D&reserved=0


 

https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/media-center/featured.html


1 
 

CEDAR TRAILS  

C21-06 Concept Plan – Cedar Trails  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: October 6, 2021 
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 14, 2021 

 

Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell 

1. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall amend Note 6 such that it reflects that as of the date of 
submission (9/1/21) the area in the concept plan contains only R-1 zoning. The City Council 
will hear the rezoning request on 09/14/21 to both R1-A and R-1 (Tracts B & C) zoned parcels. 
If approved, then the applicant can then amend Note 6 to reflect both zoning designations. 
10/13/21 Met. 

2. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.37(D)(8), due to the same or similar names in the 911 district 
and/or the City, the applicant shall change the names of the proposed Atlas Drive and Juniper 
Street. 10/13/21 Met. 

3. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.01 The Tract A flag lot shall be revised to meet the minimum 
30-foot wide strip at the public ROW line. As illustrated only a 15-foot access strip is provided. 
10/13/21 Met. 

4. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide an additional note to clarify that the illustrated 
setbacks are based on the zoning ordinances at the time of platting and are provided for 
concept plan submission compliance purposes only. 10/13/21 Partially Met. Based on the 
response to item 8.a. the applicant is wanting to designate more restrictive setbacks than 
those required in the current zoning. The note shall be amended accordingly prior to the 
meeting with the P&Z.  Note 7 modified. 

5. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall provide a copy of the called 0.213 AC easement 
agreement for access Doc. No. 20200063037. 10/13/21 Met. 

6. Plat Dedication Page: Per §154.20(d)6, applicant shall provide a typical for building placement 
and building envelopes. 10/13/21 Met. 

7. For R-1 Zoning 
a. Per §155.020(E) applicant shall amend the lot configuration in order to meet the 

minimum 8,400 square feet per lot with an average overall width of 70’ and minimum 
lot frontage of 45’. 10/13/21 Met. 

8. For R1-A Zoning of all lots except Tracts B&C 
a. Per §155.022(D)(1) applicant shall amend the front yard setback line from 25’ to the 

required 20’. 10/13/21 Response Noted.  



2 
 

b. Per §155.022(D)(2) applicant shall amend the setback lines on the corner lots to all be 
20’ along the ROW (i.e. Lots 1,9 Block 3; Lots 3,17,19,26 Block 2; and Lot 4 Block 1). 
10/13/21 Met. 

c. Per §155.022(E)(2) applicant shall provide a second line table listing the front building 
line setback dimensions for all Lots with a front property line of less than 46 feet (i.e. 
Lots 6-10 Block 2 and Lots 7-11 Block 1). 10/13/21 Met. 

9. The following items can be addressed during review of the preliminary plat and are provided 
for the Applicant’s advanced reference. 

a. Per §154.01, TXDOT approval for the two subdivision entrances, impacts to the 
drainage on FM 2410, and a 1 foot non-access easement along FM 2410 will be 
required prior to approval of a plat. Additionally, TXDOT may require a Traffic Impact 
Analysis of this development prior to approval of that above-mentioned items. 
10/13/21 Response Noted. 

b. Plat Dedication Page: Applicant shall annotate the existing width of FM 2410 in the 
vicinity of this subdivision and provide the required right of way (ROW) to meet the 
120’ required ROW width for the major arterial FM 2410. 

c. A wastewater stubout and manhole will be required at the west end of Deodar Drive. 
10/13/21 Response Noted. 

d. The location of the proposed eastern wastewater connection shall not go under the 
proposed detention area. Said wastewater main will also require a minimum 15’ 
utility easement. 10/13/21 Response Noted. 

e. Location of proposed manholes and wastewater lines will be evaluated at the 
preliminary plat review and may need to be extended or additional manholes added 
to the proposed layout. (ie. Cyprian Street manhole and line). Noted 
 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. The water line layout is not correct.  There is not a 16-inch water line on the north side of FM 
2410.  An 8-inch water line was extended across FM 2410 terminating into the existing fire 
hydrant on the north side of FM 2410, see Bore No. 2 on the attached drawing.  It may be 
more economical to extend the existing 8-inch water line across the property than making 
two road bores across FM 2410. Water line realigned and internally looped.  

2. Provide written TxDOT approval for the two street connections at FM 2410. TxDOT approval 
provided.  

3. Regarding sanitary sewer capacity for this development, the City of Harker Heights has 
conducted an engineering study on the remaining sanitary sewer capacity of the Evergreen-
Fawn Valley Lift Station, the Trimmier Lift Station and associated lift station force mains and 



3 
 

receiving gravity sanitary sewer mains.  The sanitary sewer system serving this proposed 
subdivision is currently at capacity.  Engineering design for the sanitary sewer expansion 
project is almost completed.  Noted 

See water plans on onedrive link attached to email.  

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments on drainage deferred until preliminary plans are submitted. Major concern will be 
detention design and outlet to exiting natural channel.  Noted 

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

1. No further comments. 10/13/2021 

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. No Comments 10/13/21 

ONCOR 

1. Oncor would need a 15ft easement so we can serve the locations. 10/13/21 Noted 

TXDOT 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  Noted 

 

 

 

 



Richard Rogers <rrogers@beltonengineers.com>

Cedar Trails - TxDOT approval 
Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov> Fri, Oct 15, 2021 at 10:09 AM
To: Richard Rogers <Rrogers@beltonengineers.com>, Richard Rangel Jr <Richard.Rangel@txdot.gov>
Cc: Lina Chtay <lchtay@beltonengineers.com>

Richard,

 

Richard Rangel is out this morning so I’ll go ahead and answer that TxDOT has no further comments and agrees with the
changes made to this plat.

 

Stephen

 

From: Richard Rogers [mailto:Rrogers@beltonengineers.com]  
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2021 10:05 AM 
To: Richard Rangel Jr <Richard.Rangel@txdot.gov> 
Cc: Lina Chtay <lchtay@beltonengineers.com>; Stephen Kasberg <Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov> 
Subject: Cedar Trails - TxDOT approval

 

This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Richard,

 

Please see the attached concept plan for Cedar Trails. We placed the 1' non-access across the frontage of the property
as requested by TxDOT on Sep. 1st. 

Please review and send us an acceptance email for the city of Harker Heights' review team.

 

Thank you,

 

--

Richard Rogers
Design Engineer

Belton Engineering Inc.
106 N. East Street

mailto:Rrogers@beltonengineers.com
mailto:Richard.Rangel@txdot.gov
mailto:lchtay@beltonengineers.com
mailto:Stephen.Kasberg@txdot.gov
https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+%0D%0A+Belton,+Texas,+76513+%0D%0A+Office:+%0D%0A+254?entry=gmail&source=g


Belton, Texas, 76513
Office: 254-731-5600
Cell: 806-438-6352
www.beltonengineers.com

 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+%0D%0A+Belton,+Texas,+76513+%0D%0A+Office:+%0D%0A+254?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+%0D%0A+Belton,+Texas,+76513+%0D%0A+Office:+%0D%0A+254?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/106+N.+East+Street+%0D%0A+Belton,+Texas,+76513+%0D%0A+Office:+%0D%0A+254?entry=gmail&source=g
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.beltonengineers.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CStephen.Kasberg%40txdot.gov%7Cc5e3f07ab4bb410d5bcd08d98fed225d%7C39dba4765c094c6391dace7a3ab5224d%7C0%7C0%7C637699071466502253%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=xLRte5uXutYMHY6TMfo8qiZEiNVpShlbKx%2BxGnF4GCw%3D&reserved=0
https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/media-center/featured.html


Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

    

P21-29          AGENDA ITEM# VIII-2 
FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                          DATE:    NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A REQUEST FOR A PRELIMINARY PLAT 

REFERRED TO AS STILLHOUSE LAKE ROAD ADDITION ON PROPERTY 

DESCRIBED AS R.W. TOM SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 837, AND THE LUCY O’DELL 

SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 644, AND THE LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED BEING ALL 

OF THAT CERTAIN CALLED 1.50 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO STAR 

STILLHOUSE PROPERTIES, LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, BY 

CORRECTION SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED WITH VENDOR’S LIEN RECORDED IN 

DOCUMENT 2021000947, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 

GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF STILLHOUSE LAKE ROAD AND 

NORTH OF NEVAEH ROAD, HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND 

TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant submitted an application for preliminary plat approval for approximately 1.50 acres 

of vacant land located on Stillhouse Lake Road. The proposed development will consist of 1 (one) 

lot that is currently zoned Secondary and Highway Business District (B-4). The applicant indicated 

that the proposed use for this parcel is a Convenience Store/Gas Station. The proposed subdivision 

is located within the Knight’s Way Overlay District, and any development within this subdivision 

will be required to comply with standards set forth in the Overlay District. 

 

As of October 14, 2021 staff had reviewed the submitted preliminary plat and engineering plans 

and made comments to address safety, drainage, water and wastewater utilities and other pertinent 

requirements to ensure that all developmental regulations stipulated in the City of Harker Heights 

Code of Ordinances will be adhered to.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

On October 14, 2021, staff returned comments to the applicant. On October 19, 2021, the applicant 

submitted revisions based on the October 14th comments. Comments on revisions have been 

substantially met, with remaining comments being related to the construction phase and TxDOT 

approval of the Final Plat, staff therefore recommended approval of the Preliminary Plat to the 

Planning & Zoning Commission for the subdivision referred to as Stillhouse Lake Road Addition. 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (5-1) to recommend approval of a Preliminary Plat for the subdivision 

referred to as Stillhouse Lake Road Addition on property described as R.W. Tom survey, abstract 

No. 837, and the Lucy O’Dell Survey, Abstract No. 644, and the land herein described being all 

of that certain called 1.50 acre tract of land conveyed to Star Stillhouse Properties, LLC, a Texas 

Limited Liability Company, by Correction Special Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien recorded 

in Document 2021000947, Official Public Records of Bell County, Texas, generally located on 

the east side of Stillhouse Lake Road and north of Nevaeh Road, Harker Heights, Bell County, 

Texas. 

 

The one dissenting Planning and Zoning Commissioner indicated concerns with adverse impacts 

to adjoining properties.  

 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation a request 

for Preliminary Plat for the subdivision referred to as Stillhouse Lake Road Addition on 

property described as R.W. Tom survey, abstract No. 837, and the Lucy O’Dell Survey, 

Abstract No. 644, and the land herein described being all of that certain called 1.50 acre 

tract of land conveyed to Star Stillhouse Properties, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability 

Company, by Correction Special Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien recorded in 

Document 2021000947, Official Public Records of Bell County, Texas, generally located 

on the east side of Stillhouse Lake Road and north of Nevaeh Road, Harker Heights, Bell 

County, Texas. 

2. Any other action desired. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application 

2. Field notes 

3. Dedication 

4. Concept Plan 

5. Dumpster Plan 

6. Stillhouse Lake Road Addition - Preliminary Plat 

7. Stillhouse Lake Road Addition - Preliminary Engineering Documents 

8. Location Map 

9. Staff Comments with Responses (Comments sent 10/14/2021 and 10/20/21, Revisions 

received 10/19/2021) 





STATE OF TEXAS  DATE OF SURVEY 
COUNTY OF BELL  01/21/21 

Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT “A” – 1.499 ACRES 

 
Being a tract of land in Bell County, Texas, lying and situated in the R.W. TOM 

SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 837, and the LUCY O’DELL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 

644, and the land herein described being the all of that certain called 1.50 acre tract of 

land conveyed to Star Stillhouse Properties, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability Company, by 

Correction Special Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien recorded in Document 

2021000947, Official Public Records of Bell County, Texas (OPRBCT), and being more 

fully described by metes and bounds as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a 1/2” iron rod found with a cap “M&A” (North=10355584.546, 

East=3134885.461) at the common corner of said 1.50 acre Star Properties tract 

(southwest corner), and at the northwest corner of Cedarbrook Ridge Phase One 

Amended, an addition dedicated to the City of Harker Heights, Texas according to the 

plat number 107-C, recorded in Instrument 2018-26935, Plat Records of Bell County, 

Texas (PRBCT) and in the east right of way line of Stillhouse Lake Road (also known as 

Farm-to-Market Road No. 3481), a State of Texas maintained roadway;  

 

THENCE NORTH 15°38'15" EAST, with the common line of said 1.50 acre Star 

Properties tract (west line) and Stillhouse Lake Road (east line), a distance of 233.05 

feet to a 5/8” iron rod found with a cap “ACS” in the east right of way line of Stillhouse 

Lake Road, at the common corner of said 1.50 acre Star Properties tract (northwest 

corner), and that certain remainder tract of a called 490.1 acre tract of land conveyed to 

James Dennis Magill by Deed recorded in Volume 1177, Page 145, Deed Records of 

Bell County, Texas (DRBCT) (southwest corner); 

 

THENCE SOUTH 74°24'56" EAST, with the common line of said 1.50 acre Star 

Properties tract (north line) and said James Dennis remainder tract (south line), a 

distance of 280.15 feet to a 5/8” iron rod found with a cap “ACS” at the common corner 

of said 1.50 acre Star Properties tract (northeast corner), and said James Dennis 

remainder tract (southeast corner), and in the west line of Cedarbrook Ridge Phase III, 

an addition dedicated to the City of Harker Heights, Texas according to the plat 

recorded in Instrument 2021-2921A, PRBCT;  

 

THENCE SOUTH 15°35'19" WEST, with the common line of said 1.50 acre Star 

Properties tract (east line) and Cedarbrook Ridge Phase III (west line), at 230.87 feet 

passing a iron rod found lies 0.03 feet left (measured in a perpendicular fashion) from 

the common line, an overall distance of 233.05 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found at the 

common corner of said 1.50 acre Star Properties tract (southeast corner), and 

Cedarbrook Ridge Phase III (an interior corner), and in the north line of Cedarbrook 

Ridge Phase I Amended;  



STATE OF TEXAS  DATE OF SURVEY 
COUNTY OF BELL  01/21/21 

Page 2 of 2 

 

THENCE, with the common line of said 1.50 acre Star Properties tract (south line) and 

Cedarbrook Ridge Phase I Amended (north line), NORTH 74°24'52" WEST, at 55.51 

feet passing a 1/2” iron rod found lies 0.31 feet south (measured in a perpendicular 

fashion) and at 143.26 feet passing an iron found with a cap lies 0.28 feet south 

(measured in a perpendicular fashion) from the common line, 280.35 feet to the POINT 

OF BEGINNING and containing 1.499 acres of land. (65,311.355 S.F.) 

 

 

 *******************************************    ******************************************* 

 

STATE OF TEXAS        DATE OF SURVEY 

COUNTY OF BELL        01/21/2021 

1.499 ACRES 

 

I, Bruce L. Bryan, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Texas, do 

hereby certify that these field notes are a correct representation of a survey made on 

the ground under my supervision. 

 

_____________________________________  __________________________ 

Bruce Lane Bryan      Date 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor #4249 

TSPLS FIRM No. 10128500 

www.bryantechnicalservices.com 

 
NOTE:  Bearings shown hereon based on Texas State plane coordinate system (Central Zone 

4203, NAD 83, 93 Adjustments.  Distances are shown as grid values. 

See attached surveyor's plat, which accompanies this set of field notes. 

http://www.bryantechnicalservices.com/


Page 1 of 2 

 
DEDICATION INSTRUMENT for: 

STILLHOUSE LAKE ROAD ADDITION 
AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF 

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 

WHEREAS, STAR STILLHOUSE PROPERTIES LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, being the sole owner of that 1.499 acre tract 
of land described by metes and bounds in a survey prepared by Bryan Technical 
Services, Inc., Registered Professional Land Surveyor, dated the 11th day of January 
2021, which Field Notes are attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof as fully 
as if written verbatim, does hereby name and designate said tract as Stillhouse Lake 
Road Addition, an addition to the City of Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas and does 
hereby adopt the attached map and plat thereof and does hereby agree that all future 
sales and conveyances of said property shall be by reference to said plat and dedication.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
its assignees and franchisees furnishing public utilities in said subdivision, hereinafter 
collectively referred to as Grantee, the easements as shown on said plat for drainage 
purposes and for the installation, operation, maintenance, repair, use and replacement of 
all public utility lines, including electric power, water, sewer, gas and telephone, and 
reference is hereby made to such plat for the location of such easements.  
 

Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
and to the general public, for public use and for public purposes the streets, avenues and 
roadways as shown on said plat. 
 
The Grantee shall have all other rights and benefits necessary or convenient for the full 
enjoyment or use of the rights herein granted, included but not limited to, the free right of 
ingress or egress over and across said lands to and from said easements to construct, 
reconstruct and maintain same. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the easements and right-of-ways, together with all and singular 
the rights and privileges thereto in any manner belonging unto the said Grantee, its 
successors and assigns forever, and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its successors and 
assigns, to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the said premises unto 
the said City of Harker Heights, Texas, its successors and assigns, against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming, or to claim the same or any part thereof. 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
EXECUTED this the ________ day of __________________________________, 2021 
 
       
 
 
     BY: _____________________________________ 
      Mustaqali Momin 
      Star Stillhouse Properties, LLC 
      A Texas limited liability company 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Mustaqali 
Momin of Star Stillhouse Properties, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, known to me 
to be the persons and officer whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration 
therein stated. 
 
Given under my hand and seal of office this the ______day of _______________, 2021 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Texas  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________ 
City Attorney’s Office 
 





Lina Chtay
Polygon

Lina Chtay
Line

Lina Chtay
Callout
40' HORIZONTAL SPACING







STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

TAX CERTIFICATE

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:







2500

2503

2523

1105

2503

1001

2502

2507

810

2512

823

2511

2512

800

1301

2525
2502

804

2504

2506

2506

2501

818

0

2500

2507

0

829

802

817

2508

0

806

2501

2521

1205

2508

0

1007

2520

0

2505

816

2527

825

2536
2518

2506

2511
2514

2509

822 824

2503

807

2516

2510

2502

2532

2500

811

2507

809

2500

1104

25152514

1003

805

2513

2534

1113

2506

813

800

808

814

2503

2509

1111

2531

1211

2505

2511

2510

1103

2504

2513

827

811

833

2503

1201

2508

2533

820

1203

2510

803

2501

2505

2507

2504

2519

2502

1005

1207

2515

2500

2517

1109

809

2509

2505

2501

2501

831

2505

2530 2529

1209

1107

0

815

0

0

2535
2513

2504

ST
ILL

HO
US

E L
AK

E R
D

TORINO ST

LUCCA STSNOW BIRD DR

RE
D 

FE
RN

 D
R

LAVIGNE CT

WH
ITE

 M
OO

N 
DR

FREDDIE L NICHOLS

SR DR

NEVAEH DR

VESUVIUS CT

TORINO ST

BA
RG

EL
LO

ST

KACHINA LP

AR
NO

ST

KACHINA LP

CO
RT

ON
A S

T

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

P21-29

Stillhouse Lake Road Addition

Location

0 90 180 270 36045
Feet



1 
 

STILLHOUSE ROAD ADDITION 

P21-29 Preliminary Plat – Stillhouse Road Addition  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: October 6, 2021 
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 14, 2021 

Resubmittal Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 20, 2021 
 

Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell  

1. Applicant shall clarify the differences between the documents and within the Field Notes 
with respect to the acreage of the parcel begin platted (1.499 acres vs 1.50 acres). We 
acknowledge this is a small deviation but want to be sure that the correct public notice is 
given. 10/20/21 Met. 

2. The following items can be addressed during construction site plan review and are provided 
for the Applicant’s advanced reference. 10/20/21 Response Noted. 

a. Per §154.21(C)(1)(j), applicant shall provide a draft of the offsite utility easement for 
the sewer line through the property to the east of this parcel. Applicant is advised that 
said easement must be executed and recorded prior to release of public utility 
construction plans for this parcel and prior to final plat. 

b. Applicant is advised that TXDOT approval of the driveway(s) along FM 3481 will be 
required prior to final plat and release of construction site plans. This may require a 
traffic impact analysis. 

c. Applicant is advised that the outfall for the proposed detention pond must be 
contained within and sheet flow reestablished within the property and with attention 
to the impact on the downstream sidewalk.  

d. Applicant is advised that a fire hydrant, water main stub out to the north, and a bore 
under the entire ROW of FM 3481 will be required. 

e. Applicant is advised that the final buildout of this lot was not taken into consideration 
with the referenced 2020 LOMR. Therefore, additional drainage calculations may be 
required. 

f. Applicant is advised that the Knight’s Way Overlay District requirements apply to 
development on this parcel.  

i. Additional landscape requirements and sidewalks are required. 
(https://harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/DevelopmentOverlayDistrict1Manua
l121013-LowRes.pdf) 

ii. Dumpster gate cannot open toward street frontage.  

https://harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/DevelopmentOverlayDistrict1Manual121013-LowRes.pdf
https://harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/DevelopmentOverlayDistrict1Manual121013-LowRes.pdf


2 
 

iii. Additional parking requirements required in this district may impact the site 
layout. 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. No Comments 10/13/2021  

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments for drainage are reserved for submission of site development plan. 
2. Sidewalk will be required across frontage along FM 3481. 10/11/2021. 10/20/21 Applicant’s 

response is noted. 

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

1. The proposed hydrant will need to be located closer to the entrance of the property. 
10/13/21. 10/20/21 Met. 

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. No Comments 10/7/2021 

ONCOR 

1. Oncor would need a 15ft easement so we can serve the locations. 10/20/21 Met. 

Century Link, Chris McGuire 

1. Approved, no comments. 10/7/2021 

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  

ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  

TXDOT 

1. Tx DOT is in discussions with the developer regarding driveway access, and shared 
access/driveway for the lot to the immediate north. 10/21/2021 



1 
 

STILLHOUSE ROAD ADDITION 

P21-29 Preliminary Plat – Stillhouse Road Addition  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: October 6, 2021 
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 14, 2021 

 
Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell  

1. Applicant shall clarify the differences between the documents and within the Field Notes 
with respect to the acreage of the parcel begin platted (1.499 acres vs 1.50 acres). We 
acknowledge this is a small deviation but want to be sure that the correct public notice is 
given.  

a. The 1.50 acre callout in the field notes is based on the legal acreage recorded in Doc 
No. 2021000947. 

b. When we prepared our field notes, we did an onsite survey and concluded that the 
acreage was 1.499 acres. The most current boundary survey defines this tract as 
1.499 acres. 

2. The following items can be addressed during construction site plan review and are provided 
for the Applicant’s advanced reference.  

a. Per §154.21(C)(1)(j), applicant shall provide a draft of the offsite utility easement for 
the sewer line through the property to the east of this parcel. Applicant is advised that 
said easement must be executed and recorded prior to release of public utility 
construction plans for this parcel and prior to final plat. Noted 

b. Applicant is advised that TXDOT approval of the driveway(s) along FM 3481 will be 
required prior to final plat and release of construction site plans. This may require a 
traffic impact analysis. Noted 

c. Applicant is advised that the outfall for the proposed detention pond must be 
contained within and sheet flow reestablished within the property and with attention 
to the impact on the downstream sidewalk.  Noted 

d. Applicant is advised that a fire hydrant, water main stub out to the north, and a bore 
under the entire ROW of FM 3481 will be required. Bore under FM 3481, fire hydrant 
and water main stub out to the north are proposed.  

e. Applicant is advised that the final buildout of this lot was not taken into consideration 
with the referenced 2020 LOMR. Therefore, additional drainage calculations may be 
required. Noted 



2 
 

f. Applicant is advised that the Knight’s Way Overlay District requirements apply to 
development on this parcel.  Noted 

i. Additional landscape requirements and sidewalks are required. 
(https://harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/DevelopmentOverlayDistrict1Manua
l121013-LowRes.pdf) Noted 

ii. Dumpster gate cannot open toward street frontage.  Noted 
iii. Additional parking requirements required in this district may impact the site 

layout. Noted 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. No Comments 10/13/2021 Noted 

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments for drainage are reserved for submission of site development plan. Noted 
2. Sidewalk will be required across frontage along FM 3481. 10/11/2021 Noted 

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley  

1. The proposed hydrant will need to be located closer to the entrance of the property. 10/13/21 
Proposed fire hydrant moved to be closer to entrance of the property. 

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. No Comments 10/7/2021 Noted 

ONCOR 

1. Oncor would need a 15ft easement so we can serve the locations 20’ U.E. added to the west 
boundary, 15’ U.E. added to the north, south and east boundaries. 

Century Link, Chris McGuire 

1. Approved, no comments. 10/7/2021 Noted 

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  Noted 

ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  Noted 

https://harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/DevelopmentOverlayDistrict1Manual121013-LowRes.pdf
https://harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/DevelopmentOverlayDistrict1Manual121013-LowRes.pdf


3 
 

TXDOT 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming.  TxDOT concurrence has been pursued. 



CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

  

P21-30          AGENDA ITEM# VIII-3 
FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                         DATE:    NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A REQUEST FOR A PRELIMINARY PLAT 

REFERRED TO AS CHAPARRAL ROAD ADDITION ON PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 

PETER WILLIAMSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1099 AND THE LAND HEREIN 

DESCRIBED BEING A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN 3.79 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED 

TO RENA CHANG HOOT BY GIFT DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 3475, PAGE 616, 

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, GENERALLY LOCATED 

AT THE INTERSECTION OF CHAPARRAL ROAD AND F.M. 3481 (STILLHOUSE 

LAKE ROAD), HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND TAKE THE 

APPROPRIATE ACTION. 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant submitted an application for preliminary plat approval for approximately 1.73 acres 

of vacant land located on at the intersection of Chaparral Road and Stillhouse Lake Road. The 

proposed development will consist of 1 (one) lot that is currently zoned Secondary and Highway 

Business District (B-4). The applicant indicated that the proposed use for this parcel is a 

Convenience Store/Gas Station. The 2021 Land Use Plan indicates this parcel to be designated as 

a Community Center land use, which is appropriate for the intended use.  

 

As of October 19, 2021 staff had reviewed the submitted preliminary plat and engineering plans 

and made comments to address safety, drainage, water and wastewater utilities and other pertinent 

requirements to ensure that all developmental regulations stipulated in the City of Harker Heights 

Code of Ordinances will be adhered to.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

On October 14, 2021, staff returned comments to the applicant. On October 18, 2021, the applicant 

submitted revisions based on the October 14th comments. Comments on revisions were 

substantially met at that time, with all but one of the remaining comments being related to 

administrative components. The applicant has requested a variance to allow for sidewalks to be 

excluded from this development. Therefore, staff recommended denial of the Preliminary Plat to 

the Planning and Zoning Commission due to the applicant not meeting the sidewalk plan in the 

adopted Mobility 2030 plan.  

 

On October 28, 2021, the applicant withdrew the request for a sidewalk variance and submitted in 

a sidewalk plan for this plat. Staff has reviewed the submitted sidewalk plan for compliance. The 

applicant now meets the city’s preliminary plat code requirements. Staff therefore recommends 

that the plat be approved.  

 

 

 



ACTION TAKEN BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on October 27, 2021, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend disapproval of a Preliminary Plat for the 

subdivision referred to Chaparral Road Addition on property described as Peter Williamson 

Survey, Abstract No. 1099 and the land herein described being a portion of that certain 3.79 acre 

tract conveyed to Rena Chang Hoot by Gift Deed recorded in Volume 3475, Page 616, Official 

Public Records of Bell County, Texas, generally located at the intersection of Chaparral Road and 

F.M. 3481 (Stillhouse Lake Road), Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. The Planning & Zoning 

Commission stated that this disapproval was due to not meeting the City’s requirements. More 

specifically noncompliance with §154.21(C)(2)(d) which requires a sidewalk layout plan and with 

§154.21(D)(2) which requires conformity with the city’s plans and thoroughfare plan.  

 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

This Preliminary Plat case was not recommended for approval by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission. Since this is not a zoning case, a simple majority vote by the City Council is 

required for this case.  

 

1. Motion to approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove with explanation a request 

for Preliminary Plat for the subdivision referred to Chaparral Road Addition on property 

described as Peter Williamson Survey, Abstract No. 1099 and the land herein described 

being a portion of that certain 3.79 acre tract conveyed to Rena Chang Hoot by Gift Deed 

recorded in Volume 3475, Page 616, Official Public Records of Bell County, Texas, 

generally located at the intersection of Chaparral Road and F.M. 3481 (Stillhouse Lake 

Road), Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas. 

 

2. Any other action desired. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application 

2. Field notes 

3. Dedication 

4. Concept Plan 

5. Chaparral Road Addition - Preliminary Plat 

6. Chaparral Road Addition - Preliminary Engineering Documents 

7. Location Map 

8. Mobility 2030 – Sidewalk plan 

9. Staff Comments with Responses (Comments sent 10/14/21, 10/20/21 and 11/01/21; 

Revisions received 10/18/21 and 10/28/21) 









Page 1 of 2 

 
DEDICATION INSTRUMENT for: 
CHAPARRAL ROAD ADDITION 
AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF 

HARKER HEIGHTS, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 

WHEREAS, STAR STILLHOUSE PROPERTIES LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, being the sole owner of that 1.730 acre tract 
of land described by metes and bounds in a survey prepared by Bryan Technical 
Services, Inc., Registered Professional Land Surveyor, dated the 29th day of March 2021, 
which Field Notes are attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof as fully as if 
written verbatim, does hereby name and designate said tract as Chapparal Road 
Addition, an addition to the City of Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas and does hereby 
adopt the attached map and plat thereof and does hereby agree that all future sales and 
conveyances of said property shall be by reference to said plat and dedication.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
its assignees and franchisees furnishing public utilities in said subdivision, hereinafter 
collectively referred to as Grantee, the easements as shown on said plat for drainage 
purposes and for the installation, operation, maintenance, repair, use and replacement of 
all public utility lines, including electric power, water, sewer, gas and telephone, and 
reference is hereby made to such plat for the location of such easements.  
 

Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey to the City of Harker Heights, Texas, 
and to the general public, for public use and for public purposes the streets, avenues and 
roadways as shown on said plat. 
 
The Grantee shall have all other rights and benefits necessary or convenient for the full 
enjoyment or use of the rights herein granted, included but not limited to, the free right of 
ingress or egress over and across said lands to and from said easements to construct, 
reconstruct and maintain same. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the easements and right-of-ways, together with all and singular 
the rights and privileges thereto in any manner belonging unto the said Grantee, its 
successors and assigns forever, and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its successors and 
assigns, to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the said premises unto 
the said City of Harker Heights, Texas, its successors and assigns, against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming, or to claim the same or any part thereof. 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
EXECUTED this the ________ day of __________________________________, 2021 
 
       
 
 
     BY: _____________________________________ 
      Mustaqali Momin 
      Star Stillhouse Properties, LLC 
      A Texas limited liability company 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Mustaqali 
Momin of Star Stillhouse Properties, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, known to me 
to be the persons and officer whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration 
therein stated. 
 
Given under my hand and seal of office this the ______day of _______________, 2021 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Texas  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________ 
City Attorney’s Office 
 











STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

TAX CERTIFICATE

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF BELL
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:







3337

3307

819

3304

3327

3320

820

818

3311

3318

3328

812

815

821

3314 3315

3341

3307

819

3333

0

813
3307

3312

3307

3317

814

3307

816

3322

3332

0

810 3323

818

3308

3339

818

3330

3306

3325

3313

820

8523

3326

3303

33
43

822

3316

3329

816

3310

3321

817

3302

0

3319

817

3324

814

3305

3331

0

3320

3309

3335

STILLHOUSE LAKE RD

SIENA CT

CATHEDRAL CT POPPI PL

CH
AP

AR
RA

L R
D

VIN
EY

AR
D T

RL

HAZEL B

HAZEL A

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community

P21-30

Chaparral Road Addition

Location

0 75 150 225 30037.5
Feet









1 
 

CHAPARRAL ROAD ADDITION 

P21‐30 Preliminary Plat – Chaparral Road Addition  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: October 6, 2021  
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 14, 2021 

Resubmission Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 20, 2021 
Resubmission Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: November 1, 2021 

 
 

Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell  

1. Applicant shall clarify the differences between the plat and the Field Notes with respect to 

the reference to “being a portion of that certain 3.79 acre tract conveyed to Rena Chang 

Hoot by Gift Deed recorded in Volume 3475, Page 616, OPRBCT”. We acknowledge this is a 

small deviation but want to be sure that the correct public notice is given. 10/20/21 Met. 

2. Per §154.21(C)(2)(d),  applicant  shall  provide a  sidewalk  layout. Additionally,  said  sidewalk 

shall be in accordance with the City’s Mobility 2030 plan (6’‐8’ wide for this area). 10/20/21 

Not  Met.  Applicant’s  request  for  a  variance  will  be  routed  to  P&Z  and  City  Council 

accordingly. 11/01/21 Met. Applicant’s withdrawl  of  the  requested  sidewalk  variance  is 

noted. The submitted sidewalk plan will meet the intent if it is included within a passage 

easement. Applicant shall provide said passage easement with the submission of the final 

plat.  

3. The following items can be addressed during construction site plan review and are provided 

for the Applicant’s advanced reference. 10/20/21 Applicant’s response is noted. 

a. Applicant is advised that TXDOT approval of the driveway(s) along FM 3481 will be 

required prior to final plat and release of construction site plans. This may require a 

traffic impact analysis. 

b. Applicant  is  advised  that  the  outfall  for  the  proposed  detention  pond  must  be 

contained within and sheet flow reestablished within the property.  

c. Applicant is advised that the drainage impact from removing the existing berm will be 

required. 

d. Per §51.16 (D) (3), applicant  is advised that the dumpster gates shown on concept 

plan cannot impede the fire lane.  

Public Works, Mark Hyde  



2 
 

1. The minimum pipe diameter for sanitary sewer to be installed along a public ROW is 6‐inches.  

The sanitary sewer service line shown must be a minimum of 6‐inches in diameter. 10/13/2021 

10/20/21 Met. 

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments for drainage are reserved for when site development plan is submitted. 10/11/2021  

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley 

1. The hydrant  indicated on the plans cannot be used for  firefighting purposes according to the 

Central  Texas Water  Supply  Corporation.    A  hydrant will  be  required  near  an  entrance  on  a 

minimum 8 inch line. 10/13/2021 No additional comments 10/19/2021.  

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. No comments. 10/7/2021 

ONCOR 

2. Oncor would need a 15ft  easement  so we  can  serve  the  locations. No additional  comments 

received as of 10/20/2021.  

 

Century Link, Chris McGuire 

1. Approved, no comments. 10/7/2021 

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 

forthcoming. 

ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 

1. I am in agreement with the proposed plat. 

TXDOT 

1. TxDOT requests a 1’ non‐access easement along the frontage on FM 3481 except where the 

proposed driveway is located. No Additional Comments 10/18/2021 

 



1 
 

CHAPARRAL ROAD ADDITION 

P21-30 Preliminary Plat – Chaparral Road Addition  
 

Plat Distributed to HH Staff: October 6, 2021  
Comments Returned to Belton Engineering: October 14, 2021 

 
Planning & Development, Kristina Ramirez & Yvonne Spell  

1. Applicant shall clarify the differences between the plat and the Field Notes with respect to 
the reference to “being a portion of that certain 3.79 acre tract conveyed to Rena Chang 
Hoot by Gift Deed recorded in Volume 3475, Page 616, OPRBCT”. We acknowledge this is a 
small deviation but want to be sure that the correct public notice is given. “A PORTION OF 
THAT CERTAIN 3.79 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (1.730 ACRES)” added to owner’s signature block. This 
1.730ac tract is a portion of the 3.79 acre tract conveyed to Rena Chang Hoot. 

2. Per §154.21(C)(2)(d), applicant shall provide a sidewalk layout. Additionally, said sidewalk 
shall be in accordance with the City’s Mobility 2030 plan (6’-8’ wide for this area). Please see 
the attached variance request for the sidewalk requirement. 

3. The following items can be addressed during construction site plan review and are provided 
for the Applicant’s advanced reference. Noted 

a. Applicant is advised that TXDOT approval of the driveway(s) along FM 3481 will be 
required prior to final plat and release of construction site plans. This may require a 
traffic impact analysis. Noted 

b. Applicant is advised that the outfall for the proposed detention pond must be 
contained within and sheet flow reestablished within the property. Noted 

c. Applicant is advised that the drainage impact from removing the existing berm will be 
required. Noted 

d. Per §51.16 (D) (3), applicant is advised that the dumpster gates shown on concept 
plan cannot impede the fire lane. Noted 

Public Works, Mark Hyde  

1. The minimum pipe diameter for sanitary sewer to be installed along a public ROW is 6-inches.  
The sanitary sewer service line shown must be a minimum of 6-inches in diameter. 10/13/2021 
Sewer service shown as 6in as required. 

Consulting Engineer, Otto Wiederhold  

1. Comments for drainage are reserved for when site development plan is submitted. 10/11/2021 
Noted 



2 
 

Fire Marshal, Brad Alley 

1. The hydrant indicated on the plans cannot be used for firefighting purposes according to the 
Central Texas Water Supply Corporation.   A hydrant will be required near an entrance on a 
minimum 8 inch line. 10/13/2021 Fire hydrant moved closer to the entrance.  

Building Official, Mike Beard 

1. No comments. 10/7/2021 Noted 

ONCOR 

1. Oncor would need a 15ft easement so we can serve the locations 15’ U.E. added to all 
boundary lines except for south where a 10’ U.E. is provided. 

Century Link, Chris McGuire 

1. Approved, no comments. 10/7/2021 Noted 

Time Warner Cable/Spectrum, Shaun Whitehead 

1. The City has not received comments back from this reviewing entity and comments may be 
forthcoming. Noted 

ATMOS, Rusty Fischer 

1. I am in agreement with the proposed plat. Noted 

TXDOT 

1. TxDOT requests a 1’ non-access easement along the frontage on FM 3481 except where the 
proposed driveway is located. 1’ non-access easement added to the frontage except where 
driveway is located. TxDOT approval provided.  

 



1

Kristina Ramirez

From: Richard Rogers <Rrogers@beltonengineers.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 28, 2021 11:03 AM
To: Kristina Ramirez
Cc: lchtay@beltonengineers.com; Yvonne Spell; Wilson Everett
Subject: Re: Re[2]: Comments P21-27 Chaparral Road Addition
Attachments: Chaparral Gas Station - Concept Layout-Internal Sidewalk.pdf

Kristina, 
 
Please see the attached concept plan for the Chaparral Gas Station, 
We will create a 6' passage easement along the red line that runs parallel to the east property line. 
 
Let us know if this sidewalk will meet the city's requirements, 
Thank you, 
 
On Thu, Oct 28, 2021 at 10:37 AM Kristina Ramirez <kramirez@harkerheights.gov> wrote: 
Lina, 
 
Your request to withdrawal the variance  request is received. Please submit a reived site plan showing 
the preliminary sidewalk locations. Note that you do have options for the location of the sidewalks. You 
can place them along the frontage in the ROW or you can place them in a pedestrian access passage 
easement internal to the property so long as it connects property line to property line and goes up to 
the intersection. Once that is received then your plat will meet all city code requirements for this plat. 
Staff will then be able to change the recommendation to support this plat when it is presented to City 
Council.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
Kristina  
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: lchtay@beltonengineers.com <lchtay@beltonengineers.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 8:51:10 PM 



2

To: Yvonne Spell <yspell@harkerheights.gov>; Kristina Ramirez <kramirez@harkerheights.gov> 
Cc: Wilson Everett <weverett@harkerheights.gov>; rrogers@beltonengineers.com 
<rrogers@beltonengineers.com> 
Subject: Re[2]: Comments P21‐27 Chaparral Road Addition  
  
Kristina, Yvon, 
 
We want to withdraw the variance request for the sidewalk. 
 
With that are you going to change your recommendations to council next week to approve the case 
now that it meets city code? 
 
Thank you  
Lina Chtay  
 
 
 
 
Sent from App for Gmail 
 
 
Tuesday, September 14, 2021, 3:54 PM ‐0500 from Rrogers@beltonengineers.com 
<Rrogers@beltonengineers.com>: 

Wilson,  
 
Please see the attached preliminary plat, utility plan, concept plan, variance request and engineers 
response to comments for the Chaparral Road Addition. 
 
Thank you, 
 
On Tue, Sep 14, 2021 at 12:45 PM Wilson Everett <weverett@harkerheights.gov> wrote: 

All resubmissions can be sent electronically either to myself or Yvonne at yspell@harkerheights.gov 

  

Thank you 



3

  

Wilson Everett 

Planning and Development Administrative Assistant  

City of Harker Heights | 305 Miller’s Crossing | Harker Heights, TX 76548 

T: 254-953-5648 | weverett@harkerheights.gov 

  

From: Richard Rogers <Rrogers@beltonengineers.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, September 14, 2021 12:42 PM 
To: Wilson Everett <weverett@harkerheights.gov> 
Cc: Lina Chtay <lchtay@beltonengineers.com> 
Subject: Re: Comments P21‐27 Chaparral Road Addition 

  

Hey Wilson, 

  

We are correcting the comments for the gas station preliminary plats. How many copies does the city 
need for the hard copy resubmission? 

  

Thank you, 

  

On Tue, Sep 14, 2021 at 8:33 AM <lchtay@beltonengineers.com> wrote: 

  

  



4

 
 
Sent from App for Gmail 

 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Forwarded message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Wilson Everett <weverett@harkerheights.gov> 
To: starmarttexas@gmail.com <starmarttexas@gmail.com>, lchtay@beltonengineers.com 
<lchtay@beltonengineers.com>, Yvonne Spell <yspell@harkerheights.gov>, Kristina Ramirez 
<kramirez@harkerheights.gov> 
Cc: Yvonne Spell <yspell@harkerheights.gov>, Kristina Ramirez <kramirez@harkerheights.gov> 
Date: Friday, September 10, 2021, 3:50 PM ‐0500 
Subject: Comments P21‐27 Chaparral Road Addition 

Please find attached comments by Staff for the Preliminary Plat for Chaparral Road Addition. Please 
have the revised set of plans and comments emailed to me for staff re‐review no later than 8:00 
AM on Wednesday, September 15, 2021.  

  

Please note that if there are still unresolved comments by 5:00 PM on , September 22, 2021, then 
staff will issue the Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Commission staff reports with either a recommendation 
to approve with conditions or to disapprove.  

  

This does not prevent you from resolving all outstanding items prior to the P&Z meeting on 
Wednesday, September 29, 2021. Note that staff may be unable to review re‐submissions prior to 
the P&Z meeting if the re‐submissions are received after 8:00 AM on Tuesday, September 21, 2021. 

  

If you or your client don’t believe that all outstanding comments can be resolved prior to the P&Z 
meeting and your client wishes to withdraw the application, then we request that you or your 
client officially do so in writing/via email by 4:00 PM on Wednesday, September 29, 2021. You or 
the applicant will have the ability to withdraw the application on record during the P&Z meeting 
prior to any action being taken on your case.  



5

  

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

  

Wilson Everett 

Planning and Development Administrative Assistant  

City of Harker Heights | 305 Miller’s Crossing | Harker Heights, TX 76548 

T: 254-953-5648 | weverett@harkerheights.gov 

  

 
 

  

‐‐  

Richard Rogers 
Design Engineer 

To help protect you r priv acy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.

 
Belton Engineering Inc. 
106 N. East Street 
Belton, Texas, 76513 
Office: 254-731-5600 
Cell: 806-438-6352 
www.beltonengineers.com 

  

 
 







 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

          AGENDA ITEM # VIII-4    

FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                              DATE:    NOVEMBER 9, 2021 
   

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT WITH GAMBIT SOCIAL HOUSE, INC. 

(“GAMBIT”) MODIFYING THE CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION DATE TO JUNE 1, 

2022, FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF ONE OR MORE PROGRAMS FOR MAKING 

GRANTS OR LOANS OF PUBLIC MONEY TO PROMOTE ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT AND STIMULATE BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 

WITHIN THE CITY; AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE 

AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY; AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.  
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Council approved a 380 Agreement for Gambit Social House, Inc. during a regular scheduled 

City Council meeting on the 8th of June 2021.  

 

As a reminder, Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code allows a City to establish and 

provide for the administration of one or more programs for making grants or loans of public money 

to promote economic development.   The Agreement provides reasonable and adequate safeguards 

to ensure that the public receives sufficient benefits in exchange for the Incentives.  

 

Gambit Social House has requested that the original construction completion date be changed from 

March 31, 2022 to June 1, 2022, due to rain slowing work on the project early in the construction 

process.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval.   

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE amending the economic development incentive 

agreement with Gambit Social House, Inc., modifying the construction completion date to 

June 1, 2022,  for the administration of one or more programs for making grants or loans 

of public money to promote economic development and stimulate business and commercial 

activities within the City; and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf 

of the City.   

2. Any other action desired.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Economic Development Incentive Agreement  

  



1 

 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

 This Economic Development Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 

between the CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS (“City”) and GAMBIT SOCIAL 

HOUSE, INC. (“Gambit”).  The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms under which 

the City will make certain economic development grants to Gambit. 

 

 The City is authorized by Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to establish 

and provide for the administration of one or more programs for making grants or loans of public 

money to promote economic development and stimulate business and commercial activities within 

the City.  The grants described herein are made for that purpose. 

 

 The parties agree as follows: 

 

I. 

MAXIMUM GRANT LIMIT 

 

 1. The cumulative amount of grant payments to be made under this Agreement shall 

not exceed $150,299.00.  Once the cumulative amount of economic development grants (real 

property economic development grants plus sales related economic development grants) equals 

$150,299.00, the City shall have no further obligation to pay grants under this Agreement and the 

Agreement will terminate. 

 

II. 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT – GAMBIT COMMITMENTS 

 

 1. Gambit agrees to construct taxable improvements as described herein on the tract 

of property located within the city limits of the City which is described on Exhibit “A” 

(“Premises”).  The real property improvements and taxable personal property which are to be 

constructed, placed, and maintained on the Premises shall be referred to herein as the “Project 

Improvements.”  These Project Improvements that Gambit agrees to construct shall include a 

12,000 square foot entertainment venue which will house a beer tap room, restaurant, nine-hole 

miniature golf course, eight escape rooms and a 400 square foot event space.  The Project 

Improvements that Gambit agrees to construct shall also include 3 outside axe throwing lanes, 

beach volleyball facilities, and other games and seating areas on the Premises.  Gambit agrees to 

complete construction and placement of the Project Improvements having a value as described in 

Paragraph 2 below on or before March 31, 2022. June 1, 2022. 

 

 2. In consideration for the economic development grants provided for in this 

Agreement, Gambit agrees to make a minimum investment of $2,000,000.00 in the Project 

Improvements, so as to add at least $2,000,000.00 of appraised value (over the 2021 appraised 

value of the Premises), for ad valorem property tax purposes, as certified by the Bell County 

Appraisal District, to the City of Harker Heights ad valorem tax rolls beginning in the tax year 

2022.  Gambit agrees to provide the City with a description of the taxable improvements 

constructed or placed by Gambit on the Premises and to do so by the 15th day of January 2023.  



2 

 

Gambit further agrees to maintain taxable property of a total value of at least $2,000,000.00 on the 

Premises for each of the five tax years (2022 through 2026) for which the City has agreed to 

provide grants under this Agreement. 

 

 3. Gambit further agrees to employ a staff described as follows beginning on or before 

June 1, 2022, and continuing through December 31, 2027: 

 

• 35 servers; 

• 15 bartenders; 

• 6 hostesses; 

• 15 cooks; 

• 5 dishwashers; 

• 25 event and game masters; 

• 6 managers. 

 

III. 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS 

 

 1. The economic development grants to be made under this Agreement are based upon 

investments that Gambit agrees to make that will generate economic activity within the City and 

the sales activity occurring after the construction of such improvements.  The City agrees to make 

certain economic development grants to Gambit to be calculated based upon a percentage of the 

ad valorem property taxes assessed by the City (and paid by Gambit) upon Project Improvements 

(“Property Taxes”).  Further, as set forth below, the City agrees to make certain economic 

development grants to Gambit in amounts based upon a percentage of City sales tax revenues 

collected by Gambit, less any refunds by Gambit or required to be made by the City (“Sales 

Taxes”).  Subject to the performance by Gambit of its obligations hereunder, and subject to the 

conditions of this Agreement, the City agrees to make the following economic development grants 

to Gambit: 

 

 A. GRANTS RELATING TO REAL PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS (REAL 

PROPERTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS): 

  

  1. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an 

amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2022; 

 

  2. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an 

amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2023; 

 

  3. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an 

amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2024; 

 

  4. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an 

amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2025; 

 



3 

 

  5. The City will make a real property economic development grant in an 

amount equal to 50% of the City Property Taxes timely paid by Gambit for the tax year 2026. 

 

   Grants payable hereunder shall be paid for each year of this Agreement within 45 

days after Gambit has provided written notice to the City that it has made timely payment of the 

ad valorem property taxes assessed by the City for such year and a written request for payment of 

the real property economic development grant for such year.  No grant payment shall be made for 

any year in which Gambit fails to make timely payment of property taxes and no grant shall be 

paid upon penalties or fees assessed because of a failure to timely pay taxes.  No grant shall be 

paid before Gambit timely makes payment of City ad valorem property taxes. 

 

 B. GRANT CALCULATED BASED UPON SALES TAXES (SALES RELATED 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS): 

 

  “Gambit Net Sales Tax Revenues” as used in this Agreement shall mean City sales 

tax revenues collected by Gambit at its place of business in the City of Harker Heights that are 

remitted to and received by the City less any refunds by Gambit or refunds required to be made by 

the City. 

 

  1. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an 

amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2022; 

 

  2. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an 

amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2023; 

 

  3. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an 

amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2024; 

 

  4. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an 

amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2025; 

 

  5. The City will make a sales related economic development grant in an 

amount of 50% of the Gambit City Net Sales Tax Revenues for the year 2026. 

 

   To obtain payment of a sales related economic development grant for any year of 

this Agreement, Gambit shall provide notice to the City of the amount of Gambit Net Sales Tax 

Revenue collected by Gambit from the taxable retail sales of Gambit from the Premises in the 

previous calendar year and a request for payment of the sales  related economic development grant.  

Within 30 days of receiving the request and notice, the City shall review such information and 

confirm the Net Sales Tax Revenue information. Gambit shall cooperate with the City to determine 

the amount of Net Sales Tax Revenue. The City shall make the sales related grant within 60 days 

after receiving Gambits’ notice and request.   

 

  



4 

 

IV. 

REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS 

 

 1. The economic development grants described herein are subject to the following 

requirements and conditions: 

 

 A. Project improvements with an appraised value of at least $2,000,000.00 must be 

fully constructed and in place prior to June 1, 2022. 

 

 B. All construction of Project Improvements must be made in compliance with all City 

ordinances and state law. 

 

 C. Gambit must operate its retail business on the Premises for the entire term of this 

Agreement. 

 

 D. Gambit will maintain and repair all of the Project Improvements as necessary to 

keep the same in good working order for the entire term of this Agreement. 

 

E. Gambit must pay all ad valorem and sales taxes prior to such taxes becoming 

delinquent.  Gambit shall have the right to contest tax appraisals or taxes through the procedures 

provided by the Texas Tax Code.  Gambit shall promptly pay, prior to their becoming delinquent 

all property taxes which it is not so contesting unless it is required by law to pay the contested 

taxes as a part of the contest procedure.  Should Gambit contest tax appraisals or taxes, it shall 

notify the City of Harker Heights immediately of the contest and keep the City updated on status 

thereof.  Such contest must be diligently pursued by Gambit.  If Gambits’ contest is unsuccessful, 

Gambit shall promptly pay any taxes and penalties/interest resulting therefrom. 

 

 F. Construction on the Project Improvements will be full completed and fully 

operational on or before the 1st day of June, 2022. 

 

 G. The employment requirements described in Paragraph I (3) above shall continue to 

be met for the entire term of this Agreement. 

 

 H. The cumulative amount of grant payments to be made under this Agreement shall 

not exceed $150,299.00.  Once the cumulative amount of economic development grants (real 

property economic development grants plus sales related economic development grants) equals 

$150,299.00, the City shall have no further obligation to pay grants under this Agreement and the 

Agreement will terminate. 

 

V. 

COMPLIANCE 

 

 Gambit binds itself hereby to construct Project Improvements of the value and within the 

time frame required by this Agreement.  Gambit acknowledges and agrees that the purpose of this 

Agreement is to encourage economic development in the City and Gambit covenants that all uses 

of the Premises shall be consistent with the general purpose of encouraging development within 



5 

 

the City during the period that this Agreement is in effect.  Gambit shall comply with any 

reasonable request of the City for information relating to the improvements made by Gambit or 

compliance by Gambit of its obligations hereunder.  Gambit shall cooperate in regard to any audit 

or inspection by the City to assure compliance by Gambit.  Gambit shall also provide the City’s 

designated employees or consultants with access to inspect the Premises to ensure that 

improvements as required herein are being maintained in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement.  Such inspection shall not interfere with the business operations of Gambit and shall 

not occur more than twice per calendar year.   

 

VI. 

TERMINATION AND RECOUPMENT OF INCENTIVE 

 

 This Agreement terminates and is cancelled at the end of the contract term unless cancelled 

earlier as set forth below.  In the event Gambit fails to maintain taxable property of a total value 

of at least $2,000,000.00 as determined by the Bell County Appraisal District on the City of Harker 

Heights ad valorem tax rolls for any year for which the City has otherwise agreed to provide an 

economic development grant under this Agreement, this Agreement will terminate and be 

cancelled.  Further, if Gambit fails to maintain the employment level for any of the positions 

described in paragraph II (3) above for a period of more than 30 consecutive days during the term 

of this Agreement, the Agreement will terminate and be cancelled.  In the event this Agreement is 

terminated and cancelled because of the failure of Gambit maintain property values or employment 

levels as required by this Agreement, Gambit shall be obligated to repay and reimburse the City 

an amount equal to all grants which have been made pursuant to this Agreement.   

 

VII. 

TERM 

 

 Unless terminated earlier by the provisions hereof or by the parties, this Agreement shall 

terminate after the City has paid all economic development grants for the year 2027 as provided 

herein. 

 

VIII. 

ATTORNEY’S FEES 

 

 If, on account of any breach or default by Gambit on its obligations under the provisions 

of this Agreement, it shall be necessary for the City to employ an attorney or attorneys to enforce 

or defend any of its rights or remedies hereunder, should the City prevail, the City shall be entitled 

to all reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses it incurs in connection therewith. 

 

IX. 

VENUE AND CONTROLLING LAW 

 

 Texas law shall govern interpretation of this Agreement and all disputes hereunder.  This 

Agreement is performable, and shall be performed, in Bell County, Texas.  Venue to any dispute 

between the parties shall be in Bell County, Texas.  



6 

 

X. 

AMENDMENT 

 

 No amendment, modification, or alterations of the terms hereof shall be binding unless the 

same be in writing, dated subsequent to the date of this Agreement and is duly executed by both 

parties. 

 

XI. 

SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such 

provision shall automatically be deleted from the Agreement and the legality, validity or 

enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected. 

 

XII. 

PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 

 

 This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties herein with respect 

to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior understanding or written or oral agreements 

between the parties respecting the subject matter hereof. 

 

XIII. 

NO WAIVER 

 

 No waiver by the City or Gambit of any event of default or breach of any covenant, 

condition or agreement herein contained shall be treated as a waiver of any subsequent default or 

breach of the same or any covenant, condition, or agreement.   

 

XIV. 

ASSIGNMENT 

 

 This Agreement may not be assigned by Gambit without prior written consent of the City 

of Harker Heights. 

 

 

XV. 

Notice 

 

 17. All notices provided hereunder shall be given by both email and certified mail, 

return receipt requested as follows: 

 

  To the City of Harker Heights c/o David Mitchell, City Manager 

       City Hall 

       305 Millers Crossing  

       Harker Heights, TX 76548 

       Email: dmitchell@ci.harker-heights.tx.us  

mailto:dmitchell@ci.harker-heights.tx.us


7 

 

 

 

  To Gambit Social House, Inc. c/o _________________________ 

       512 S. 2nd St. 

       Killeen, TX 76541  

       Email: _________________________ 

  

       

 

 EXECUTED on this the ______ day of _______________________, 2021. 

 

 

      CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS 

 

 

 

      By:_______________________________________ 

       David Mitchell, City Manager 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

City Secretary 

 

 

      GAMBIT SOCIAL HOUSE, INC. 

 

 

      By:_______________________________________ 

      Print Name:________________________________ 

      Title:_____________________________________ 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

          AGENDA ITEM # VIII-5   

FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER                               DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 
 

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPOINTING A REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BELL COUNTY 

HEALTH DISTRICT BOARD, AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.  
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The City currently has a contract with Bell County for the Health District to provide various services on 

behalf of the City.  With this contract, it allows the City to have a representative and alternate representative 

on the Bell County Health Board.  This board serves as the administrative public health board governing 

the Health District.  

 

On August 14, 2018, the Council appointed Michael Blomquist for a term of 3 years (2018-2021) as the 

Bell County Health District Board representative for the City.  Action is needed by the City Council to 

appoint the City’s representative due to Michael Blomquist’s term expiring this year.  Michael Blomquist 

is eligible for reappointment and requests to be reappointed as the City’s representative for another 3-year 

term (2021-2024).   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Reappoint Michael Blomquist as the representative for the City. 

 

 

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Motion to Approve/Disapprove the reappointment of Michael Blomquist, to the Bell County Health 

Board as the Representative for the City of Harker Heights.  

2. Any other action desired.  

 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

None. 

 

  



CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

 

          AGENDA ITEM # VIII-6  

FROM:   THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

 

RECEIVE AND DISCUSS THE FY 2020 – 2021 FOURTH QUARTER INVESTMENT REPORT. 

 

BACKGROUND:  

Attached is the investment report for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2021. The total amount invested as of 

September 30, 2021, was $32,348,250.40. This is $8,644,711.24 more than the $23,703,539.16 that was 

invested as of September 30, 2020. 

 

As shown in the graph below, total investments decreased by $1,802,026.48 from the third quarter of the 

2021 fiscal year. The decrease of $2,624,738 in the Debt Service Fund can be attributed to the debt 

payments made in August and is also the reason for the decrease of $158,215 in the Drainage Fund. Capital 

Improvement Projects progressing during the fourth quarter include the 2020 Street Improvement Project 

and the Pinewood Drainage Project; the Pavement Replacement project at Central Station was completed. 

These, as well as other projects, account for the decrease in the Capital Improvement Fund of $744,144. 

 

 
 

The Investment Portfolio by Maturity Range, page 4 of the attached Investment Report, shows that most of 

the City’s investments (76.61%) has a maturity date within one month of September 30, 2021. Included in 

this category are the City’s checking accounts, pool accounts, three Certificates of Deposit (two matured 

on October 11th and one on October 18th), and one investment in IntraFi Network Deposits which matured 

on October 14, 2021. (The Certificate of Deposit Account Registry System, or CDARS, has been renamed 

IntraFi Network Deposits.) There are currently no investments that exceed a maturity range of one year.  

 

The City’s current investments have interest rates that range from 0.01% to 0.25%. As a comparison, 

Treasury Bill rates for a one-month investment as of September 30, 2021 was 0.07% and for a one-year 

investment was 0.08%. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  None. 

 

ACTION BY COUNCIL:  None. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Investment Report – September 30, 2021. 

Fund
As of 

06/30/2021

As of 

09/30/2021

Increase 

(Decrease)

01 General Fund 19,713,382.16 21,293,484.75 1,580,102.59

02 Utility Fund 3,663,449.24 3,787,092.05 123,642.81

03 Drainage Fund 208,562.49 50,347.66 (158,214.83)

04 Sanitation Fund 202,799.14 182,371.65 (20,427.49)

05 Capital Improvement Fund 7,054,794.50 6,310,650.45 (744,144.05)

06 Debt Service Fund 2,707,668.42 82,930.36 (2,624,738.06)

11 Hotel / Motel Fund 420,223.79 441,015.00 20,791.21

12 Restricted Court Fund 179,397.14 200,358.48 20,961.34

Total / Average 34,150,276.88 32,348,250.40 (1,802,026.48)



City of Harker Heights 
Portfolio Management - Portfolio Summary 

As of 9/30/2021 

Description Yield 
CDARS Program 0.295 
Certificate of Deposit 0.296 
Checking Accounts 0.150 
Pool Acounts 0.034 

Total / Average 0.165 

Face Amount/Shares Cost Value 
4,432,349.48 4,432,349.48 
5,650,559.95 5,650,559.95 

13,849,732.73 13,849,732.73 
8,415,404.46 8,415,404.46 

32,348,046.62 32,348,046.62 

Interest Income Earned Through September 30, 2021: $143,641.22 
Average Daily Balance Through September 30, 2021: $31,967,808.48 

Market Value Days To Maturity % of Portfolio 
4,432,349.48 75 13.70 
5,650,763.73 131 17.47 

13,849,732.73 1 42.81 
8,415,404.46 1 26.02 

32,348,250.40 34 100.00 

This quarterly investment report has been prepared in full compliance with the City of Harker Heights' Investment Policy and the Public 

Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256.023). 

~ tt/ z,/ ZfJZ/ 
Ayesha Leali t , Finance 1Dire,e'tor 

~//~ //~UZI 
David R. Mitchell, City Manager 

1 



2

CDARS Program
13.70%

Certificate of Deposit
17.47%

Checking Accounts
42.81%

Pool Acounts
26.02%

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS DISTRIBUTION BY ASSET CLASS



Description Asset Category
Beginning 

Market Value
Total Deposits/ 

Purchases

Total 
Withdrawals/ 

Maturities

Change in 
Market Value

Ending Market 
Value

Interest/ 
Dividends

Accrued 
Interest Earned 
During Period

Maturity 
Date

Beginning 
Yield

Ending 
Yield

First National Bank Texas - Killeen, TX 1.4 10/14/2021 05-100-210 CDARS Capital Projects [UR] 768,137.34 2,715.31 0.00 0.00 770,852.65 2,715.31 2,715.31 10/14/2021 1.400 1.400
First National Bank Texas - Killeen, TX 0.07 12/2/2021 01-100-208 CDARS General Fund Reserve [UR] 1,038,631.84 183.30 0.00 0.00 1,038,815.14 183.30 183.30 12/2/2021 0.070 0.070
First National Bank Texas - Killeen, TX 0.06 1/6/2022 01-100-210 CDARS General Fund [UR] 2,622,285.09 396.60 0.00 0.00 2,622,681.69 396.60 396.60 1/6/2022 0.060 0.060
Sub Total/Average CDARS Program 4,429,054.27 3,295.21 0.00 0.00 4,432,349.48 3,295.21 3,295.21 0.295 0.295

BBVA - Temple, TX 1.55 7/23/2021 01-100-216 CD General Fund [UR] 1,533,233.73 0.00 1,533,233.73 0.00 0.00 1,954.50 1,498.72 7/23/2021 1.550
BBVA - Temple, TX 0.2 8/24/2021 02-100-216 CD Meter Fund [R] 400,666.86 65.87 400,732.73 0.00 0.00 133.95 120.80 8/24/2021 0.200
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.5 8/28/2021 01-100-216 CD General Fund [UR] 1,003,744.38 0.00 1,003,744.38 0.00 0.00 1,264.99 811.25 8/28/2021 0.500
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 10/11/2021 05-100-221 CD Capital Projects [UR] 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 0.00 315.07 10/11/2021 0.250 0.250
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 10/11/2021 01-100-216 CD General Fund [UR] 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 630.13 10/11/2021 0.250 0.250
Goldman Sachs Bank USA - New York, NY 1.75 10/18/2021 05-100-221 CD Capital Projects [UR] 248,282.67 0.00 0.00 (1,078.89) 247,203.78 0.00 1,089.51 10/18/2021 1.750 1.750
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 3/2/2022 01-100-215 CD General Fund Reserve [UR] 2,001,260.27 1,261.07 0.00 0.00 2,002,521.34 1,261.07 1,261.31 3/2/2022 0.250 0.250
BBVA - Temple, TX 0.1 3/3/2022 05-100-235 CD Series 2018 Operating 750,693.55 189.24 0.00 0.00 750,882.79 189.24 189.24 3/3/2022 0.100 0.100
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 3/22/2022 02-100-216 CD Meter Fund [R] 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 19.18 3/22/2022 0.250
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 4/14/2022 11-100-203 CD Hotel / Motel [UR] 250,000.00 155.82 0.00 0.00 250,155.82 155.82 157.61 4/14/2022 0.250 0.250
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 9/23/2022 01-100-220 CD Cable Franchise PEG 0.00 350,000.00 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 0.00 16.78 9/23/2022 0.250
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 9/23/2022 11-100-203 CD Hotel / Motel [UR] 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 7.19 9/23/2022 0.250
Sub Total/Average Certificate of Deposit 7,687,881.46 901,672.00 2,937,710.84 (1,078.89) 5,650,763.73 4,959.57 6,116.79 0.573 0.296

BancorpSouth - Checking MM 01 General Fund 3,736,269.62 67,641,014.84 63,406,805.93 0.00 7,970,478.53 2,174.68 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
BancorpSouth - Checking MM 02 Utility Fund 3,030,440.91 18,911,597.05 18,806,688.35 0.00 3,135,349.61 868.25 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
BancorpSouth - Checking MM 03 Drainage Fund 179,158.98 1,733,382.36 1,891,597.97 0.00 20,943.37 48.43 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
BancorpSouth - Checking MM 04 Sanitation Fund 125,935.84 1,635,909.21 1,606,338.13 0.00 155,506.92 47.14 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
BancorpSouth - Checking MM 05 Capital Improvement Fund 3,102,959.80 898,827.33 1,644,934.54 0.00 2,356,852.59 463.51 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
BancorpSouth - Checking MM 06 Debt Service Fund 38,182.39 10,537,849.24 10,550,013.00 0.00 26,018.63 22.74 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
BancorpSouth - Checking MM 11 Hotel / Motel Fund 90,425.06 308,107.84 387,473.40 0.00 11,059.50 36.04 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
BancorpSouth - Checking MM 12 Restricted Court Fund 58,386.40 45,899.67 24,941.71 0.00 79,344.36 25.93 N/A N/A 0.150 0.150
Subtotal BancorpSouth - Checking MM 10,361,759.00 101,712,587.54 98,318,793.03 0.00 13,755,553.51 3,686.72
First National Bank Texas - Checking MM 02 Utility Fund 74,791.40 19,388.82 1.00 0.00 94,179.22 18.21 N/A N/A 0.100 0.100
Sub Total/Average Checking Accounts 10,436,550.40 101,731,976.36 98,318,794.03 0.00 13,849,732.73 3,704.93 0.150 0.150

LoneStar LGIP 01 General Fund 1,029,609.26 13.27 0.00 0.00 1,029,622.53 13.27 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
LoneStar LGIP 02 Utility Fund 22,766.52 0.30 0.00 0.00 22,766.82 0.30 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
LoneStar LGIP 11 Hotel / Motel Fund 79,798.73 0.95 50,000.00 0.00 29,799.68 0.95 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
Subtotal LoneStar LGIP 1,132,174.51 14.52 50,000.00 0.00 1,082,189.03 14.52
Texas Class LGIP 01 General Fund 5,496,539.99 68,010.71 587,000.00 0.00 4,977,550.70 679.53 N/A N/A 0.061 0.044
Texas Class LGIP 02 Utility Fund 89,967.42 11.93 0.00 0.00 89,979.35 11.93 N/A N/A 0.061 0.044
Texas Class LGIP 05 Capital Improvement Fund 897,360.43 118.02 0.00 0.00 897,478.45 118.02 N/A N/A 0.061 0.044
Texas Class LGIP 06 Debt Service Fund 2,635,906.94 88,356.70 2,700,931.18 0.00 23,332.46 176.93 N/A N/A 0.061 0.044
Subtotal Texas Class LGIP 9,119,774.78 156,497.36 3,287,931.18 0.00 5,988,340.96 986.41
TexStar LGIP 01 General Fund 251,807.98 50,006.84 0.00 0.00 301,814.82 6.84 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
TexStar LGIP 02 Utility Fund 44,816.13 0.92 0.00 0.00 44,817.05 0.92 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
TexStar LGIP 03 Drainage Fund 29,403.51 0.78 0.00 0.00 29,404.29 0.78 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
TexStar LGIP 04 Sanitation Fund 76,863.30 1.43 50,000.00 0.00 26,864.73 1.43 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
TexStar LGIP 05 Capital Improvement Fund 787,360.71 19.48 0.00 0.00 787,380.19 19.48 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
TexStar LGIP 06 Debt Service Fund 33,579.09 0.18 0.00 0.00 33,579.27 0.18 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
TexStar LGIP 12 Restricted Court Fund 121,010.74 3.38 0.00 0.00 121,014.12 3.38 N/A N/A 0.010 0.010
Subtotal TexStar LGIP 1,344,841.46 50,033.01 50,000.00 0.00 1,344,874.47 33.01
Sub Total/Average Pool Acounts 11,596,790.75 206,544.89 3,387,931.18 0.00 8,415,404.46 1,033.94 0.050 0.034
Total / Average 34,150,276.88 102,843,488.46 104,644,436.05 (1,078.89) 32,348,250.40 12,993.65 9,412.00 0.230 0.165

City of Harker Heights
Quarterly Investment Report - Portfolio Detail with Accrued Interest
Begin Date: 6/30/2021, End Date: 9/30/2021

CDARS Program

Certificate of Deposit

Checking Accounts

Pool Acounts

3



Description Maturity Date
Days To 
Maturity

Yield Face Amount/Shares Cost Value Market Value
% of 

Portfolio

BancorpSouth - Checking MM N/A 1 0.150 13,755,553.51 13,755,553.51 13,755,553.51 42.52
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 10/11/2021 10/11/2021 11 0.250 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 3.09
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 10/11/2021 10/11/2021 11 0.250 500,000.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 1.55
First National Bank Texas - Checking MM N/A 1 0.100 94,179.22 94,179.22 94,179.22 0.29
First National Bank Texas - Killeen, TX 1.4 10/14/2021 10/14/2021 14 1.400 770,852.65 770,852.65 770,852.65 2.38
Goldman Sachs Bank USA - New York, NY 1.75 10/18/2021 10/18/2021 18 1.750 247,000.00 247,000.00 247,203.78 0.76
LoneStar LGIP N/A 1 0.010 1,082,189.03 1,082,189.03 1,082,189.03 3.35
Texas Class LGIP N/A 1 0.044 5,988,340.96 5,988,340.96 5,988,340.96 18.51
TexStar LGIP N/A 1 0.010 1,344,874.47 1,344,874.47 1,344,874.47 4.16
Total / Average 0-1 Month 2 0.171 24,782,989.84 24,782,989.84 24,783,193.62 76.61

First National Bank Texas - Killeen, TX 0.07 12/2/2021 12/2/2021 63 0.070 1,038,815.14 1,038,815.14 1,038,815.14 3.21
Total / Average 1-3 Months 63 0.070 1,038,815.14 1,038,815.14 1,038,815.14 3.21

BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 3/2/2022 3/2/2022 153 0.250 2,002,521.34 2,002,521.34 2,002,521.34 6.19
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 3/22/2022 3/22/2022 173 0.250 400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 1.24
BBVA - Temple, TX 0.1 3/3/2022 3/3/2022 154 0.100 750,882.79 750,882.79 750,882.79 2.32
First National Bank Texas - Killeen, TX 0.06 1/6/2022 1/6/2022 98 0.060 2,622,681.69 2,622,681.69 2,622,681.69 8.11
Total / Average 3-6 Months 130 0.144 5,776,085.82 5,776,085.82 5,776,085.82 17.86

BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 4/14/2022 4/14/2022 196 0.250 250,155.82 250,155.82 250,155.82 0.77
Total / Average 6-9 Months 196 0.250 250,155.82 250,155.82 250,155.82 0.77

BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 9/23/2022 9/23/2022 358 0.250 350,000.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 1.08
BancorpSouth Bank - Harker Heights, TX 0.25 9/23/2022 9/23/2022 358 0.250 150,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.47
Total / Average 9-12 Months 358 0.250 500,000.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 1.55
Total / Average 34 0.165 32,348,046.62 32,348,046.62 32,348,250.40 100.00

City of Harker Heights
Investment Portfolio - by Maturity Range (all)

9-12 Months

As of 9/30/2021

0-1 Month

1-3 Months

3-6 Months

6-9 Months

4



5

0 5,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000

0-1 Month

1-3 Months

3-6 Months

6-9 Months

9-12 Months

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS BY MATURITY RANGE


	Agenda
	Mayoral Proclamations and Presentations
	Consent Item V-1
	Presentations By Citizens VI-1 - Vantonio Fraley
	Presentations by Citizens VI-2 - Brenda Hauser
	Public Hearing Item VII-1
	Public Hearing Item VII-2
	Public Hearing Item VII-3
	Public Hearing Item VII-4
	Pblic Hearing Item VII-5
	Public Hearing Item VII-6
	Public Hearing Item VII-7
	Regular Business Item VIII-1
	Regular Business Item VIII-2
	Regular Business Item VIII-3
	Regular Business Item VIII-4
	Regular Business Item VIII-5
	Regular Business Item VIII-6

	Meeting Date: NOv 9, 2021
	Agenda Item: Teen Program 
	Name: Vantonio Fraley
	Address: 101 highland oaks dr
	Address2: harker heights tx 76548
	Phone Number: 
	Cell Phone Number: 2545348387
	Email: v.fraley@ipsctx.org
	Comments: want to get the city endorsement for a teen program and work on any partnerships 
	Date: 10/15/2021
	Signature: Vantonio Fraley
	Read Comment: Off
	Presentation by citizen: Yes
	Comments1: 
	Comments2: 
	Comments3: 
	Comments4: 


